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Directors’ Profile
BEEEN

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung, aged 56, is Chairman of the Company. Mr.
Shum is responsible for the formulation and implementation of
corporate policies and strategies. Mr. Shum has over 20 years of
experience in international trading and investment in China.

Shum Chun, Lawrence, aged 36, is Managing Director of the
Company since 2009. Mr. Shum graduated from the University
of Saskatchewan with a degree in Bachelor of Arts, majoring in
Economics. Prior to joining the Company in 2004, Mr. Shum has
pursued a career in finance and accountancy in an international
accounting firm. He is the son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

Cen Ziniu, aged 46, graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University with a Master’s Degree in Business Administration and
has been involved in trading businesses in Hong Kong and China,
holding senior managerial positions. Mr. Cen has extensive
experience in dealership management, business formation and
marketing. He is responsible for market development of the
Group and overseas operations. He is a cousin of Mr. Shum Siu
Hung.

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond, aged 56, has been executive
director and is responsible for the overall operations since
August 2003 and in charge of various business projects in the
Group. Prior to joining the Company Mr. Chiu had over 20 years’
experience in banking and management. He has been involved
in the financing and supervision of business projects in China
since the late 1980’s and was in charge of the management and
control of a wide range of projects.

Siu Ka Fai, Brian, aged 52, graduated from the Chinese
University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Arts degree.
He conducted a further course of study in real estate at the
University of British Columbia in Canada and then had over 20
years experience in the investment and real estate field, working
with various reputable companies in Hong Kong and China. Mr.
Siu joined the Group in 2005 and is currently in charge of the
Group’s purchasing and re-export operations.
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Directors’ Profile
BEEEN

Wang Jian, aged 35, graduated from Guangzhou Jinan
University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Economics and a Master’s
Degree in Finance. Prior to joining the Group in 2008, Mr. Wang
was engaged by a major bank in China and worked in its banking
business department. In November 2014, Mr. Wang obtained
a Doctor’'s Degree in Business Administration from School of
Business of Macau University of Science and Technology.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony, aged 63, has been independent
non-executive director since August 2001. Mr. Cheung is an
associate member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Cheung graduated from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University (formerly: the Hong Kong Polytechnic)
with a higher diploma in Accountancy. Mr. Cheung has over 30
years of experience in account, finance and investment banking
profession specializing in equity/debt fund raising, mergers and
acquisition and corporate restructuring before working with
publicly listed companies undertaking corporate management,
planning and strategies development functions. Mr. Cheung is
an independent non-executive director of PetroAsian Energy
Holdings Limited and Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings
Limited, whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict, aged 56, has been independent
non-executive director since March 2006. Mr. Chan is a holder
of a Master of Science Degree in Applied Mechanics (Cranfield
Institute of Technology, U.K.) and a registered professional
engineer in Hong Kong and the U.K. Mr. Chan is the recipient of
the U.K. Institution of Mechanical Engineers Outstanding Project
Price Award, 1981. For the last 20 years, Mr. Chan has taken
up key management positions in engineering and technology
businesses in Hong Kong, ranging from pumping equipment
and control systems, mini-piling, and software and hardware
engineering businesses.
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Directors’ Profile
EE/BI

Dr. Xu Mingshe, aged 59, was accredited a doctor’s degree
in economics by the Xiamen University. He graduated from the
Guangzhou Institute of Foreign Languages with a bachelor’s
degree in English, holds the title of Senior Economist, and has
over 20 years’ experience in the banking-finance field. Since
1980, Dr. Xu has held in succession a series of position in the
top management level in banking sector in China, and has been
well connected in the finance and corporate sectors both in
China and overseas. Dr. Xu’'s expertise includes public listings,
project financing, syndicated loan, debt restructuring and merge
and acquisition. He has taken part in a considerable number
of overseas listing of Chinese enterprises and other major fund
raising exercises. Dr. Xu was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 July 2006 and an
independent non-executive director of EPI (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Stock Exchange) from 2006 to 2009.
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Chairman’s Statement
F RS

On behalf of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the
“Company”), | am pleased to present the report on the audited
results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively as
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 to the
shareholders.

For the majority of companies in the region, the year 2014
was a time of difficulties. Investment decelerated amidst social
upheavals, enterprise development was dragged by fogged
economic outlook, whereas commodity trading was strangulated
by tightening credits. These unfavorable factors have to a certain
extent played a role in the economic downturn and contributed
to the severe challenges faced by countless enterprises.

Despite an undesirable external operating environment, the
Group once again proved its solid strengths in contesting the
challenges of a bleak market and the ability to resist the impact
caused by market downturns. In 2014, the sales volume of the
Group continued to expand in spite of a significant drop in oil
prices, leading to a remarkable increase in the total sales by
36% to the historic record of close to HK$20 billion for the year.
As proactive exploration of end users has always been our chief
operating objective, we were able to effectively mitigate the risks
brought by fluctuating oil prices and attain a double-digit growth
in the profits for the year, successfully driving the profit after tax
to approximately HK$900 million.

In the coming years, the Group will continue to concentrate
on the principle businesses of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”),
oil products and natural gas (“NG”). Amongst these, the LPG
business will remain to be our foundation to bring along stable
and rewarding revenue and profit to the Group, whereas the
oil product business will stay on the track of fast expansion
to generate increasing profit contributions and then share
the limelight with the LPG business. As to the NG business,
the Group’s long-term profit growth were equipped with new
driving forces, with a sizeable end user population being already
locked in and the massive network of autogas refueling stations
expected to complete laying by the coming few years.
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Chairman’s Statement
F RS

The Group has always adopted a meticulously aggressive
approach in implementing the investment strategy of driving
business development by the end user market. We will continue
to take Southern China as our base for extending the coverage
of our energy business to different provinces, the peripheral
regions and neighboring countries. Building on our current
leading position in the energy industry in Southern China, we will
keep up our efforts with the aim to establish the Group as one of
the major petroleum companies in the region.

The Board recommends a final dividend for 2014 of HK6.6 cents
per share.

| hereby take the opportunity to express on behalf of the Board
the appreciation we have to our staff for their contribution in the
past year, and look forward to the creation of a better future
where we all unite to brave any challenges ahead in the Group’s
spirit of perseverance.

Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BHEE WA

In 2014, the global energy market experienced choppy waves.
The large scale of fluctuation in oil price had brought a high risk
to the oil industry. Since June of the year, the crude oil price
slumped from around US$110 per barrel to US$50 per barrel
(and even dropped below US$45 per barrel in January 2015),
representing a drop of over 50% in 6 months, the sharpest
decline in such short term (6 months) since 2009. Steered by the
oil price, prices of liquefied petroleum gas (“LPG”) and refined oil
(“oil products”) also went on a downward track, causing serious
losses to some wholesalers who overstocked. However, the
performance of NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Group”)
was not the least affected. As it is well known, the Group has
upheld the business model of low inventory and highly efficient
logistics along the years, under which trading in LPG or oil
products are substantially priced by the cost plus method or the
back-to-back method to mitigate the risks of price fluctuations.
Our meticulous operating strategy is precisely the reason that
the Group can successfully resisted the severe impact brought
by the market downfalls in both 2008 and last year.

In the first half of 2014, the LPG demand in the Southern
China market became sluggish as the government forcefully
promoted the use of liquefied natural gas (“‘LNG”), causing a
slight decrease in the sales volume of LPG of the Group for the
period. During the second half of the year, given the bounce in
consumer demand for LPG as the price continued to go down,
the Group has recovered in business to attain a slight increase in
the sales volume for the year versus last year. The oil products
business remained robust in 2014 and achieved a more than
double growth to over 1 million tons in sales volume. Paralleled
to this, the Group has also gradually enhanced the profitability of
its oil products business through adopting numerous measures
that have reaped effects in 2014 and significantly increased
the profit contribution of the oil products business. The natural
gas (“NG”) business of the Group remained at the early stage
of laying the end-user sales network and has yet substantial
contribution to the overall revenue of the Group. As to the
development of the NG business, the Group has long decided to
adopt the strategy of development driven by end users. Under
this it will proactively promote cooperation with inter-provincial
logistics and transportation companies and nationwide major
production bases, and take Guangdong Province as the starting
point to set up multiple LNG autogas refueling stations in major
transportation hubs in the province. This will be paralleled by
lock-in arrangements with the transportation fleet of our partners
as the long-term customers of the autogas refueling stations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BHEE WA

Despite an unfavorable operating environment on the overall in
2014, the Group successfully sustained continuous growth in the
operating profits. The risk of Renminbi (“RMB”) depreciation at
the beginning of the year were alleviated to a certain extent as it
came to the second half of the year, which significantly narrowed
the exchange losses. The net interest incomes for the year
received by the Group from significant RMB fixed deposits were
more than enough to offset the exchange losses arising from the
holding of RMB and brought along noticeable contribution to the
profits of the Group.

Of the infrastructure projects developed by the Group, (1)
the modification of the first LNG autogas refueling station in
joint efforts with the Guangdong branch of China Petroleum
and Chemical Corp (“Sinopec”) was completed and officially
commenced operation in April; (2) the addition of two LPG tanks
in the warehousing zone of Zhuhai Terminal was completed,
passed the required certification and was ready for full operation
in May; (3) the two 4,500-ton large high-speed bunker ships
funded by the Group have arrived in Hong Kong and were
officially delivered for use in July and October respectively; (4)
the 70,000-ton oil storage depots and the auxiliary berth have
obtained all the approvals and commenced operation in February
2015. We believe that with the successive commencement of
operation of these infrastructures, our LPG and oil products
businesses will enjoy enhanced logistics efficiency, stronger
industry competitiveness and higher economic benefits.

1. Overall Performance of the Group

The Group has newly established its LNG business in
2014, which was still in the stage of sales network building
and therefore has not generated any revenue during the
period. In 2014, the businesses of the Group recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$19,633,037,000 in
total, up by 36.02% from the turnover of approximately
HK$14,433,446,000 in 2013. Profit attributable to owners
of the Company was approximately HK$900,270,000,
representing an increase of 14.93% as compared to
approximately HK$783,308,000 for the same period of
2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 2 alam Mo

The Group’s principal businesses of LPG and oil products
along with its secondary business of electronics business
and property investment and development in China
recorded an aggregate gross profit of approximately
HK$1,377,227,000 in 2014, representing an increase of
approximately HK$161,719,000 from the aggregate gross
profit of approximately HK$1,215,508,000 for the same
period of 2013 (an increase by approximately 13.30%).
Although the gross profit went up significantly, the gross
profit margin did not increase. During the year, we made
some technical adjustments on the gross profit of the
autogas refueling business as a result of a change in
sales model. Moreover, the profitability of the oil products
business has been increased but still lagged behind that
of the LPG business. As such, while there was a tangible
increase in the overall gross profit of the Group as the sales
volume of oil products once again doubled, the overall
gross margin of the Group would be diluted accordingly.
Because of that, the overall profit margin has been reduced
from 8.42% of the same period of 2013 to 7.01% of 2014.

In September 2014, the Company did a share repurchase
from the market and therefore cancelled 3,000,000 ordinary
shares in issue. As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s
weighted average number of ordinary shares was
1,482,576,298 shares (31 December 2013: 1,425,090,095
shares). Basic earnings per share for 2014 was HK$0.61
(2013: HK$0.55), representing an increase of approximately
10.91% compared to the same period of 2013.

1.1 Segment Performance

In 2014, sales of energy products amounted to
approximately 2,829,000 tons in total, representing
an increase of approximately 677,000 tons or 31.46%
compared to approximately 2,152,000 tons for the
same period of 2013. The respective weight of LPG
and oil products to the total sales volume was as
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE 25T kAT

During the year, the Group recorded a total operating
revenue of approximately HK$19,633,037,000,
representing an increase of approximately
HK$5,199,591,000 or 36.02% from approximately
HK$14,433,446,000 of 2013. The operating revenue
of the Group mainly originates from the three business
segments of LPG, oil products and electronic
products. The respective weight of these three
business segments in the total revenue was:

2014 64.51%
2013 76.59%

As projected from the Group’s strategy of energy
development, whilst the turnover of the LPG business
remained relatively steady and that of the oil products
business showed remarkable progress, the growth of
the electronics business in 2014 was only transient.
In the long run, all resources will certainly be invested
into the development of energy products, and there
will only be a dwindling room for development for the
electronics business.

LPG Business

The LPG business of the Group recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$12,664,606,000 in
2014, superseding the turnover of approximately
HK$11,055,102,000 for the same period of
2013 by 14.56%. Sales volume amounted to
approximately 1,743,000 tons, representing an
increase of 3.63% compared to the sales volume
of approximately 1,682,000 tons in 2013. In
2014, the LPG business realized a gross profit
of approximately HK$1,072,624,000, down by
approximately HK$98,850,000 from approximately
HK$1,171,474,000 for the same period of 2013.
The gross profit margin also narrowed from 10.60%
of 2013 to 8.47% of 2014. During the period, the
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decrease in profit margin was due to the changes in
the sales model for auto gas refueling. Apart from the
above changes, there was no significant change in
the sales model and profitability of other LPGs.

Since November 2013, the joint venture established
by the Group and Sinopec Guangdong branch
commence to start the strategic cooperation.
Through the subcontracting arrangement of Lianxin
Energy Development Company Limited (“Lianxin
Energy”, a subsidiary of the Group), all the 17 LPG
refueling stations in Guangzhou, being the Group’s
autogas refueling business in Guangzhou is now
being operated and managed by the joint venture.
Given this cooperation, the Group has transformed
from being a seller to end users at autogas refueling
stations to become an exclusive supplier of auto LPG
for the joint venture, whereas the revenue from end
user sales previously earned through Lianxin Energy
(accounting for approximately 6% of the turnover of
Lianxin Energy) was transferred to the associate. Due
to the said changes, the gross profit from LPG sales
of 2014 was less than that of 2013, and the gross
profit margin has accordingly diminished.

Although the profit margin of the sale of the autogas
refueling business has been decreased, with the
benefit of cooperating with the Sinopec Guangdong,
the economic benefit of autogas refueling business
have not been affected, the real case was: (A)
subsequent to the subcontracting, all the operating
costs and expenses of Lianxin Energy were no longer
included in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group, leading to a reduction in the expenses
equivalent to approximately HK$83,367,000 in the
books of the Group (that is, the cost of sales and
administrative expenses of Lianxin Energy in 2014); (B)
the Group has received an additional subcontracting
fees and information and technical fees in the amount
of approximately HK$16,436,000 from the joint
venture; and (C) the Group has received a profit
allocation of approximately HK$8,953,000 in 2014.
The total of these three economic benefits has almost
completely set off the decrease in the gross profit
from LPG for 2014, proving that the cooperation has
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no material effects on the revenues of the Group. Our
ultimate objective for the cooperation with Sinopec
Guangdong branch is to enable the continuous
expansion of its LPG sales through setting up new
LPG and LNG autogas refueling stations at high traffic
areas in Guangzhou (that is, existing refueling stations
of Sinopec) with minimal input of resources to create
greater autogas demand, and to open up another
energy product business for the Group through
venturing into the construction and operation of auto
LNG refueling stations through this cooperation.

During the first half of 2014, the LPG demand in the
Southern China market was considerably weak under
sustained high prices and the fad of LNG, leading to
a decrease in the sales volume of the Group and a
corresponding drop in the gross profit from the sales
of LPG. With the gradual decline in the purchase cost
and recovery in market demand during the second
half of the year, the gross profit was accordingly
improved. Excluding the impact by the changes in
the autogas refueling business, the consolidated
profitability of the LPG business was generally similar
to that of 2013 with minimal decrease. In 2015, we
believe that the profitability of LPG would be able to
steadily pick up if the market price of LPG remains at
the low level at the year end of 2014.

Oil Products Business

At the end of 2012, the Group has disposed of 51%
equity interests in the project company (“Project
Company”) engaged in marine bunkering business in
Hong Kong. The Project Company was accordingly
changed from being a subsidiary of the Group into an
associated company. Regardless of the said changes,
a subsidiary of the Group was still responsible for
the provision of fuel oil to the Project Company.
Throughout 2013 and for most of the time in 2014,
the fuel oil business of the Group has operated under
such arrangement until 29 December 2014, on which
date the Group repurchased from a third party the
51% equity share of the Project Company sold, at
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a consideration of HK$250,000,000. Upon this, the
Project Company once again became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

In 2014, total sales of marine fuel oil of the Group
amounted to approximately 1,086,000 tons, most
of which was supplied to the Project Company, and
represented an increase of approximately 616,000
tons or over 1.3 times compared to the sales volume
of approximately 470,000 tons of 2013. Revenue of
the oil products business amounted to approximately
HK$5,214,037,000 in 2014, representing an
increase of approximately HK$2,737,824,000 or
approximately 1.1 times compared to approximately
HK$2,476,213,000 of 2013. The profitability of the
oil products business was substantially improved
in 2014, with the gross profit from sales escalating
from approximately HK$10,648,000 of 2013 to
approximately HK$176,196,000 of 2014, whereas
the gross profit margin shuttled from 0.43% of 2013
to 3.38% of 2014. Despite that the profitability of the
oil products business still lagged behind that of the
LPG business, we believe that the amazing growth in
its turnover, coupled with the significantly enhanced
synergy between the Group and the Project Company
upon the acquisition of the 51% equity interests in
the Project Company completed by the end of 2014,
will effectively step up the logistics efficiency of the
oil products business and further support the macro
objectives of diversifying the energy products and
becoming a prominent supplier of energy products in
the Southern China region.

By the end of the year, one of the major customers
of the Project Company, OW Bunker Group (reputed
to be the largest bunker trader in the world) went
bankrupt, and there arose the risk of recoverability
for its goods payments due to the Project Company
in the amount of approximately HK$58,605,000.
The Project Company is currently taking all means
(including but not limited to requesting the ships
receiving the services to make payments to the
Project Company directly, and taking appropriate
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legal action) to recover the receivables. However, to
be conservative, the Project Company has decided
to make a full provision for the amounts receivable
as bad debts during the financial year of 2014. The
operating results of the Project Company was as a
result turned from recording a profit of approximately
HK$11,452,000 to a loss of approximately
HK$47,153,000 in 2014. According to the equity
method, the Group was also required to share a loss
of an associate (that is, the Project Company) in the
amount of approximately HK$23,105,000.

After absorbed the operating loss of an associate,
the oil products business of the Group has recorded
a profit of approximately HK$131,677,000 in 2014,
accounting for approximately 2.53% of the sales
revenue of oil products of the Group, which far
exceeded the profit performance of 2013.

After the Group completed the repurchase of the 51%
equity interests of the Project Company, we have
been assisting in recovering the receivables arising
from the bankruptcy of OW Bunker, at the same
time refining our credit management system for the
oil business (including credit insurance). Moreover,
the Group is also actively improving our logistic
operations of our oil business to increase profit.
Our oil storage located in Zhuhai has received all
necessary licenses from the government, and already
commenced operation in February 2015. The newly
built oil vessels have been delivered and in operation,
these infrastructure facilities will bring synergies to
the oil business development of the Pearl River Delta,
and enable the Group to further lowering its operating
cost.
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1.2

Electronics Business

In 2014, the Group’s mobile phone and electronic
component (“Electronics”) trading business recorded
a turnover of approximately HK$1,699,397,000,
representing an increase of 94.52% from
approximately HK$873,631,000 of the same period
in 2013. Having reassessed the market demand in
20183, the major buyer in Thailand decided to adjust
its major product categories from the previous mid-
to low-end mobile phones to launching advanced
intelligent mobile phones with strong functions, giving
arise to a very robust demand for newly-developed
integrated circuits and electronic components. During
the first half of the year, the large bulk purchase
of lately developed integrated circuits made by the
Thailand customer at once pumped up our turnover
to beat that for the full year in 2013 in a half-year’s
time. In the second half of the year, the Group did not
increase the production of that model of integrated
circuit as it was concerned with the risk of its being
replaced by new products, and therefore only sold all
the remaining stock at a price close to the cost and
ended the development and sales of this new product.
Contribution to the profits from the electronics
business for the entire year was approximately
HK$99,695,000, representing an increase of 347.34%
as compared to approximately HK$22,286,000 of
20183. The gross profit margin also increased from
2.55% of 2013 to a more normal level of 5.87%.

Foreign Exchange Gain and Other Income

Since January 2014, the net exchange rate of RMB to
United States Dollars (“USD”) swung through ups and
downs, sliding from the beginning of the year, then
gradually picking up in May, and falling back onto the
downward track in the fourth quarter of 2014.

The Group recorded an exchange loss of
approximately HK$22,738,000 for the year due to
the depreciation of RMB, of which an exchange loss
of approximately HK$8,583,000 arose from RMB
deposits under structured matching arrangements,
and the remaining exchange losses of approximately
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HK$14,155,000 stemmed from intra-group current
accounts denominated in RMB and certain current
assets denominated in RMB. As a Hong Kong
enterprise targeting China mainland as the primary
sales market, we were inevitably impacted by
fluctuations in the exchange rate of RMB. However,
most of the losses was unrealized exchange losses
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group
and had no significant impact on the cash flow of the
Group.

As mentioned above, the structured matching
arrangements have given rise to part of the
exchange losses. It should be noted that the
same structured matching arrangements (that is,
deposits in RMB and borrowings in USD) have at
the same time brought along net interest incomes
of approximately HK$70,048,000 (interest incomes
from RMB pledged deposits accounted for as other
incomes of approximately HK$168,173,000, minus
interest expenses for USD loans of approximately
HK$98,125,000). Such net interest incomes were not
only more than enough to offset the exchange losses
arising from the structured matching arrangements
but also brought along additional incomes of more
than HK$60,000,000 to the Group.

In order to adapt to the new environment in the
international financial market, since the second half
of 2014 the Group has started to cut such structured
matching arrangements. The balance of RMB pledged
deposits was moderately reduced from equivalent to
approximately HK$4,665,730,000 at the end of June
to equivalent to approximately HK$3,494,770,000 at
the end of the year (the year-end balance of 2013
was equivalent to approximately HK$3,859,479,000).
Starting from 2015, expiring structured matching
arrangements were generally not renewed, and it is
estimated that RMB deposits will further reduce by
equivalent to approximately HK$1.5 billion. Unless
RMB regains its upward, the Group will continue to
reduce the amount of RMB deposits to avert the
inherent exchange risks.
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1.3 Control of Operating Costs 1.3 BERFEH

Finance Costs

The Group’s total finance costs in 2014 amounted
to approximately HK$226,210,000 (2013:
HK$206,640,000), including interests on USD loans
related to RMB pledged deposits of approximately
HK$98,125,000 (2013: HK$66,795,000), and
interest expenses on liquid capital loan for operating
needs of approximately HK$128,085,000 (2013:
HK$139,845,000). Since the beginning of 2013, the
Group has gradually switched to using USD loans
raised in Hong Kong to satisfy the needs for liquid
capital and reduce the amount of RMB liquid capital
loans raised in China with the aim of minimizing the
financing costs. This has proven to be highly effective,
as seen from the decrease in the balances of bank
loans used for liquid capitals (excluding USD loans
used for structured matching arrangements) of the
Group from approximately HK$2,504,755,000 in
2012 to approximately HK$2,202,176,000 in 2013
followed by the subsequent rebound to approximately
HK$3,475,848,000 in 2014. On the other hand,
interest expenses for the same period decreased
from approximately HK$194,546,000 of 2012 by
28.12% to approximately HK$139,845,000 of 2013
and then further dropped by 8.41% to approximately
HK$128,085,000 of 2014. The Group expects
that in the forthcoming years, more liquid capital
will be required to support our growing receivable
accounts as the sales volume of the oil product
business continue to escalate, inevitably leading to an
increased demand for bank loans. As such, financing
costs control is one of our key area in managing.
Moreover, the Group has always been able to choose
the appropriate method, to achieve our target of
reasonable cost of capital.
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s total selling and distribution expenses
amounted to approximately HK$251,656,000,
representing a decrease of approximately
HK$23,389,000 or 8.50% from approximately
HK$275,045,000 of 2013. The selling and distribution
expenses of the Group included the salary of sales
staff, depreciation for tools and equipment, rental
for the land and warehouses, LPG shipping costs,
trucking costs, warehousing cost, and brokerage
costs etc. In the previous year, approximately 30%
of this item came from the consolidation of Lianxin
Energy’s sales cost (autogas refueling business),
while 70% was attributable from expenses arising
from other LPG business, oil products business
and electronic products business. Since November
20183, the Group has started to subcontract the
operation of 17 autogas refueling stations of Lianxin
Energy under the Group to a joint venture established
by NewOcean and Sinopec Guangdong branch.
Under this arrangement, the selling and distribution
expenses of Lianxin Energy were entirely borne by the
joint venture in 2014, and there was a corresponding
reduction in the selling and distribution expenses.
However, certain selling and distribution expenses
may record an increase due to business expansion,
including loading, unloading and warehousing
charges, transportation fees and advertising fees. As
a result the selling and distribution expenses did not
record a corresponding decrease by 30%, but was
only reduced by 8.50%.

Administrative Expenses

The total administrative expenses of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$228,938,000 in
2014, representing an increase of approximately
HK$2,585,000 or merely 1.14% from approximately
HK$226,353,000 of 2013. The administrative
expenses of the Group mainly included emolument of
management staff, business trip and entertainment
expenses, depreciation charge, amortization of land
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use rights and professional fees etc. This moderate
increase during the period includes items of a more
significant magnitude including: (1) emolument
of management staff — human resources were
increased significantly to cater for the needs of
business development (in particular LNG autogas
refueling business). This expense accounted for
approximately 21% of the administrative expenses,
representing an increase of approximately 9.89%
from 2013; and (2) rentals, utilities and office-related
expenses — the headquarters of the Group in Hong
Kong was relocated to a new office of over 7,000
square feet in The Sun’s Group Centre in January
2014 to meet the needs of business expansion,
leading to an increase in the rentals and related
expenses by over 50% as compared to 2013. On the
other hand during the year administrative expenses
incurred by Lianxin Energy were borne by the
associate which has subcontracted the operation of
the autogas refueling stations. In the previous year,
approximately 7% of the total administrative expenses
of the Group arose from the autogas refueling station
business. As such, due to significant increases in
the emolument and benefits of management staff,
rentals and utilities, there was a slight increase in the
total administrative expenses for the year despite the
exclusion of the administrative expenses of Lianxin
Energy.

2. Major Changes in the Financial Position

2.1

Current Ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total
current assets of approximately HK$10,938,936,000
(31 December 2013: HK$10,321,031,000), total
current liabilities of approximately HK$8,025,300,000
(31 December 2013: HK$8,478,661,000), and
current ratio of 136.31%, representing a remarkable
improvement from 121.73% of 2013 and reflecting
the adequacy of liquid capital held by the Group for
the operation of its energy products (that is, large bulk
goods).
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2.2 Fixed Assets and Investments

To align with the development of product
diversification, the Group invested approximately
HK$339,000,000 into purchase of fixed assets and
increased the investments in the oil product business
and the preliminary investment for the LNG autogas
refueling business in 2014.

During 2014, the Group has acquired other
fixed assets and land use rights amounting to
approximately HK$136,000,000. In addition, the
two bunker ships “NewOcean 5” and “NewOcean 6”
ordered in 2013 completed construction in 2014. Of
the total construction cost and other related expenses
of approximately HK$96,000,000, the Group prepaid
approximately HK$70,000,000 in 2013, and the
remaining amount of approximately HK$26,000,000
was paid to the construction company within this
year. During the year, the Group has invested
approximately HK$27,000,000 in commencing
the LNG autogas refueling business, including the
preparation for setting up joint venture/associate
companies and purchase of related equipment.

At the end of 2014, the Group has acquired the
entire equity interests in Success Pillar Limited at
a consideration of HK$250,000,000. Before this
acquisition, Success Pillar Limited held 51% of the
marine bunkering business in Hong Kong (that is,
the Project Company set out in the above section
1.1 Business Segment — Oil Products Business),
while the remaining 49% was held by the Group
through a wholly-owned subsidiary. Upon completion
of the acquisition, the company holding the marine
bunkering business ceased to be an associated
company of the Group and became a wholly-owned
subsidiary. The Group considers that this acquisition
will bring along further synergy in promoting the
consolidation of the two oil products customer
networks developed by the Group and the marine
bunkering business in Hong Kong. The acquisition will
also allow the Group to obtain the full control of the
marine bunkering business in Hong Kong, in order to
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align its business objectives with those of the Group,
fortify the chain of operation of the oil products
business and generate higher profitability and overall
shareholders’ value for the Company. The acquisition
was completed on 29 December 2014. The
consideration of HK$250,000,000 would be settled by
two payments. The first payment of HK$150,000,000
was settled at the end of 2014 and the second
payment of HK$100,000,000 was settled in January
of 2015. In accordance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standards, the Group has recorded gain
on deemed disposal of an associated company in the
amount of approximately HK$21,860,000, whereas
the goodwill and intangible assets arising from the
acquisition were approximately HK$372,022,000 and
HK$102,722,000, respectively.

The Group’s available for sale investment represented
shares of Integrated Energy Limited (“IE”), a listed
company in Korea. The Group through the disposal of
65% of the equity interests in Success Pillar Limited
in 2012 and exercised convertible bonds in 2013 to
exchange a total of 32.45% of the shares in IE. During
2014, the Group disposed of approximately 5.12%
of the shares of IE in view of ongoing volatility of the
Korean stock market and the Group would like to
focus on developing its existing principal businesses
and the newly added LNG autogas refueling business.
At the end of 2014, the Group’s shareholding in |E
decreased to 27.33%. The disposal brought along
cash proceeds in the amount of approximately
HK$22,133,000 for use in other investments, and
recorded a slight loss from the disposal of available
for sale investments of approximately HK$2,528,000.

In 2014, the Group had no new real estate project.
The original small project is now slowly put to the
market since 2013 and approximately 11.94%
was further disposed of in 2014, adding to an
accumulated disposal of approximately 16.65%. The
remaining properties are expected to be disposed in
the coming year. The other project which is related
to establishment of the headquarters in Zhuhai by the
Group, which is under construction at present. Upon
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2.3

completion, the Group intends to dispose of part of
the property to recoup the investment in the entire
project, whereas the remaining parts of the property
will be used as the headquarters in Zhuhai.

Gearing Ratio
Bank loans

As at the end of 2014, the Group’s total bank loans
amounted to approximately HK$7,423,421,000,
representing an increase of approximately
HK$788,485,000 or 11.88% compared to
approximately HK$6,634,936,000 as at the end of
20183. The balance as at the end of 2014 included:
(1) USD loans related to Structured Matching of
approximately HK$2,469,373,000, representing a
decrease of approximately HK$407,387,000 from the
balance of approximately HK$2,876,760,000 as at
the end of 2013; (2) short-term working capital loan
of approximately HK$3,770,163,000, representing
an increase of approximately HK$564,264,000 from
the balance of approximately HK$3,205,899,000 as
at the end of 2013; and (3) long-term working capital
loan of approximately HK$1,183,885,000 representing
an increase of approximately HK$631,608,000 from
the balance of approximately HK$552,277,000 as at
the end of 2013. The Group mainly utilized medium-
term USD loans to meet the demand for liquid capital
arising from business development (in particular the
high-speed expansion of the oil products business)
in 2014. Of the balance of bank loans as at the end
of 2014, approximately HK$4,954,048,000 was
borrowings for liquid capital required for operating
needs, representing an increase of approximately
HK$1,195,872,000 as compared to the balance of
approximately HK$3,758,176,000 as at the end of
2018. Out of these new financings, approximately
HK$816,900,000 was a 3-year syndicated loan,
and the remaining approximately HK$378,972,000
represented general bank loans.

2.3
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Shareholders’ Equity

In September 2014, the Company has repurchased
from the market and thereafter cancelled 3,000,000
ordinary shares in issue, resulting in a decrease in the
Company’s shareholders’ equity by HK$11,550,000.
Other than this, the Company has not undertaken
any other fund-raising activities on the capital
market. The Group’s net profits for the year have
increased by approximately 15.08% to approximately
HK$900,906,000. As a result, the shareholders’ equity
of the Company has increased from approximately
HK$4,095,536,000 as at the end of 2013 by 19.02%
to approximately HK$4,874,600,000.

Gearing Ratio
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Net bank loans (after deducting bank FRITERCORBRIRITES
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deposits)/Shareholders’ equity /R

In 2014, the Group’s bank loans increased by
approximately HK$788,485,000, whereas cash
(including bank deposits and pledged deposits)
decreased by approximately HK$348,579,000,
resulting in an increase of net debt to equity ratio (that
is, item 5 in the above table) from 25.02% of 2013 to
44.35% of 2014. Nevertheless, we believe that the
Group’s gearing ratio is remained at a very healthy
level.
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3.

Business Condition

3.1

LPG Business
Purchase

In 2014, approximately 1,743,000 tons of LPG
were purchased in total, representing an increase
of merely 61,000 tons or 3.63% as compared to
approximately 1,682,000 tons of the same period in
2013. During the year, approximately 1,067,000 tons
of imported LPG were purchased, representing an
increase of approximately 105,000 tons or 10.91%
from approximately 962,000 tons of the same period
in 2013. Approximately 676,000 tons of domestic
LPG were purchased, representing a decrease of
approximately 44,000 tons or approximately 6.11%
from approximately 720,000 tons of the same period
in 2013.

LPG Gas Imported from Overseas (“Imported Gas”)

Approximately 1,067,000 tons of Imported Gas in
total were directly purchased by the headquarters of
the Group: (1) in 2014, approximately 954,000 tons
of Imported Gas purchased were settled by letters
of credit issued by international banks, accounting
for 89.41% of the total purchase volume of Imported
Gas; approximately 113,000 tons of Imported Gas
purchased were settled by telegraphic transfers,
accounting for 10.59% of the total purchase volume
of Imported Gas; (2) there were 7 suppliers in total,
with Shell being the largest supplier in terms of
volume at 546,000 tons, accounting for over half of
the purchase volume of Imported Gas (approximately
51.17%). Two other suppliers were national petroleum
companies in the Middle East and Northern Europe,
with a total supply volume being approximately
301,000 tons, accounting for 28.21% of the purchase
volume of Imported Gas. The remaining 4 suppliers
were international LPG trading companies with
the supply volume of approximately 220,000 tons,
accounting for 20.62% of the purchase volume of
Imported Gas; (3) the gas was mainly sourced from
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the Middle East at 859,000 tons, accounting for
80.51% of the purchase volume of Imported Gas. The
volume of gas sourced from Africa was approximately
101,000 tons, accounting for 9.47% of the purchase
volume of Imported Gas. The remaining approximately
107,000 tons of Imported Gas were sourced from
Australia, Northern Europe, the United States and
Korea respectively. Of approximately 1,067,000 tons
of Imported Gas purchased, approximately 277,500
tons were settled overseas, whereas the remaining
approximately 789,500 tons were first transported to
the bonded LPG warehouses in Guangdong Province
(including NewOcean’s LPG cargo terminal located
in Gaolan Port, Zhuhai and other cargo terminals).
Approximately 666,700 tons were sold on the
domestic market, while approximately 122,800 tons
were re-exported to the overseas market through
NewQOcean’s cargo terminal.

LPG Purchased from the China Domestic Market
(“Domestic Gas”)

In 2014, all Domestic Gas purchased by the Group
was produced by petroleum refineries or natural
gas processing plants in China. The total volume
amounted to approximately 676,000 tons, which
was slightly lower than approximately 720,000 tons
of 2013. Part of the Domestic Gas purchased was
sourced from refineries of Chinese National Petroleum
Corporation, Sinopec and China National Offshore
Qil Corporation in Guangdong Province. Part of the
Domestic Gas was transported by tank wagons from
neighboring provinces (such as Hunan and Hubei)
into Guangdong Province. In addition, some of the
Domestic Gas was shipments transported by pressure
vessels from Shandong.

Sales

As the infrastructures constructed and owned by
the Group were mainly situated at the west bank of
the Pearl River, the Group will generally adopt our
operating strategy to sell to end-users directly. As to
the business in the east bank of the Pearl River, we
needed to cooperate with partners equipped with
considerable terminal facilities in the localities for
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market exploration. In 2014, a total of approximately
1,743,000 tons of LPG were sold in 2014,

representing an increase of approximately 3.63% as
compared to approximately 1,682,000 tons of the
same period in 2013.
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Sale volume in  Sale volume in
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Other terminals and H{th A5 88 N TR 73,000 tons 65,000 tons +8,000 tons
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Autogas refueling AEIRE 244,000 tons 245,000 tons -1,000 tons
24487 24.5 8 -0.1 B Ma

Overseas customers — major customers included
international LPG trading companies in Netherlands,
Japan and Korea. During 2014, sales of this
category amounted to approximately 400,000 tons,
representing an increase of 14.29% as compared
to approximately 350,000 tons of the same period
in 2013. Out of the sales to overseas customers
in 2014, approximately 277,500 tons were settled
overseas, while the remaining approximately 122,500
tons were re-sold through the bonded warehouses in
Zhuhai Terminal to Hong Kong, Macau, Philippines,
Vietnam, Bangladesh, Cambodia and Malaysia.

Industrial customers — major customers included
chemical plants, aluminum mills, air-conditioner
manufacturers, lighter manufacturers, ceramics
factories, glass factories, refinery plants, automobile
manufacturers, food processing plants and other
autogas refueling operators in the Pearl River Delta
Region. During 2014, sales of this category amounted
to approximately 755,000 tons, representing an
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increase of only 1.48% as compared to approximately
744,000 tons of the same period in 2013. The less-
than-expected growth in the sales volume to industrial
customers was mainly attributable to the lack of
significant increases in the demand as two large scale
plants using LPG as a raw material for their chemical
products did not commence operation as scheduled.
In addition, there were no evident market advantages
for LPG as a chemical raw material and the demand
was relatively sluggish during the first half of the
year when its price remained at high levels. With the
significant decline in the price during the second half
of the year that trigger stronger demand, the Group
has successfully reversed the decline in business of
the first half totally.

Other terminals and bottling plants — major
customers represented other terminals (secondary
terminals) and bottling plants. In 2014, sales of this
category amounted to approximately 73,000 tons,
representing an increase of 12.31% compared to
approximately 65,000 tons of the same period in
2013. Sales of this category were all Domestic
Gas, picked up by vehicles or vessels sent by the
customers to the refineries or the auxiliary terminals.
The goods were directly delivered to the customer
warehouses, without passing through any warehouses
controlled by NewOcean.

Bottled LPG — domestic bottled LPG was mainly
supplied to the general public and commercial end-
users such as restaurants, entertainment venues,
small hotels, laundry shops. In 2014, sale volume
of the Group’s bottled LPG (including sales in
Macau and Hong Kong) was approximately 271,000
tons, representing a slight decrease of 2.52% from
approximately 278,000 tons of the same period in
2013. Due to the LNG fad and the high LPG price
level, sales of LPG were weak during the first half of
the year. With a significant drop in LPG price during
the second half of the year, LPG demand went back
up greatly, along with customers switched back
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from LNG to LPG, businesses have recovered in the
second half, despite that the sales volume for the
entire year were still slight lagged behind that of last
year. If the market price of LPG remains at the low
level at the year end of 2014, it is estimated that in
next year, the sales of bottled LPG will likely rebound
back to a level similar to that of 2013 at approximately
278,000 tons. In face of a rather sluggish market, we
have planned to implement a number of measures
to protect our market share of LPG enjoyed by the
Group in the Guangdong Province, including (1) to
reinforce the cooperation with Sinopec Guangdong
branch to identify suitable locations in second—
and third-tier cities in Guangdong Province for the
construction of new bottling plants and attract existing
customers in the region to make up for the loss of
business in other cities; (2) to expedite the relocation
of certain bottling plants to enable the return to
normal production and sales by the affected bottling
plants as soon as possible and to minimize the loss of
customers.

We could not continue to use the bottling plant of
the Group originally located near Henggin due to
the expiry of and the failure to renew the lease, and
therefore have shifted to use the bottling workshop
located at Zhuhai Terminal to continue the provision
of gas and bottling services to some of the bottled
LPG operators in Macau (including operators who are
agents of international brands). We also cooperated
with a state-owned enterprise in Zhuhai to identify the
land for construction a new bottling plant in the urban
area of Zhuhai in order to expand the sales of bottled
LPG in that area.

The bottled LPG business of the Group officially
commenced in Hong Kong in December 2013 and
was the first registered gas supply company in Hong
Kong not required to construct large infrastructures
on Tsing Yi Island. During the past year, the Group
has strived to entice distributors of other brands on
the market to shift to selling the Group’s products.
QOur efforts were met with some unexpected
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impediments that have greatly slowed down our
pace of development. Sales for the year fell short
of expectations but are continually improving. As to
date, we have recruited approximately 26 distributors
with the sales coverage growing from northern New
Territories to Tuen Mun, Kowloon, Lantau, Cheung
Chau and Hong Kong Island. We will continue to
develop distributors in different districts and assist
them to invigorate their own sales volume. It is
anticipated that the performance of the bottled LPG
business in Hong Kong will record very remarkable
improvements in the forthcoming year.

Autogas refueling — since November 2013, the joint
venture established in hands with Sinopec officially
commenced operation to operate and manage the
17 autogas refueling stations and 3 autogas refueling
stations under Sinopec Guangdong (including 17
autogas refueling stations in Guangdong urban areas)
by way of subcontract. Since then, the Group has
transformed from being an autogas refueling station
operator to become the exclusive LPG supplier to
the joint venture. In 2014, approximately 244,000
tons of auto LPG were supplied by the Group to
the joint venture for the entire year, representing a
decrease of approximately 1,000 tons as compared
to approximately 245,000 tons for the same period
in 2013. As reflected by the decrease in the sales of
auto LPG for the first half of last year, some of the
buses in Guangzhou have switched to using LNG as
the fuel and commenced running, leading to a slight
decrease in the sale volume of LPG at individual
refueling stations under the joint venture. During
the second half of the year, apart from reinforcing
the communications with the bus companies, the
joint venture also stepped up promotions to taxis in
Guangzhou and accordingly regained considerable
business. The joint venture is now speeding up its
application for the addition of auto LPG refueling
facilities at 5 of the refueling stations owned by
Sinopec with the aim of expanding its sales network.
Also, it will entice other small— to mid-sized vehicles
to have LPG renovation with the aim of creating new
demand and thereby stabilize the sales of the autogas
refueling business.
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3.2 Oil Products Business 3.2 HRmER

For most of the time in 2014, fuel oil sold by the
Project Company (please refer to the description
of the Project Company in section 1.1 Business
Segment — Oil Products Business) was mainly
exclusively supplied by a subsidiary of the Group.
During the period, approximately 790,500 tons of fuel
oil were supplied by the said subsidiary to the Project
Company for the use of marine bunkering in Hong
Kong. Since 2014, the Group has also commenced
the direct-sales and wholesale of oil products in
China and recorded sales of approximately 295,500
tons during the year. Sales of fuel oil by the Group in
Hong Kong and the China markets added to a total
of approximately 1,086,000 tons for the entire year,
representing an increase of 131.06% compared to
approximately 470,000 tons of the same period in
2013.

Marine Bunkering Business in Hong Kong

Purchase of Fuel Oil

Marine fuel oil supplied to the Project Company
(used by the marine bunkering business in Hong
Kong) mainly includes the two categories of vessel
diesel (commonly known as “red oil”) and vessel fuel
oil (commonly known as “black oil”). Red oil is used
by different types of small- to mid-sized vessels
operating within the Hong Kong waters, whereas
black oil is basically required by large vessels running
the international lines. During 2014, approximately
174,700 tons of red oil were purchased by the Group
for the Project Company, representing a significant
increase of 235.96% as compared to approximately
52,000 tons of the same period in 2013; whilst
approximately 615,800 tons of black oil were
purchased, representing an increase of 47.32% as
compared to approximately 418,000 tons of the same
period in 2018.
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Red oil supplied within the Hong Kong waters was all
purchased from major oil companies in Hong Kong.
Vessel diesel is called red oil as all vessel oil is added
with red liquid under the supervision of the Customs
as an identifier of duty-paid after being imported to
Hong Kong. The procedure of adding red liquid has
always been allowed in oil storage tanks onshore,
meaning that only oil companies with oil storage
depots at the terminals on Tsing Yi Island would have
the adequate resources to import, store and supply
vessel diesel. Up to date, we have no choice but
purchase red oil from these oil companies as our sole
purchase source.

The purchase source of black oil is more diversified.
Apart from oil companies in Hong Kong, we have
directly made purchases from Singapore during the
first half of 2014, and leased bonded oil storage
depots in the Pearl River Delta Region for storage
before supplying to the Hong Kong market. During
the second half of the year, we have entered into a
long-term supply contract with an enterprise owning
a terminal bonded warehouse in the Pearl River Delta
Region, under which the enterprise would provide
supply in prescribed quantities on a monthly basis.
This has helped to reduce the cost of leasing bonded
warehouses and therefore effectively improved the
profit margin of fuel oil sales.

Sales

During 2014, the Project Company continued to
carry out the marine bunkering business in the Hong
Kong waters mainly by two ways: (1) red oil — supply
of red oil to customers by a floating barge anchored
in Yau Ma Tei Typhoon Shelter called “NewOcean
3” (a marine bunker station with a fixed location)
and 4 small tank vessels. Major customers included
pilot vessels in Hong Kong, cruises anchored in the
Victoria Harbour, jetfoils of Cotai Water Jet sailing
between Hong Kong and Macau, ferries running the
outlying island lines, engineering ships and floating
barges in the Hong Kong waters, small cargo vessels
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and fishing vessels sailing between China and Hong
Kong, and the majority of fishing vessels based in
Hong Kong; (2) black oil — transportation of fuel oil
to big ships by 4 to 6 bunker ships of different sizes
by drawing up alongside the ships in the anchorage.
Major customers included import and export merchant
ships, container ships, tankers, bulk carriers, and
even foreign warships visiting Hong Kong.

Domestic Oil Products Business
Purchase of Fuel Oil

The Group only commenced its oil products trading
business in 2014, during which approximately
295,500 tons of marine diesel, automotive diesel, fuel
oil and industrial heavy oil in total were purchased on
the domestics market. Sinopec, CNPC, Sinochem
and CNOOC were the only companies with the
qualifications and capacities to supply gasoline, diesel
and fuel oil in the past, but given quite a number
of local refineries (mostly located in Shandong)
entering the supply chain, coupled with the gradual
improvements in the civic-owned oil storage facilities
in Guangdong Province, we were able to purchase
various oil products through different channels and
use warehouses at different locations for storage.
This purchase model allows us to purchase suitable
oil products or match oil products meeting the
specifications in accordance with the customers’
needs and enhance the effectiveness of the logistics
and transportation of the oil produces in order to
lower the trading and operating costs of oil products.

Sales

In 2014, the sales of oil products (including
marine diesel and marine fuel oil, industrial heavy
oil, and automotive diesel) in China amounted to
approximately 295,500 tons in total. The Group’s
aggressive exploration of the marine bunkering
business in China largely includes two categories:
(A) domestic trading — the Group positions bunker
ships within the fishing ports in Zhuhai and Taishan
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to provide duty-paid marine diesel to the local fishing
vessels. The Group has also obtained the approval
to position an oil barge (marine bunker station with
a fixed location) in the waters between Nansha and
Dongguan to provide bunkering (duty-paid marine
oil) services to cargo vessels entering and leaving
Guangzhou; (B) duty-free oil business — through
business cooperation, duty-free oil bunkering services
are provided to foreign ships berthed at the waters
of the Pearl River Delta Region using the duty-free
marine oil supply license owned by China Shipping
& Sinopec Suppliers Co. Ltd. At the same time,
the Group also leases oil product warehouses in
Guangdong Province and other provinces to facilitate
purchases and operates the fuel oil wholesale
business to nearby refueling stations, industrial
users and transportation companies using these oil
warehouses.

Logistics Facilities

During 2014, the Group continued to increase the
investments in fixed assets, expand the various
infrastructures and obtain the business licenses
quintessential to the chain of operation of the marine
bunker business (including the oil storage depot in
Zhuhai, the application of operating permit for bonded
warehouses and the acquisition of a number of bunker
ships completed and under construction). Under the
persistent effort of the Group, the oil storage depot
in Zhuhai finally obtained all the licenses in February
2015 for the official commencement of operation.
Subsequently, the Group has also filed the application
for bonded warehoused to the Customs of Zhuhai.
The said infrastructures and operating permit are
expected to bring synergies to the commencement of
the domestic oil products business and the promotion
of the marine bunkering business in Hong Kong. The
Group has been purchasing or constructing bunker
ships since 2013 and has been incessantly stepping
up its delivery capacity and efficiency. Currently, the
Group is equipped with a bunker fleet comprising: 1
barge of 1,700 tons, 4 bunker ships (1 x 270 tons, 1
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3.3

x 370 tons, 2 x 4,500 tons) and 2 bunker ships under
construction (1 x 2,300 tons, 1 x 3,000 tons), and 6
bunker ships under long-term leases (1 x 5,000 tons,
1 x 1,200 tons, 2 x 300 tons, 1 x 1,100 tons, 1 x 250
tons).

NG Business

NG Business of the Group is still in the stage of
building up end-point sales network. The Group has
long identified NG to be its important investment
opportunities going forward and have designated NG
business as the Group’s business direction for future
development. We have continued to endeavor in the
strategy of driving development through making end-
point sales, thereby accelerating investment in and
the implementation of expansion plan of NG business.

Promoting the organic integration between fuel
suppliers and end-users was the development
strategy of the Group’s NG business which created
a win-win situation under which advantages
complementing and resources sharing were
possible. We intended to cooperate with the end-
users (including bus companies, logistic companies,
transportation companies and large scale production
site or network that required logistic transportation)
for the establishment of joint ventures. Based on the
cooperation, LNG autogas refueling stations would
be constructed on the land supplied by the business
partners, and autogas refueling and related services
would be provided to the business partners or
transport vehicles which maintained close business
relationship with the business partners. By this way of
cooperation, not only the practical problem of finding
land for the refueling stations was overcome but
enormous end-users with substantive demand could
also be secured effectively. It was a development
mode having the advantages of low investment cost,
short construction period and high economic returns.

3.3
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As at the end of 2014, the Group has initiated two
cooperation projects as follow:

(1)

The Group and Shanghai Conch International
Investment and Development Co., Ltd. signed
a cooperation framework agreement to jointly
establish their first joint ventures Guangdong
Shenhai New Energy Company Limited in
Henggin New District of Zhuhai City, Guangdong
Province in pursuit of comprehensive
cooperation for the development of LNG and
other energy products. After Guangdong
Shenhai has achieved the planned results,
NewOcean and Conch would extend the same
cooperation mode to other suitable districts
across the nation for building a huge LNG
refueling station network aiming at providing the
most attentive refueling services to large-scaled
cross-country transport vehicles. Besides,
both parties would establish an associate
with Chongging Heavy Vehicle through the
joint venture in order to jointly invest in the
construction of LNG vehicle 4S shop, LNG
vehicles refitting factory, gas bottle inspection
station and LNG refueling station. This could
assist more heavy transport vehicles in joining
the gas-for-fuel program and secure more
captive customers for the joint ventures.

To set up additional LNG autogas refueling
facilities at not less than 6 existing refueling
stations of Sinopec Guangdong in Guangzhou
through Sinopec NewOcean Energy Company
Limited, the joint venture established with
Sinopec Guangdong. One such refueling station
has completed construction and commenced
operation in May 2014. The remaining 5 projects
have filed for construction and would commence
operation successively in the coming one to
two years. In the long run, the cooperation with
Sinopec Guangdong is expected to gradually
extend to 16 other existing refueling stations.
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4.

Apart from these two projects, the Group has
invested immense human resources to continue the
identification of other opportunities of cooperation in
different cities in Guangdong Province during 2014.
Negotiations related to such cooperation were smooth
and some of the projects are expected to commence
in 2015.

Business Outlook

In the next few years coming up, LPG business will
continue to serve as our business cornerstone to ensure
a consistent and lucrative income stream for the Group.
We estimate the profitability arising from LPG will continue
to increase in the short term; our oil business will be the
Group’s major growth driver on both revenue and profit;
and LNG is the Group’s future business direction to achieve
a long term consistent growth. We believe, due to our
sales network expansion, and our constant refining of our
logistical efficiency, the Group’s profitability will increase
going forward.

4.1 LPG Business

According to our estimation, a structural change has
emerged in the LPG market in China. It is undeniable
that the application of LPG as a fuel will gradually be
replaced by natural gas as its pipe network expanded.
However, applying LPG as a chemical raw material is
relatively new and there is plenty of room for further
development. In addition, it will not be replaced by
natural gas. Although there are no factors to boost
the need for LPG on the market, there are neither
factors diminishing it, therefore, the need for LPG will
not be greatly reduced.

In 2013, the Group has established a LPG business
strategy that emphasizes on quality rather than
quantity. We will continue to explore markets with
better profitability, with a focus on close collaboration
with production entities that apply LPG as a chemical
raw material in order to secure a large group of stable
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4.2

targets in the long run. In terms of our collaboration
with Sinopec Guangdong branch, on top of building
LNG autogas refueling stations, LPG autogas refueling
facilities are also added to the existing gas stations
of Sinopec, to provide convenience services for
more taxi drivers. For the development of our bottled
LPG business, we will leverage on the existing gas
station network of Sinopec to enhance higher delivery
efficiency, as well as the available land resources of
Sinopec, to build new LPG bottling plant in order to
compensate for customer loss due to shut down or
relocation of existing bottling plants.

The Group always has high hope in Hong Kong LPG
market, we will continue to devote more human
resources into the LPG bottling market, overcome
existing challenges and rapidly enhance market share.
We will strive even harder to capture opportunities to
enter the Hong Kong autogas refueling market with
innovative and practical business model, with an aim
to become a major LPG supplier in Hong Kong.

Oil Products Business

The Group has spent the past two years laying down
a sound foundation in marine bunkering market in
Hong Kong. As of today, bunker ships and marine
bunker station placed within territorial waters of Hong
Kong are enough for us to take up 60% of the Hong
Kong marine diesel market. In addition, the Group is
equipped with two efficient and high-speed large scale
bunker ships, which greatly benefits us in attracting
international bulking ship oil supply contracts. Sales
of marine fuel oil will be further increased in the near
future.

The two new 4,500 tons bunker ships are the largest
and fastest bunker ships within territorial waters of
Hong Kong. They have provided us with a list of
competitive advantages: (1) with this bunker ship,
we could apply diesel import and export permit from
relevant Hong Kong government authorities and

4.2
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directly import diesel from oversea countries and
directly deliver the marine diesel to our customers
from the bunker ship once they arrived Hong
Kong. This method of purchase allows us to stay
independent of oil companies and largely reduce our
purchase cost; (2) in terms of handling marine fuel ail,
our bunker ship is capable of performing various tasks
at the same time, including oil transport, delivery and
internal distribution. With these two bunker ships,
we do not have to rent bunker ships from the others,
which in turn would lower the operation cost.

In terms of developing oil products business in the
Pearl Delta area, (1) through our cooperation with
Sinopec, we supply bonded marine fuel to vessels
anchored in the territorial waters of China by way of
rental license; (2) we set up a joint venture with Conch
which engages in the provision of other traditional
energy products in addition to LNG related business,
including marine bunkering (provide oil to over 1,000
vessels of Conch in the sea), fuel wholesale on land
(provide fuel for Conch’s production base for its own
use) and acquire or build gas and oil station (provide
autogas diesel to large scale carrier vehicles in
Conch’s production base).

Oil storage depots and terminal projects in Zhuhai
have acquired all necessary permits in February 2015
and have commenced operation. They will act as a
major base for oil products business development
in the Pearl Delta area. The Group will actively set
up marine bunkering stations in the Pearl River and
Xijiang River, continuously perfect the storage and
delivery system in the Pearl Delta area, acquire or
establish bunkering network, to setup a complete
operating chain for the oil products business and
enhance the long term development of oil products
business in Mainland China. It is expected that these
establishment will bring us significant business growth
and revenue contribution.
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4.3 NG Business 43 NG¥¥

The Group has determined NG business to be its
development highlight back in 2012 and has selected
autogas refueling as its entry point. We strive to
establish joint ventures with a group of end users to
build and operate LNG autogas refueling stations, and
secure the group of end users.

Since April 2013, the Group has been seeking
cooperation with various large scale enterprises
including bus companies, transportation companies,
cross boarder logistic companies and mega
construction material base. Among which, the first
refueling station built by a joint venture with Sinopec
has commenced operation in May 2014. It is expected
that approximately 10 LNG autogas refueling stations
will commence operation in the next two years and
contribute to the Group’s revenue growth.

Apart from the cooperation projects that have
already kicked off, the Group has entered into other
cooperative agreements in 2014, including:

(1) establish joint venture with Guangzhou Xinshui
Bus Company, prepare to build 2 LNG autogas
refueling stations in the public bus stations of
Xinshui Bus Company;

(2) enter into cooperative frame agreement
with YATFAI Group (a cross boarder logistic
company), to build a LNG autogas refueling
station in a desirable location in Dongguan
through a collectively established joint venture;

(3) collectively establish joint venture with Zhuhai
City Gas Pipe Company Limited, prepare to seek
to build more than one L-CNG autogas refueling
station in Zhuhai;

(4) by way of a 20 years operation lease, invest,
build and operate a LNG autogas refueling
station in Shunde.

EER2012FE BNGEB T
BRENERTW - WIET/TEMNR
TEBE ALNGITEN AR -
M E Rl mEPERAEKEGER
A T LNGABE MR ER
s - A0 FE 58 DN b Y 450
BFE -

B2013F 4 8 E45  EEIETE
SRHEZRAHGERBELIQ
A BBAF - BRYRERERB
ABEMAEEMWS)NEIE - &
FHRERECAEENARATHAEN
F—ENMRWEEN2014F5 A%
RE - B ARRMERNBEH KLY
10 FELNG /R B NGk P B 18 A &
B REEMAFSRELER -

BT EREB M A EIR B PASH
B E 2014 F AR JTEW}E’J/\
tEhaE - B35

(1) HEMNFEESLQAERA
ERw BEEEFEE L
DA AR UL R R 2 FE
LNG In§h

2 EH—EVREE(FEBEREY
MR A FERWE
ﬂ%HZH%E'JAé’AT
REMAENEER

(8) HIBHMEEBEMRARA
BB ERR BRI
BHARMBERSDNE
L-CNG A E IR

(4) ATHE20F& LN T L
BN EERRREEE
LNG hn& ik




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #1/SsEREBHBR A A

Management Discussion and Analysis

BIRE 7w Mo

In addition, the Group is currently negotiating
with various companies regarding joint venture
cooperation, and intends to set up no less than
20 LNG autogas refueling stations in Guangzhou,
Zhaoging, Foshan and Shenzhen etc.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group derives its sales revenue principally in RMB, and
its cost of sales is mainly denominated in USD and RMB. As
a significant portion of the cost of sales is dominated in a
different currency from the sales revenue, the Group manages
its exposure to exchange risks through natural hedges between
purchases and sales and appropriate use of forward exchange
contracts.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At 31 December 2014, the Group pledged its oil vessels with
carrying value of approximately HK$94,110,000 to secure bank

loans granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed 1,166 (2013:
1,135) full time employees in Hong Kong, Macau and other
regions in the PRC. The Group remunerated the employees
based on their performance, experience and prevailing market
practice. Employee benefits provided by the Group include a
mandatory provident fund scheme, medical insurance scheme
and an employee share option scheme.
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The Company is committed to good corporate governance
principles. Its Board recognises that an effective corporate
governance framework and high governance standard are both
essential to the Company’s long-term development. Set out
below is the corporate governance report prepared by the Board
in accordance with Appendix 14 “Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report” of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 the Company
applied the principles and complied with all code provisions
as set out in the corporate governance code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 for the Listing Rules, save for a
deviation from the provision governing tenure of non-executive
directors mentioned below.

Provision A.4.1 of the CG Code provides that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for specific term, subject to re-
election. The Company deviated from this provision in that none
of the non-executive directors are appointed for a fixed term,
instead their tenure of office are governed by the provisions
for retirement by rotation and re-election as provided in the
Bye-laws of the Company. (These provisions are described in
the paragraph headed “Non-executive Directors” below). The
Board believes that the fixing of the tenure of non-executive
directors by way of provisions contained in the Bye-laws, and
the shareholders’ right to re-elect retiring non-executive directors
as contained in the Bye-laws, will serve the long term interests
of the Company. In the opinion of the Board, the measures
adopted by the Company are no less exacting than those in the
CG Code.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, all directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standard as
set out in the Model Code during the year.
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Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises six executive directors and
three independent non-executive directors. Biographical details
of all directors of the Company are set out in the paragraph
headed “Directors’ Profile” on page 4 to page 6. The current
structure and composition of the Board have provided it with an
appropriate mix of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity
and the Board reviews its structure and composition from time to
time to ensure that appropriate expertise and independence are
maintain.

Membership of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2014 were as follows:

Executive Directors

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

All directors have disclosed to the Company the number and
nature of offices they held in public companies or organizations
and other significant commitment, including the identity of the
public companies or organizations and indication of the time
involved. Managing Director Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence is the
son of Mr. Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company and a
cousin of Mr. Cen Ziniu, executive director of the Company.

The Board establishes the strategic direction for the development
of the Company and sets out the objectives of the management,
with operational decisions and execution delegated to the
management. The Board also approves annual budgets, major
funding proposals and investment proposals, and oversees the
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processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk
management, financial reporting and compliance. The Board is
responsible for the corporate governance functions of the Group,
including the development and review of the Group’s policy and
practices on corporate governance.

With the assistance of the company secretary, Board meetings
are initiated by the Chairman and all directors are consulted on
the agenda. Procedures are established for all directors to have
free access to board papers and related information, to review
the Group’s internal controls, and to have the services of the
company secretary to ensure matters are transacted in the Board
in accordance applicable rules and practices. Directors may seek
independent professional advice upon reasonable request to
discharge their duties. All committees of the Board have specific
terms of reference clearly defining their respective powers and
responsibilities and committee meetings are held as required
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under these terms of reference. All committees are required by
their terms of reference to report to the Board in relation to their
decisions or recommendations.
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The following table shows the attendance of directors at
meetings of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2014:

Number of Meetings

Name of director Attended
Exlg HESERE
Executive Directors: HITERE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) B (FRE) 4/4
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFAMHE) 4/4
Cen Ziniu EF4 4/4
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond R 4/4
Siu Ka Fai, Brian BRIB 4/4
Wang Jian FE 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUIHHITESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony K99 4/4
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict PR IB S 4/4
Dr. Xu Mingshe wEtIELT 4/4
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During the year, all directors received regular briefing and
updates on the Group’s business, operation and corporate
governance matters. They also attended training relevant to the
industry, regulatory updates or directors’ duties to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills as listed company directors.

Through participating in the Company’s board meetings and
committees meetings, and review of briefings and updates
on the Company’s business and affairs, all directors are able
to make contribution required from them to the Board and to
the development of the Company. The Company has received
confirmation from each director that he has given sufficient time
and attention to the affairs of the Company during the year
under review. The Company has also received from the directors
a record of training received by them during the year which is
summarized as follows:
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Type of Training

Name of director Attended
EElE HERZIER
Executive Directors: HITERE -

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman) BME(ERE) A, B
Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director) BB (EFLEMHE) A, B
Cen Ziniu SF4 A B
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond AR A, B
Siu Ka Fai, Brian eV A, B
Wang Jian FEX A, B
Independent Non-executive Directors: B ITESE -

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony SR A B
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FR B JE A B
Dr. Xu Mingshe RBHIEL A B

it -

Notes:

A Attending briefing and updates on rules and regulations related to

corporate governance law and practice

B Reading of material and updates on the Group’s operation and

finance and on the industry generally
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Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
are separated by written guidelines adopted by the Board to
ensure a clear division of responsibilities. The responsibilities
of the Chairman include leadership of the Board, providing
relevant information and mobilizing the collective resources of
the directors in the Board’s roles and functions. The Managing
Director is responsible for leadership of the management, and for
execution of business strategies and front-line execution.

Non-Executive Directors

As at the date of this report, three members of the Board are
independent non-executive directors. The term of appointment
of non-executive directors is governed by the Company’s
Bye-laws pursuant to which at each annual general meeting
one-third of the directors of the time being (or, if their number
is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
the chairman of the Board and/or the managing director of the
Company shall not, whilst holding such office, be subject to
retirement by rotation or be taken into account in determining
the number of directors to retire in each year.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board
has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the
definition of the Listing Rules.

During the year, arrangements were made for the non-executive
directors to meet with the Chairman without the presence of the
executive directors, to consider and discuss various matters in
respect of the management of the Company.

Board Committees

The Company has set up three Committees in accordance with
the CG Code, namely the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. In addition to the above 3
Committees, the Board has set up an Executive Committee
comprising all executive directors on the Board. Under its terms
of reference, the Executive Committee is responsible for the
oversight of the management of the Group and the formulation
of administrative guidelines.
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Audit Committee

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Audit
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Audit Committee
comprises all independent non-executive directors and two
executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Cen Ziniu

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the
objectivity and credibility of financial reporting and internal control
procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate relationship
with the external auditor of the Company.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the system of internal control covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. Through direct communication
and meetings with the management, the Audit Committee has
reviewed the financial reporting of the Company, including the
Company’s interim and annual reports, and the financial position
of the Company as disclosed in the financial reports, and it
has also reviewed the engagement of external auditors and the
effectiveness of the audit process.

The Audit Committee met 2 times during the year 2014 during
which the following matters were reviewed and discussed:

° Auditing and financial reporting matters;

° Appointment and remuneration of external auditor;

° Non-auditing work of external auditor;

° Financial reporting process and risk management functions;
° Maintenance of the Group’s internal control system; and

° Review of interim results and audited financial statements.
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Attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at meetings
during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REMS HESERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KEB(ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict FRABIZE 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe AL 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence A 2/2
Cen Ziniu BF4H4 2/2
Remuneration Committee FM=ERE

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the
Remuneration Committee, which are in line with the principles
of the CG Code and are posted on the Company’s website. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and two executive directors as follows:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman)
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal
and transparent procedures for developing remuneration policies
and overseeing the remuneration packages of the executive
directors and senior management. It takes into consideration
factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of directors and senior
management. The Remuneration Committee meets at least once
a year to access the performance and review the annual salaries
and bonus of the senior executives.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has assessed the
performance of the executive directors, reviewed and discussed,
among other matters, the Remuneration Policy of the Company
and its implementation. 2 meetings of the Remuneration
Committee were held in the year to review, among other things,
the remuneration packages of the Chairman, the executive
directors and senior executives.
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Attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:

REERFMEESBUME LFEREMT

Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
BENR HESERE
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony (Committee Chairman) KEB(ZEEEF/E) 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe AL 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence 2E 2/2
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond FH AR 2/2
Nomination Committee REEA®

The Company has adopted terms of reference for the Nomination
Committee, which are in line with the principles of the CG Code
and are posted on the Company’s website. The Nomination
Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors
and two executive directors as follows:

Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman)
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony

Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict

Dr. Xu Mingshe

Shum Chun, Lawrence

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the size, structure and composition of the Board, identify suitably
qualified individual for appointment to the Board, assess the
independence of independent non-executive directors and to
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of directors and succession planning for directors.
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2 meetings of the Nomination Committee were held in the year to
review and discuss the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and to assess
the independence of independent non-executive directors of
the Board. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed the
board diversity policy adopted by the Company in year 2013 and
their implementation, and made recommendation to the Board
on the appointment of directors. The Nomination Committee
considers that all Board members possess the relevant skill and
knowledge in the area of the business operation of the Group.
The Nomination Committee also considers that an appropriate
mix of skills, experience, knowledge, expertise and diversity on
the Board is maintained and therefore no measurable objectives
were proposed to the Board.

Attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee at
meetings during the year is as follows:
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Number of Meetings

Name of Member Attended
REM® HESFERXE
Shum Siu Hung (Committee Chairman) EVE(ZEESFE) 2/2
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony R 2/2
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict BRIBAZ 2/2
Dr. Xu Mingshe (Rl 2/2
Shum Chun, Lawrence R 2/2
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Corporate Governance Function

The Board does not have a Corporate Governance Committee.
The functions that would be carried out by a Corporate
Governance Committee are performed by the Board as a whole
and are as follows:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

° to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

° to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

° to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

° to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Company’s corporate governance policy is formulated
with an emphasis on transparency and accountability to all
shareholders of the Company. The Board strives to comply with
the code provisions and reviews its corporate governance policy
regularly in order to maintain high standards of business ethics
and corporate governance, and to ensure the full compliance of
our operations with applicable laws and regulations.
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During the year, all members of the Board have discussed and
reviewed, among other things, the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance. They have also reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional development
of directors, and the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as well as
its disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report. A code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors setting out the
standards of behaviour that the Company expects from them and
the guidelines on how they should handle different situations in
business dealings with the Group were formulated and adopted
by the Board. The board also established written guidelines no
less exacting than the Model Code for dealing in the Company’s
securities by employees of the Company, or directors or
employees of the Company’s subsidiary or holding companies,
who are likely to possess inside information of the Group.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and for this
purpose has maintained an internal audit function which is
internally resourced and forms part of the Group’s permanent
establishment. The management of the Company has established
a set of comprehensive policies, standards and procedures in
areas of operational, financial and risk controls for safeguarding
assets against unauthorized use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of
financial information to achieve a satisfactory level of assurance
against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

The evaluation of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control
is conducted by the internal audit function on an on-going basis,
and the responsible personnel will directly report to the Audit
Committee on any significant finding on internal controls.

The Board considered that throughout the year 2014, the
Company complied with the code provisions on internal controls
as stipulated in the CG Code. During the year the Company
conducted a full review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group and discussed the assessment bases with
the management. The Board considered that the existing internal
control systems of the Group are effective.
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Inside Information

The Company adopted a policy for disclosure of inside
information which sets out guidelines for the release and control
of inside information to ensure that the Company, its directors
and employees meets the obligations for the handling and
dissemination of inside information. A framework has been
set up to assess whether any particular information is inside
information, to ensure that any information considered to be
inside information should be kept confidential before the relevant
information is fully disclosed to the public, and to coordinate the
disclosure of the information in accordance with the requirements
of the Securities and Future Ordinance and. The Chairman, the
Managing Director, executive directors responsible for the control
of the Group’s operation and the Head of Investors Relations are
authorized as spokespersons of the Company.

Shareholders’ Rights

Rights of shareholders of the Company are provide under, and
are subject to applicable laws and regulations (which include
the Bermuda Companies Act and the Listing Rules) and the
Bye-laws of the Company. Set out below is a brief summary of
certain rights of the shareholders of the Company, which is for
easy reference only. The relevant laws and regulations and the
Bye-laws of the Company should be referred to for a full account
of such shareholders’ rights.

Convening Special General Meeting on Requisition

Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall have the right to require an special general meeting (the
“SGM”) to be called by the Board by written requisition, duly
signed by the shareholder(s) making the requisition and stating
the purposes of the requisitioned SGM, deposited at the
registered office of the Company.
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If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to convene
such SGM, the shareholders making the requisition, or any of
them representing more than one half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may themselves convene an SGM, provided that
the SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of 2
months from the date of deposit of the requisition.

Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Proposal may be made by shareholders in the form of resolutions
proposed at an annual general meeting, or in the form of
statements circulated to shareholders with respect to matter(s)
referred to in any resolution or matter to be dealt with at any
general meeting. Shareholders, representing at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights or not less than 100 shareholders, may by written
requisition request the Company to: (a) give to shareholders
notice of any resolution which may properly be moved at the
next annual general meeting of the Company, and which the
requesting shareholders intend to move at that meeting; and (b)
circulate to shareholders a statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the next general
meeting.

In the case of shareholders requesting the Company to give
notice of a resolution, the written requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office not less than 6 weeks before
the date of the annual general meeting. In the case of any other
requisition, the written requisition must be deposited at the
Company’s registered office at not less than 1 week before the
date of the annual general meeting.

In order to notify the Company at the earliest opportunity of
the deposit/intended deposit of a written requisition referred to
in the above, a copy of the requisition may be delivered to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong at 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong or email to cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.
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Proposing a Person for Election as Director

Procedures have been set up by the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws for shareholders of the Company to propose
a person for election as a director. Details of the procedures are
available on the Company’s website.

Contacting the Board for Enquiries

Shareholders may contact the Board for enquiries in respect of
the Company’s information, to the extent such information can
be made available to the public. Shareholders may at any time
make enquiry in respect of the Company in writing at our head
office in Hong Kong by post or facsimile via the numbers and
email address provided on the Company’s website or email to
cosecdept@newoceanhk.com.

Investor Relations

The Company has adopted a Shareholders Communication
Policy. The use and effectiveness of such policy will be
monitored and reviewed regularly by the Board. The Company
recognises the importance of shareholders’ privacy and therefore
will not disclose shareholders’ information without their consent,
unless required by law to do so.

To achieve equal access to information on the Company’s
latest major development, measures have been taken to
ensure all necessary information and appropriate updates
are made available to investors in a timely manner through
corporate communications and other corporate publications
on the Company’s website under the column of “Press Room”.
Corporate communications required to be given under the
Listing Rules, any applicable laws and corporate procedures
will be provided to shareholders in plain language and in
both English and Chinese versions to facilitate shareholders’
understanding. Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share registrar
in Hong Kong, Tricor Secretaries Limited at 22/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong. For enquiry about
the information of the Company, shareholders may contact the
company secretary.
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Shareholders are encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings. Members of the Board will attend to answer
their questions.

The Company has also posted its constitutional documents on
its website and there was no significant change in them during
the year under review.

Auditor’s Remuneration

During the year, the remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is set out as follows:

Services rendered
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Fees paid/payable

BRF54R it 2t EfER

HK$’000

FEIT

Audit services BT IRTS 3,260

Non-audit services FEE R 789

Total A&F 4,049
Accountability and Audit BEERERZE

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Group and ensuring that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The statement of the external
auditor of the Company about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 70.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2014.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group was
principally engaged in the sales and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products.

Results and Appropriation

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on pages 72 and 73.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK6.6 cents per share to the shareholder whose names appear
on the register of members of 5 June 2015 amounting to
approximately HK$97,706,000. On 16 March 2015, the number
of shares issued and fully paid is 1,480,398,216.

Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 192 of
the annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the year, the Group spend approximately
HK$101,722,000 (2013: HK$156,940,000) on property, plant
and equipment to expand and upgrade its LPG and oil plant.
Details of the movements during the year in property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Purchase, sale or redemption of securities

During the year, the Company repurchased 3,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 each at a repurchase price of HK$3.85 per
share through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”), details are set out in note 33 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors considered that,
as the Company’s ordinary shares were trading at a discount to
the net asset value per share, the repurchases would increase
the net asset value per share of the Company. None of the
Company’s subsidiaries repurchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s shares during the year.

Reserves of the Group and the Company
Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves during the year
are set out in the “Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity”

on page 76 and page 77.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders
as at 31 December 2014 were as follows:
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2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

T BT

Contributed surplus AR 1,667 1,667
Retained earnings IREE & H 187,641 101,948
189,308 103,615

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(@) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b)  the realizable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.
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Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout
the year ended 31 December 2014.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The largest customer of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest customers accounted for approximately 17% and
51% (2013: 17% and 51%) respectively of the Group’s total
turnover for the year, including discontinued operations.

The largest supplier of the Group by itself and the total of the
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 19% and 49%
(20183: 25% and 64 %) respectively of the Group’s total purchase
for the year.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of
a director, or a shareholder of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$3,000.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive directors:

Shum Siu Hung (Chairman)

Shum Chun, Lawrence (Managing Director)
Cen Ziniu

Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond

Siu Ka Fai, Brian

Wang Jian

Independent non-executive directors:

Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony
Chan Yuk Wai, Benedict
Dr. Xu Mingshe

In accordance with clauses 86 and 87 of the Company’s
Byelaws, executive directors Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, Mr. Cen
Ziniu and Mr. Siu Ka Fai, Brian, shall retire by rotation from office
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. All
directors retiring at the annual general meeting have offered
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No director being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office for each non-executive director is the
period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

At 31 December 2014, the interests of certains directors and
chief executives and their associates in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies, were as follows:

(a) Long positions of ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of
the Company

EERERTHRARIRKGREMKG
hziia
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MFE B8 ARARRA G REMBEXE 2K
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|

Percentage of

the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the Company

shares held FritZE 2 F
Name of director Capacity RSB 8T ERTRG
ERElE S EiEBRRRR Bigk
Executive Directors:
HITEE -
Shum Siu Hung Beneficial owner 49,842,358 3.37
21 En#EEA
Corporate interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.15
N RARERFFE (K1)
540,621,638 36.52
Shum Chun, Lawrence Beneficial owner 57,623,558 3.89
L EnlEEA
Other (Note 2) 73,616,892 4.97
b (Hit2)
131,240,450 8.86
Independent Non-executive Director:
BB TESE -
Cheung Kwan Hung, Anthony Beneficial owner 614,484 0.04
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Notes:

1. These represent the block of 490,779,280 shares beneficially
owned by Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”) which
were held as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, and
were the same block of shares as referred to in note 1 in
the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders” below.
Uniocean is owned as to 70% by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, 15%
by Mr. Shum Chun, Lawrence, and 15% by Mr. Shum Ho,
Neo, both are sons of Mr. Shum Siu Hung.

2. These interests reflect 15% proportional interest of Mr.
Shum Chun, Lawrence in the 490,779,280 shares held by
Uniocean.
Share options (b)
Exercise
Date of price per
Name of Director grant Share Exercise period
EENA SHAHY BRITERA TEY
(HK$)
(&)
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 16/6/2006 0.625 17/6/2006 -
AR 31/12/2015
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 15/5/2006 0.625 17/6/2006 -
EEN 31/12/2015
Note: The share options in this section are held by the relevant

directors in the capacity of beneficial owner.

Other than disclosed above and nominee shares in certain
subsidiaries held by certain directors in trust for the Group,
none of the directors, chief executive nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2014.
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Outstanding
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Shares RFRTHEZ
RN E i {2
6,626,905 6,626,905
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Share Options

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options during the year:

R

ARBZBREAEFHBHNG P BRE
BiFEa4

TRBEARD AR 2T -

Outstanding at 1.1.2014
and 31.12.2014

Category 1: Directors Option type 7 1.1.20147%0
o1 EE a5 31.12.2014 WK {THE
Chiu Sing Chung, Raymond 20068 6,626,905
AR
Siu Ka Fai, Brian 2006A 4,970,179
e

11,597,084
Category 2: Employees 2006A 9,940,358
RF2:BAT

21,537,442
Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures BEROBRERSEZRE
Other than disclosed above, at no time during the year was the M EXFTIRBEEN - AAA) - HIERA A

Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’/Controlling Shareholders’ Interests in
Contracts of Significance

Details of related party transactions during the year are set out in
note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, no other contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or a controlling
shareholder of the Company had a material interest, whether

f‘{g directly or indirectly in any contract, subsisted at the end of the
~year or at any time during the year.

B

e

e aasht

HAEMMERARRFAEME RSB ZE
Mz EARBEEAHREARTRE
A B A AR 2 D sk EZ MERS Ak -

EE RRERREXGHCER

FRAZMER HHBLENGRE M BRI
a1 e

B EXFREESN - AT - RERAFSHHE
FAMEMNBARYESEITIARBESERK
ERBRREZRXEENEPZEREANGEM
RAFERERIEFAERNTEHABRZ
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Connected Transaction

The Group had the following continuing connected transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2014:

On 16 May 2013, Sound Management Services Limited (“Sound
Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into an office tenancy agreement with Mr. Shum Ho,
Neo for the use of office premises provided by Mr. Shum Ho,
Neo located on 20/F., Times Tower, 393 Jaffe Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong at HK$80,000 per calendar month for a period of
one year commencing on 16 May 2013. On 18 December 2013,
Sound Management entered into an office tenancy agreement
with Ever Lucky Limited, a company incorporated in Hong
Kong and wholly owned by Mr. Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of
office premises owned by Ever Lucky Limited located on 23/F.,
The Sun’s Group Centre, 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong at HK$380,000 per calendar month for a period of one
year commencing on 1 January 2014. For the year ended 31
December 2014, the aggregate amount of the rental paid or
payable to Mr. Shum Ho, Neo and Ever Lucky Limited was
approximately HK$4,919,000.

The independent non-executive Directors confirm that the
continuing connected transaction has been entered into by
the Group in the ordinary and usual course of its business, on
normal commercial terms and in accordance with the terms
of the relevant agreement governing such transaction that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged
the auditor of the Company to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transaction in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued
its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions in
respect of the Group’s continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the
Stock Exchange.
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Substantial Shareholders EERE

As at 31 December 2014, the register of substantial shareholders B2014F12 A31H  BEARRKEBES
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the NEAE GBI 336 KA T AR L T ERRE
Securities and Futures Ordinance shows that other than the AR BRETESEREFETHAERE
interests disclosed above in respect of certain directors and chief XTI R 2 THREANEG AT
executive, the following shareholders had notified the Company BENARBEITRAZ BEAER AR

of relevant interests and short positions in the issued share
capital of the Company:

Percentage
Number of of the issued
issued share
ordinary capital of the
shares held company
Long/Short FRisE 2T Fiis &2 E
Name of shareholder positions Capacity ERTEER ERTERE
BERER we %e 213 ®HE BAL
Uniocean Long Beneficial owner 490,779,280 33.15
=3 A EmBEAA
Tong Shiu Ming Long Family interest (Note 1) 490,779,280 33.15
ENE e Kk (Mat 1)
Long Family interest (Note 2) 49,842,358 3.37
e Kkt (Hat2)
FFMC Holdings Pte. Ltd. Long Interest of controlled corporation 75,706,000 5.11
(Note 3)
e} REH N EERES (M 3)
Fullerton Fund Management  Long Investment manager (Note 3) 75,706,000 5.11
Company Ltd.
e WEKIR (K77 3)
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Long Beneficial owner and custodian 89,591,389 6.05
(Note 4)
e} BB ARREAHT4)
Short Beneficial owner (Note 4) 10,113,189 0.68

KR BEmEBAHE4)
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Notes:

1. This represent the same block of 490,779,280 shares held
as corporate interest by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms.
Tong Shiu Ming as referred to in note 1 under section (a) of the
paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and were deemed to be the
family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

2. These represent the same block of 49,842,358 shares held
beneficially by Mr. Shum Siu Hung, spouse of Ms. Tong Shiu
Ming as referred to in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Chief
Executives’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, and
were deemed to be the family interest of Ms. Tong Shiu Ming.

3. Fullerton Fund Management Company Ltd. as investment manager
is deemed to own a total of 75,706,000 shares through various
funds under its management. Fullerton Fund Management
Company Ltd.’s entire interest is indirectly owned by FFMC
Holdings Pte. Ltd.

4. The capacities of JPMorgan & Chase Co. in holding 89,591,389
shares (Long position) were as to 26,813,189 shares (Long
position) and 10,113,189 shares (Short position) as beneficial
owner, and 62,778,200 shares (Long position) in the lending
pool as custodian. The interest of JPMorgan & Chase Co. was
attributable on account through a number of its subsidiaries.

Emolument Policy

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided
by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics.
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Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.18 of the Listing
Rules

On 1 August 2013 the Company entered into a facility agreement
A for a term loan facility divided into two tranches: (a) an
aggregate amount of US$60,000,000 and (b) an aggregate
amount of HK$156,000,000 for the purpose of financing the
general working capital requirements of the Group. The loan to
be made to the Company upon utilization of the facility will be
repayable in instalments, with the last instalment falling due 36
months from the date of the utilization.

On 27 November 2013 the Company entered into facility
agreement B for a bilateral term facility of US$20,000,000 for the
purpose of financing the general working capital requirements of
the Group. The loan to be made to the Company upon utilization
of the facility will be repayable in 8 quarterly instalments,
commencing 15 months after the date of first drawdown.

On 27 November 2013 the Company entered into facility
agreement C for a bilateral term loan facility US$20,000,000
for the purpose of financing the general working capital
requirements of the Group. The loan to be made to the Company
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in 6 quarterly
instalments, commencing 15 months after the date of first
drawdown.

On 15 October 2014, Sound Agents Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a facility agreement for
a syndication loan facility of US$105,000,000 for the purpose of
financing the general working capital requirements of the Group
and refinancing of any existing indebtedness of any member
of the Group. The loan to be made to Sound Agents Limited
upon utilization of the facility will be repayable in 3 instalments,
10% of the utilized amount is repayable on the date which falls
24 months after the date of first drawdown, 15% of the utilized
amount is repayable on the date which falls 30 months after the
first drawdown and the remaining 75% of the utilized amount is
repayable on the date which falls 36 months from the date of
first drawdown.

BB LHHRAE 13.18 12 KR

R20183F8A1H ARBEERIm=H
A ASESE - REEESTERHT
HEXR - ZEEXDAEMIH  @QBSHE
60,000,000 7t X ; (b)# € % 156,000,000
BT RIBEERBZE  BETARAZERK
HREAZERESHEE & —HEX
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MR2013F 11 A27H AR A EFER W=
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EEEEE -
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Under the above facility agreements, in the event the Shum
Family (comprising certain family members and relatives of Mr.
Shum Siu Hung, Chairman of the Company as set out in the
facility agreements) cease to remain as the largest shareholder
and maintains less than 30% shareholdings of the Company,
the facilities available to the Company will be cancelled and all
outstanding amounts will then become immediately due and
payable.

As at 31 December 2014, the Shum Family beneficially own
approximately 40.41% in aggregate of the issued share capital of
the Company

Auditor

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board
Shum Siu Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
AV 2 CIE S

Deloitte.
Zan

s

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NEWOCEAN ENERGY
HOLDINGS LIMITED

MBEREFERERRAT

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 72 to 191, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that gives a true and
fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”), and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
Bermuda Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit

BBRERREBRAFERE

(REREZMH L BRAFE])

EERERINHEHNET2E191 BEFBRERE
BEERAR([EQARDEREFAR(SHEI&E
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2014F 12 A1 B 2R EMBMRREK * UK
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X RARREHREGEEERERER
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ESRGaMERRZAE

BERBIZEZTEARBHBEAG MRS RM
ZEBMEHRELREBRREDIF 622 F
(T&BRARGH D) 2 BERER R EEHR
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in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(] = N/
reEmMEMEE R EK
For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 531 HILFEZE
2014 2013
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
izt F#&iT FAET
Revenue 1 ON 6 19,633,037 14,433,446
Cost of sales $HE AR (18,255,810) (13,217,938)
Gross profit E7 1,377,227 1,215,508
Other gains and losses Hupris MES1E 8 (3,406) 172,945
Other income H AW A 8 248,534 149,757
Selling and distribution expenses SHE M H H (251,656) (275,045)
Administrative expenses T H (228,938) (226,353)
Changes in fair values of convertible — AI#EEAAFEZ
bonds Bl - (4,564)
Changes in fair values of derivative MEMBIARNTEZ
financial instruments oh s 19,083 (26,793)
Finance costs R E AR 9 (226,210) (206,640)
Share of profit of a joint venture DIE—REEEEER 1,713 1,127
Share of (losses) profits of associates D 5Hf & A 7 (&8 ) & F (14,129) 12,283
Profit before taxation Bk 35 A A 11 922,218 812,225
Taxation Bi1E 10 (21,312) (29,378)
Profit for the year F N Al 900,906 782,847
Other comprehensive income HAh 2 E W (ZH)
(expense)
ltem that will not be reclassified to TEENHEIERE
profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising AnE a7 REEE
on translation to presentation A VEHERE
currency 4,810 64,363
ltems that may be reclassified BEE Al pe e BT FE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmE AR -
Fair value loss on available for AIRHEREZ AT
sale investment (EYEi=! (37,503) (19,658)
Reclassified to profit or loss upon BEHE—TESEAA
the disposal of certain amount HHERERER
of available for sale investment DR EER 7,588 =
(25,105) 44,705
Total comprehensive income for the FARBEEEKE
year 875,801 827,552




Annual Report 2014 =Z—[MFF{

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
FeBm kARG

For the year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F 12 A31 HIFF/E
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B st FRIT FET
Profit (loss) for the year attributable to: E{EE RN (EE) :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE ZEDN 900,270 783,308
Non-controlling interests FEIE Il 636 (461)
900,906 782,847
Total comprehensive income EfhBeElas () ¢
(expense) attributable to:
Owners of the Company RATEE A 875,168 827,950
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 633 (398)
875,801 827,552
Earnings per share FRAF 15

Basic BEAR HK$0.61 #& T HK$0.55 7T ﬂ

Diluted #E HK$0.60 i#&T HK$0.54 % 7T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARe MIALR

At 37 December 2014
EZE2014F 12531 H

2014 2013

Note HK$’000 HK$°000
k3 F#ET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - Hes R EE 16 1,642,891 1,507,951
Land use rights - 3 5P R A 17 268,426 246,759
Prepaid lease payments for coast BEBENHERAE 18 8,527 9,403
Goodwill EES 19 668,139 296,060
Other intangible assets HEmEmpaE 20 417,720 342,315
Interests in associates N B R 21 71,766 306,327
Interests in joint ventures B ERER 22 19,969 11,893
Available for sale investment AIHEHERE 23 81,958 136,534
Deposits paid [EXNE&n 24 120,472 112,135
Deferred tax assets IRIEFIE & B 35 7,312 1,358
3,307,180 2,970,735
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 25 444,082 732,710
Trade debtors and bills receivable BWESERREREER 26 3,053,093 2,376,246
Other debtors, deposits and HEMERRER - ke &k
prepayments TEf IR 26 1,414,734 751,203
Amounts due from associates FEUR B &N B BRFK 27 342,586 418,965
Derivative financial instruments PTENKIA 43 1,222 1,313
Land use rights T+ b A 17 11,313 10,321
Prepaid lease payments for coast B ERMAERIE 18 872 872
Properties held for sales HAEEEYE 185,035 211,541
Properties under development FEERDME
for sales 28 224,936 208,218
Pledged bank deposits BRI TR 29 3,522,442 3,862,030
Bank balances and cash RITEHR MRS 29 1,738,621 1,747,612
10,938,936 10,321,031
Current liabilities mEAER
Trade creditors and bills payable ENEZERRENEE 30 1,378,694 2,173,145
Other creditors and accrued HENRR N EREA
charges 353,592 161,276
Amount due to a joint venture BN —REZBEZRK 31 509 509
Derivative financial instruments PTEBEIA 43 3,600 20,302
Tax liabilities M EE 49,369 40,770
Borrowings fully secured by pledged I E KRR TIF R EUE
bank deposits — repayable within REIBR — BER—F
one year NEE 32 2,469,373 2,876,760
Borrowings partially secured by EEEEE?EﬁfE TR EB D
pledged bank deposits FEREVEK
— repayable within one year — BR—FANEE 32 1,632,022 1,661,424
Borrowings secured by other assets I H & EEREER
— repayable within one year — BR—FRNEE 32 11,227 192,166
Borrowings unsecured — repayable EEIRIE K
within one year — HAR—FRNEE 32 2,126,914 1,352,309
8,025,300 8,478,661
Net current assets mENEERE 2,913,636 1,842,370
Total assets less current liabilities BEERIDE R 6,220,816 4,813,105
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A BRI R

At 31 December 2014

22201412 531 H
2014 2013
NO‘I‘G HK$°000 HK$’000
itz3 FHET FAET
Capital and reserves BE R
Share capital A& A 33 148,040 148,340
Share premium and other reserves B 0 (8 Fe H A {4 4,726,560 3,947,196
Equity attributable to owners of the RRBZHE AEN
Company i 4,874,600 4,095,536
Non-controlling interests FEPE il =S 31,184 21,261
Total equity B 4,905,784 4,116,797
Non-current liabilities FinEIAR
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAEE 35 131,147 144,031
Borrowings secured by other assets I H A EERHER
— repayable over one year — AR —FREE 32 41,631 =
Borrowings unsecured EEIRIE R
— repayable over one year — ARN—FREER 32 1,142,254 552,277
1,315,032 696,308 ﬂ
6,220,816 4,813,105

BEEEDN2015F3 A 16 BEM RIZREE3E
F2E 1N B2 ERAMKHREK WA TIE
EREXEE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 72 to 191 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
16 March 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Shum Siu Hung Shum Chun, Lawrence

Ly %8
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
HE #F
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RARSEEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 31 HIFF/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

EYNFA 1PN
Statutory Share Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation surplus Other  Retained controlling

capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests
i3 Eff

Bs BRER RRGE ERGE EREG RENGE REGE GARRE  RMGR  REEN R FENER

HKB000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKB'O00  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000
FéT  FET TRt 7T FEE TRt 7Bt AT 7Bt Pt TET 7T TP
(Note j (Note i)
) (ki)

M1 Janary 2013 520135
1A1H 130,586 711,250 122,085 36,220 143,746 5,663 - 1,667 (121) 1,417,314 2,568,404 16,572 2,584,976

Proft loss) for the & /F

ear (BB _ - - - = = - - - 783,308 783,308 (461) 782,847
Exchange RAERIR

diferences arising ~ E%EALE

on translation RER

to presentation

currency _ _ - - 64,300 = = - - - 64,300 63 64,363
Farvalelosson W HERE

avalableforsae  ATEEE

investment - - - - - - (19,659) - - - (19,65) - (19,65)
“ Total comprehensive EA2AUE

income (expense) ()28

for the year - - - - 64,300 - (19,658) - - 783,308 827,950 (398) 827,592

Incorporation ofa KI5 A3
subsidfary with ~ HRIER 2
non-controling ~~ HEAR

interests - - - - - - - - - - - 5,087 5,087
Appropriations Ak - - - 4,579 - - - - - 4.579) - - -
Dividend paid Bfiks

(note 14) (1) = = = = = = = = = (66,369) (66,369) - (56,369)
lssued of shares  RERE(T

pursuant o a ki3

placement (Hit33)

(note 33) 16,650 762,570 - - - - - - - - 779,220 - 779,220

Issued of shares R IR
pursuant to R
exercise of share  (#3233)
options (note 33) 1,104 7,719 - - - (1,920) - - - - 6,903 - 6,903

Transaction costs  ZfTRAER
attibutable to AR
issue of shares

(0572

(30,572) = = = = = = = (305572)

At31 December  R2013%
2013 128318 148340 1450967 122085 40799 208,046 3743 (19,659) 1,667 [Hon) 2130674  40055% 21261 4116797
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GAMSBEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

FORCHA AR
Statutory Share  Investment Contributed Non-

Share Share Special surplus  Exchange options  revaluation surplus Other  Retained controlling

capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve reserve reserve  accounts reserve profits Total interests
i3 Eff

s RAER GHEE EBEE ERES MBNURE SREE QARBE  RMRE  REE #He HaRNR

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET FET
(Note j (Note i)
(fat) (W)

Profitfor the year ~ EAEA] - - - - - - - - - 900270 900,270 636 900906
Exchange RiaE 5%

diferences arising ~ E%ELE

on translation HEE

to presentation

currency - - - - 4813 - - - - - 4813 () 4810
Fairvauglosson  AfHERE

avalableforsae  AFEEE

investment - - - - - - (37,503) - - - (37,503) - (37,503)
Reclassified to proft (&~

orloss upon e

the disposalof ~ REEEH

cortain amount of  HEFNER

avalable for sale &

investment - - - - - - 7,588 = = = 7,588 - 7,588

Total comprehensive ER2E4E

income (expense) (L)%

for the year = - - - 4813 - (29,915) - - 900,270 875,168 633 875,801
Incorporationof W3R

subsidiaries vith #2018

non-controling A7

interests - - - - - = = = = = - 9200 9,290
Appropriations & - - 5,851 - - - = = (5,851) - - -
Dividend paid Bfiks

fote 14) (1) - - - - - - - - S B B S s
Repurchaseof  EEEER(

ordinary shares  (#2233)

fote 3 B0 (11250) - - - - - - - — (11550 - (1550

M31December  R2014E

2014 1ANA 148040 1439717 122,086 46,650 212859 373 (4957 1,667 (127) 2,949,639 4,874,600 31,184 4,905,784
Notes: Hiat -
(i) The special reserve of the Group represents the difference between (i) NEB 7 RFEEREERGBEA R T K5
the share capital, share premium and capital redemption reserve of ZAREB R SREIEZERATIZER « RO %E
the Group’s former ultimate holding company whose shares were REARELHE  BANREE1999%F4 A
exchanged for the Company’s shares and the nominal amount of 14 i 2 B EELHt2MBETRHZ
the share capital issued by the Company pursuant to a scheme of EEZER -

arrangement dated 14 April 1999.

(i) The statutory surplus reserves represent enterprise development iy ZATBHBHEEEREREARLMBE(H
and general reserve funds appropriated from the profit after & |) 7k R R B 2 M B A a8 kR ,
taxation of subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic BENFORZCERER —REREES |
of China (the “PRC”) in accordance with the PRC laws and AL
. regulations. 4




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited 188 REBBR A &

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HAERESRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 531 HILFEZE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FEr
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEXE
Profit for the year F R A 900,906 782,847
Adjustments for: FHE
Income tax expense recognised in RIBREATERATSH
profit or loss 2 21,312 29,378
Share of profits of a joint venture DE—RKEEDLERT (1,713) (1,127)
Share of losses (profits) of DAL EEE N R E1E
associates CsF)) 14,129 (12,283)
Other finance costs Hth g & B AR 226,210 206,640
Interest income AEBA (231,229) (140,898)
(Gain) loss on fair values changes of {}Tiﬁﬁ%lﬂ’&$ﬁﬂ&
derivative financial instruments B2 (Fr5)E18 (19,083) 26,793
Loss on fair values changes of —Jﬁﬂxfa%? AT AERE
convertible bonds o= - 4,564
Gain on deemed disposal of WRAEHEHRE R R 2
associates Fri& (21,860) =
Loss on disposal of available for HEAHNERE Y
sale investment E518 2,528 =
Depreciation of property, plant and Y -  WBERREITE
equipment 85,182 72,856
Loss on disposal and written off of HE KM - #as
property, plant and equipment K& EEE 875 7,208
Amortisation of land use rights b {55 P AR 6 10,623 10,360
Amortisation of prepaid lease B ETRN SRR
payments for coast 867 857
Amortisation of other intangible HihfEp EEEEs
assets 27,050 27,458
Operating cash flows before LEETEPAI KL
movements in working capital ERE 1,015,797 1,014,653
Decrease (increase) in inventories GFERPGEM) 354,849 (25,511)
Decrease (increase) in trade debtors  JEIE 5 BRI fE W 2= 1%
and bills receivable R (380) 140,452 (298,985)
(Increase) decrease in other debtors,  EMEWERE « %4 NI
deposits and prepayments T 3RIE (380 ) Bk 4 (714,389) 431,829
Increase in amount due to a joint R —REEERIR
venture 30 - 16
Increase in amounts due from JiE Wi B 8 1 )R IR AN
associates (663,470) (281,881)
Increase in properties under RERREP LM
development for sales (16,695) (14,025)
Decrease in trade creditors and bills  FEfIE 5 BRN & 2%
payable VR (999,180) (1,102,908)
Increase (decrease) in other creditors ~ Efth fEBR R L EET & B
and accrued charges EIMNCHA) 52,396 (69,982)
Decrease in properties held for sales #7513 & W2 R 2 26,285 17,400
Decrease (increase) in derivative PTAER T Am A (38 00)
financial instruments 2,471 (29,977)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN AN =i — R 2%
,Zw y=| E/%i ==k
For the year ended 31 December 2014

EE2014F 12 531 HILFEZE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
izt F#&iT FEIT

Cash used in operations LTRSS (801,484) (359,371)
PRC income tax paid SRS (22,134) (38,383)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING {EZEKFARSBHE

ACTIVITIES (823,618) (397,754)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Interest received B HAE 158,602 89,206
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS B A F (2 3k

(net of cash and cash Friszie KER

equivalents acquired) HEIEE) 36 (125,786) —
Dividend received from an associate A5 A T ELUIR B 2,124 =
Addition of land use rights N Hb(E A (33,343) (18,936)
Purchase of property, plant and EEYHE MR RRE

equipment (149,580) (187,136)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits Uz Bl 2 K 4R 1717 7K 7,280,719 5,571,180
Placement in pledged bank deposits ~ ZH 2 EIRR1T1FK (6,947,814) (5,323,433) ﬂ
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEWE - #28 NERE

plant and equipment Fris 356 16
Proceeds from disposal of available HERHEERERF

for sale investment 22,133 —
Capital contribution to an associate mEEE AT HE - (62,322)
Capital contribution to a joint venture A& &R EHE (6,357) =
Loan advances to independent parties BT & 7 (233,600) (20,350)
Repayment of loan advances from B REEENR

independent parties 403,664 —
Increase in deposits paid EfTE&EM (79,652) (111,135)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RARAEFDELE(FRA)BRE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES B 291,466 (62,910)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

=AN AN =i — R
,Zw aiiE® //|u§2§
For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 531 HILFEZE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FEIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 55 5 B
Interest paid BERAFE (194,467) (174,898)
Proceeds from issue of shares RIBEE S BTN TS
pursuant to a placement - 779,220
Proceeds from issue of shares RIBFT AR EE TR D
pursuant to exercise of share Fri5
options - 6,903
Expenses on issue of shares BT = (30,572)
New borrowings raised EEMERK 12,918,917 13,689,428
Repayment of borrowings BEER (12,130,155) (13,163,521)
Dividend paid BRE (84,554) (56,369)
Payment on repurchase of ordinary [51 i 3 AR 1) 2 H
shares (11,550) —
Capital contribution from a non- RE—ME R E 8L
controlling shareholder of a BREREZEE
subsidiary 9,290 5,087
NET CASH FROM FINANCING MEETHELERESEHE
ACTIVITIES 507,481 1,055,278
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HeRERHAELER
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  (i#%)i8in:®# (24,671) 594,614
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EFg@#EzrE
RATE CHANGES 15,680 (43,145)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS S#R&ERSRARLER
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 1,747,612 1,196,143
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS SXR&RSRAHALEH
AT END OF THE YEAR 1,738,621 1,747,612
ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF HB&RERHRLER S
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank balances and cash RITEHR LB 1,738,621 1,747,612
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

1.

General

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate and immediate holding company
is Uniocean Investments Limited (“Uniocean”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The Company acts
as an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the sales and distribution of liquefied
petroleum gas (“‘LPG”) and natural gas (“NG”), oil products
business and sales of electronic products.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
(“BRMB”), the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the Group operates. For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements and convenience of the
financial statements users, the results and financial position
of the Group are expressed in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”),
the presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

— i

ARRB MR BREEMA L EHREE
REERR  ERNEETEHARHHM
BERAR(BRA]) LM - H&EER
HEERARRBEMERARAR(NE
1) —ERRBRELSEMKILZ A
Al e ARBDNREERAT - REEZ
TZEBREE RS HREAHRR
LR DERAR(TRAR]D)  HmES
MIHEEFEmM °

ARBZNEEBBARBIAR
Bl BAKBREMEEIREHERE
ZEE - RREE AV BRI KT EY
BRERERE  ARE 2 FERBBEN
AR T(TR T ]) (6 B mKR Ik
EB)RTR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A H

YAT 23
AR e B ISR R MY A
For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”):
Amendments to Investment entities
HKFRS 10, HKFRS

12 and HKFRS 27

Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and

HKAS 32 financial liabilities
Amendments to Recoverable amount disclosures for
HKAS 36 non-financial assets
Amendments to Novation of agriculture and
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge accounting

HK(IFRIC) - INT 21 Levies

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 “Offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32
“Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities” for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the offset of
financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off” and “simultaneous realisation
and settlement”.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group did not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset for the year ended 31
December 2013, the application of the amendments had
no impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements in prior
year. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
has certain financial assets and financial liabilities qualify for
offset based on the criteria set out in the amendments and
offsetting arrangement is disclosed in note 44.

ERHIREETEEMGREE
RI(TEEMBEEERD )

RAFE  AEEERERATEES
AR A ([HEGHEI A S |) B ZH
I REIERT R A HREED

BEMGEHRELER KEER
F105% - BB

B TSRS 2Rl

F12R KRB

B TR 2R

F 27 R AER] AR

BB 2R HIH B 5 & BE M
ER2H2MEFTAR  BAE

BB 2R FEM IS B EE 2 AT
FI6H BRI EEEEE
BB 2R BEZEBREH
FIFZIERTAR GRDEAZKEE
BE(BR0HES #E
“tREZEY)

— ZEE215

BRIAT Rt &Sl - MANFERAHE &
RIETEEMBREENHAKENA
FEREBEFEZHBRARMAR - &
SR ERAMBERRAB 2 REEE
WEBATE -

FROF RS 2Rz BATH [E8/M
BERERMEBAR

AEERAFEEREME LS LR
£ 32 2HER] AR 5B E R W5
BE]  BAGERFIR2RNETE
BABREMBEERMBABENE
ke RBEME  ABAEIERARE
BHOARE LA BT 2 i | R [
REBHRERGEE | 2HE -

ZEEFTEERPAE - AR AEER
HE2013F 12 A31 HILEEEHE
EREERERBENERMEEE RN
BEE EMZSEIIBTEHAEH
ARV BRRZEBERERZ SREIEK
FAIFE - HE2014F12 A31 B IEF
[E - RBEIIAFMHZIKE  AEEE
RUESERERENMBEERTKE
& o WIHLHE 2 F BRI 44 PR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A R ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE
2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong 2. ERAMITREETEEMEREE
Financial Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) A([EFEMBEREER ) (&)
(Continued)
New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective ERGEMNKRERZHITREETEE
M#iRE R

AREEY EIREFEEAATEB/MERK
ERZHAT REETEBHBREE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: 2l
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments' EBBEmEER BETA'
el
HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with ERPHBHRELEDR RKEEHARFPZHK
customers? F1558 %52
Amendments to Accounting for acquisitions of EBMBREED B ARCE R
HKFRS 11 interests in joint operations® ERR AL HIPN gahat
Amendments to Disclosure initiative® BB EHER] WEEHME
HKAS 1 FA1IRZIEETAR
Amendments to Clarification of acceptable methods BB gL Al 24T E RS
HKAS 16 and of depreciation and amortisation* FA6HRNES ARz EE!
HKAS 38 EETERIE 385
ZABETAR
Amendments to Agriculture: Bearer plants* BB AR BE : £EM4EY ﬂ
HKAS 16 and F16RREB
HKAS 41 TR 41 5%
ABET AR
Amendments to Defined benefit plans: Employee EEe:HER| AERMETE : B
HKAS 19 contributions® FA9SRZERTAR BHRC
Amendments to Equity method in separate financial BB AR LEAVAZ Y E o
HKAS 27 statements* EoTHRZEEIA @WK
Amendments to Sale or contribution of assets BEMGEHRELER] KEERHEBEAR
HKFRS 10 and between an investor and its F10HKEES AlAE D EN
HKAS 28 associate or joint venture* S:ERIFE 285 EZFALE"
ZABETAR
Amendments to Investment entities: Applying the BRI RELED KEERE:ERSE
HKFRS 10, HKFRS consolidation exception® E105% - BE BrRIBIIME R ¢
12 and HKAS 28 B 75 5 42 Al
FI2H KRB
GRS 28 57
ZAERT AR
Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs BB HREER]  P2010FF 2012
HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle® ZAERT AR FRE BB
EIRELER 2 F
IEf e
Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs EBMIEHREER] R 2011 FE2013
HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle® ZAEETAR FR 2 BB
B EER 2 F
FEokE®
Amendments to Annual improvements to HKFRSs BBMBWMELER RN2012FF 2014
HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle* ZAERT AR FRE BB

B2 F
FEBUE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2018, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is
permitted.

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further
amended in 2013 to include the new requirements for
general hedge accounting. Another revised version
of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include (a)
impairment requirements for financial assets and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a “fair value through other
comprehensive income” (FVTOCI) measurement category
for certain simple debt instruments.

ERHIREETEEMEREE
RI([EEMEEEER])(2)

ERBERRENZHTRIESTER
MBWMELER(E)

! MR20184F1 A1 A 2 B BHB ZFE
HARIAE SR - RFTIREEA -

? R2017FE1A1BR 2 BRBZEE
AR - RFTIREER -

¢ MN2014E7 A1 B2 BB ZEE
B AR - R FFIRTEIER ©

¢ M2016F1 A1 B K2 LRz FE
HARIAE SR - RFTIREEA -

® R2014FE7 1B 2 BRHBZEE
B ERR - BRERFIIMERIN - o 7F
PR -

FEMEBEENEOMR MBIR

72009 G M 2 BB IEREERE9
SO AMBEEDERFAEZHMBATE °
BER R 2010 F SR 2 BRI B R &
HRUFIORBEMBZAR IO ERE
REUEHR ZHE - WHR2013F & —
FEFTABIE— R PG A 25 R
e R2014F B 2B BT IEHREE
A 9% 5 — ELIEETMRAEZE A (a)
ERYEEEZRERER D)EAET
HEBEETASAIZBEEMEZEEA
ZAFEN(EBEMEARAZAFE
B8R HHoBERFAERTEIED
BRIEET ©
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For the year
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ended 31 December 2014
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

Key

requirements of HKFRS 9 are described below:

All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement” are subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding,
are measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair
values at the end of subsequent accounting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held
for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.

ERHIREETEEMEREE
RI([EEMEEEER])(2)

FEMBEBEENEOM MBIR
(&)

BV BEREENFEIR 2 EEHRTES
N

e EBREBEERFEIORIABT
H: HANGHEISEAZAAE
R BB EH BRI RRB KA
S RFEE - ABME - BAOR
WEENREREZ FHRAAAM
RA  KRANREREER/EENR
ERAREBERASMELENRZER
BE  —BRRERGTHRIZEH
FXAETE - 1B B R R E S X
RERERNEMBEEZ RHR
ATHEZEBLIE  UARHBE
EANGRTRBEERMEEZR
EREBMAB/XNAE RAREER
EZHNEMERTE  ZEBHEM
EEBAZAHERFE - FIEEAM
BEHRERBRAREHNERZH
HIRIR A FHERTE Mo REBEE
BB EERF N - B
AR E R R R 2 E ST
2 BRARE(LFFHEIEE S B
B)ZERRATERZS A —KE
FERmR P ERRBUA -
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For the year
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ended 31 December 2014
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2. Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk
in other comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS
39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity
to account for expected credit losses and changes in
those expected credit losses at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.
In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit
event to have occurred before credit losses are
recognised.

The new general hedge accounting requirements
retain the three types of hedge accounting. However,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components
of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
“economic relationship”. Retrospective assessment
of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s
risk management activities have also been introduced.
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 in the future may have impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities (e.g. the Group’s investments in equity
securities of listed company that are currently classified as
available-for-sale investment may have to be measured at
fair value at the end of subsequent reporting periods, with
changes in the fair value being recognised in profit or loss).
Regarding the Group’s financial assets, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a
detailed review has been completed.

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes
a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue
recognition guidance including HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS
11 “Construction Contracts” and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

o Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

o Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price

° Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation
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2.

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(Continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS
15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive
disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future will not have a material impact
on the amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors, the application of the other
new and revised standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective is not expected to have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies
Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rule”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of financial statement, which for
this financial year and the comparative period continue
to be those of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with transitional and
saving agreements for Part 9 of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which are set
out in Sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basic of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its return.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the
subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control
is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits”
respectively;
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 3. EFESHEEKE)

Business combinations (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements of
the acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS
2 at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if
any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss
as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may
be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable on the
basis specified in another HKFRS.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in
a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the
contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-
date fair value and included as part of the consideration
transferred in a business combination. Changes in the
fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments made
against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained
during the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed
one year from the acquisition date) about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value
of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance
with HKAS 39, or HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest
were disposed of.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), and additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date
that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised
as of that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less any accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may
be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment before the end
of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the
unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, an investment in associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the associate or joint venture.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate or a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that associate or
joint venture (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the associate or joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate or joint venture that are
not related to the Group.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Specifically, revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and delivered to the
buyers.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting policy
for leasing below.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purpose other than construction in progress,
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation and amortisation are recognised so that to
write off the cost of assets, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. For vessels,
the residual value of each vessel is equal to the product of
its light weight tonnage and estimate scrape rate.

Vessel components costs include the cost of major
components which are usually replaced or renewed at
dry dockings. The Group capitalises dry docking costs as
they are incurred and depreciated these costs using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
administrative purposes, the amortisation of prepaid
lease payment provided during the construction period is
included as part of costs of buildings under construction.
Buildings under construction are carried at cost, less any
identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when
they are in the location and condition necessary for them
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).

Properties under development for sales

Properties under development for sales are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises both
the land use rights and development cost for the property.
Net realisable value takes into account the price ultimately
expected to be realised, less applicable selling expenses
and the anticipated costs to completion.

Development costs of property comprise construction
costs, borrowing costs capitalised according to the
Group’s accounting policy and directly attributable cost
incurred during the development period. On completion,
the properties are transferred to properties held for sales.

Properties held for sales

Properties held for sales are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
live less impairment losses, if any (see the accounting policy
in respect of impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets below).

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGU, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of CGU for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

FEEHBEE)
ELEE
ERBEEHFRIBEHERE

EXBAMTRBEZBTLEELERED
iR AT REARNEERRZ AF
1B (AR R EL A ) HERR

BRFHZELEEERIIREREK
5 & AR AN (BB £ Rt # 35 ) RETRE
BiEXE2H - BRFMEBLEE
R AR {5 51 7 6 13 4 BR 5 R E &5 1B (10
B) RAERBHTERRE(J2E
TXERENEENREN EE ZRER
BEETBR) -

REEIZARRERREZRERR
(T8 EXZEBEBE)

EE2HRYPR - AREEFEHAERAE
REM AV EBTLEEZBERORE
BUBEAREBEERRE - fhREM
BRETR  SEAEEZRESEN
EEREBR(INE)EE o MEXAGE
EREE MO SHE  AEBES G
ZEEMBREELEM(BREELE
L)z ESEE - BRI iEERIERE
B2 REER  CREETDIKEME
BIREELEM BRI AIREREE
DIKREREERENEEZNIRELEL
RNREEABEMAR -

A] Ue o] & 58 A3 X P EUR BH B AR B
BELHZESE - FAEREER
RABBRAMBERBEARRAEARRE
RRRERME  ZUREXERREFITHS
A EREHERZEERAEHE
AKREREMFT AR FERR



Annual Report 2014 =Z—[MFF{

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B TS ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

B E2014F 12 431 ALEFE
3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to made the sale.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and
expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the heading of the exchange reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building for own use

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building element
of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “land use rights”
in the consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In
addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised in the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
and associates and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period:
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)
Deferred tax (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Where current
tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit cost

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets except for derivative financial
instruments (see policy below) are classified as loans and
receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and available for sale investment assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that
basis; or
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)
(Continued)

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL (including derivative financial
instruments) are measured at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the other gains and losses line
item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 45.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as FVTPL, loans and
receivables or held to maturity investments.

Equity held by the Group that are classified as available-
for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
equity investment are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to
receive the dividends is established.

FEEHBEE)
MBIRE)
MEZE(E)

REm KA FEFE ([RBmZ A FE
FE)ZHBEEE)

.+ HHAREREE ESALAE
AT AZ ANRBHH - HES
B ERIF0F 1 LB A OF
X (AER A HRARERE
AFAEHE -

RESEAFEFEZHMBEE(RR
MR ESERITEMBTR)IIEAF
BAE MEAEHMAEMEEZETMWNR
ERERER - NMERER 2 RAHE
BFRB RN E EE RIS AT HRER
ZHB - WAt AR E RERER -
NFETHRMIFE A Pt 2 JT R ©

AR ENBEEE

AHHEMBEEENEER/SIRDER
REBERBERAFEFEZHBEE - B
REWFRSFAEER R E

AEEBEZDERAIBLENBEE
ENEBRTSEBE 2 #S NS 2%
RN AFEEFE - JHEEERR
FEEZEFNEMEEBABERILR
REBMHBRT - ERMBEERD
EXEERGTRE BERNKEEM
EERT 2 Rt B REEH IR
ERm(ATXBEBMBEEREER
ZEFBRE) -

EAKEUER B 2 NI - AT
HERSREZRETINBRER



Annual Report 2014 =Z—[MFF{

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of AFS monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange
gains and losses that are recognized in profit or losses are
determined based on the amortised cost of the monetary
asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are
recognised on other comprehensive income.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period (see accounting policy on impairment loss or
financial assets below).

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables including bank balances and cash, pledged
bank deposits, amounts due from associates, trade
debtors and bills receivable, other debtors and refundable
deposits are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant on
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For loans and receivables, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financing re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
debtors and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments
and observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continueq)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade debtors and other debtors, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered
to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in
fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
investments revaluation reserve.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (other than derivative financial liabilities)
including trade creditors and bills payable, other creditors
and accrued charges, amount due to a joint venture and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognised on an
effective interest basis.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives (including embedded derivatives which are
not closely related to the host contracts) that are not
designated as hedging instrument are classified as held for
trading.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date the derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end
of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when they meet the
definition of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are
not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not measured at fair value through profit
and loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit
or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustments to
share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the management are required to
make estimates about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

FEEHBEE)
MBIRE)
REERLRIBERZZHXS

ERERB 2 AFESEZEREL BHM
RHBERE 2 AFEETE - MERER
BB A YRR NS (BR
e ) °

REBYPR - ARBEFTHAFT AR
REBBREHE - BBHRERR
KEFHENFEME)  EBETP
MR - RIS RREERT &
B YHBERFHEELEERE -

RITERRER - LER B AR
RZFERBARNGE - EEBRED
KRB B HR WS Em B EDRTT
BB - DATE IO RE AR A o A AR 2 BOR
BARB A

HHTRERZERRE

R RS 2 A & B & 5 B3R
hoEREANEAKBBCEERR
BEREEEL G - ZFE AR
BREDENBELR L HEMKRSERA
ZHEFEEL - EEAERABEEZE A
HHl

ZEHRBBZBRE TR - 8
SEHERHEL Z BRI EH B ELE
R ME(ERETEFEZ PR HE
IR R AR RBE(EZRETZERE
R RRERTE) T IARERR ©



Annual Report 2014 =Z—[MFF{

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

4.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible
assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets
relating to the sales and distribution of LPG/oil products
business and acquired in a business combination are
impaired that requires estimation of the recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less cost to sell and value in use. The group performed
impairment assessment by estimating the value in use of
the cash-generating units in which the goodwill and the
intangible asset are attributable to, which approximately
the fair value less cost to sell. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. The discount rate represents the rate that reflects
the current market assessment of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the future
cash flow estimates have not been adjusted. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected or where
there are revision in future estimated cash flows due
to unfavourable changes in facts and circumstances, a
material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2014, the carrying amounts of goodwill and other
intangible assets are approximately HK$668,139,000 and
HK$417,720,000 respectively (2013: HK$296,060,000
and HK$342,315,000). There was no impairment loss
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
2013. Details of the goodwill and other intangible assets
are disclosed in notes 19 and 20 respectively.
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4. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Estimate of net realisable value of properties under
development for sales and properties held for sales

As at 31 December 2014, properties under development
for sales of approximately HK$224,936,000 (2013:
HK$208,218,000) and properties held for sales of
approximately HK$185,035,000 (2013: HK$211,541,000)
are stated at the lower of the cost and net realisable value
respectively. The estimated net realisable value represents
estimated selling price less selling expenses and estimated
cost of completion which are estimated based on best
available information. Where there are any decrease in the
estimated selling price arising from any changes to the
market conditions in the PRC, there may be impairment
loss recognised on the properties under development for
sales and properties held for sales.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings as disclosed in note 32, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, share premium, reserves and retained
profits.

The management of the Group reviews the capital
structure on a continuous basis taking into account the
cost of capital and the risk associated with the capital.
The Group will balance its overall capital structure through
new share issues, payment of dividends and the raise of
bank borrowings or the repayment of the existing bank
borrowings.

The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the
year.
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REmpBER

AEEEARNEEARRERARER
EEBKAINFETALE  ANEB
HEFOAGEEEABRRRT RS
REH - NEE 2 BREKME FFER

R -

AEBEARBIHEBERFBR(EER
MIES2 B 2 fE5K) R AR R EAE AR
EHEDZ(BEEETRA - ROEE -
{5 B AR BB M) BT ARLRKC

AREERERH RASNARRAAR
BH2BRBER T AARE - AEHE
BB TR © R R M ARAT
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Categories of financial instruments

RERRETERMBIA S

MBEIRZER

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’'000
FETT FET
Financial assets MBEE
Loans and receivables (including cash ~ EF & EWFHIE(BER S
and cash equivalents) FERIREER) 8,912,994 8,802,538
Available for sale investment AEHERSE 81,958 136,534
Derivative financial instruments PTHEFMKEIA 1,222 1,313
Financial liabilities HMBAE
Amortised cost BIHR A 9,105,046 8,918,165
Derivative financial instruments PTESFT A 3,600 20,302
Financial risk management objectives and policies HMERSEEEEERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank
balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, trade debtors
and bills receivable, other debtors, deposits, available
for sale investment, amounts due from associates, trade
creditors and bills payable, other creditors and accrued
charges, amount due to a joint venture, borrowings and
derivative financial instruments. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

AEEZFENBITEBEBRITERR
B BERRITER  BEESER
NEWERE EMEWERR - %S 7
HHERE - BUBEARRE BN
EHERLENRE - HMEMERRE
EFTER  BNAZLERE  BXK
TEFBITE -REMBTAZFEFBR
EMERE - TXHINEZFHHTA
BRZERRMAREZERR 2R
R-BEEBEEREZEZSRAR - AW
R R B M B RO SRBUE S 2 FE i

&S
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥XEREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk e mEE
(i) Currency risk 0 EEELRE

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign RARHTFHIB R R A AINESHE
currency sales and purchases, which expose the ZEE  SAEBAZINERE
Group to foreign currency risk. Certain trade debtors, REEE TRIKE SR - RITE
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and HERE - BMAFRT 7f_a->k &
borrowings of the Group are denominated in foreign 2 AONETEB (BB 2RI
currencies as disclosed in notes 26, 29 and 32 5126+ 29 M 32 FE) ©
respectively.

AEBINEIIECEREERE
BRERZHPRZREEDT

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities
afs
2014
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ir FET F#EiT FET
United States Dollars =

(“UsSD”) E)) 11,852 29,170 856,150 985,122

RMB NG 2,682,202 2,788,452 - -
During the financial years, the management has =y: ﬁﬁﬁlir EEED RN
entered into several derivative contracts to reduce the METEGHREERRR 2
exposure of currency risk. As at 31 December 2014, 2. N2014F12H318 - A&

the Group has outstanding cross currency interest
rate swap contracts with an aggregate notional
amount of approximately USD84,282,000 (2013:
USD153,150,000) in relation to RMB. The details of
the derivative financial instruments are disclosed in
note 43.

4% 5 & 5B H984,282,000F T Z
MAGEEARBIBENREHEL
(2013 : 153,150,000) ° £T 4 B #§
TEREZHBERM 43R -

'i!gnﬂl!-qg lnt i “‘M

‘,,m.awiﬂ'“ L e
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(1)

Currency risk (Continued)

In addition, a number of subsidiaries of the Company
with functional currency of USD/HK$ have intergroup
balances that are denominated in RMB or verse visa,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

Sensitivity analysis

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged with USD,
the currency risk is mainly arising from exchange USD
against RMB and RMB against USD. The following
table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in USD against RMB and a 5% increase
and decrease in the RMB/USD spot rate and forward
exchange rate. 5% represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in the
RMB/USD exchange rate and the RMB/USD forward
exchange rate. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and derivative financial instruments and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rates or their
fair value at the end of the reporting period for a
5% change in forward exchange rate. For monetary
assets and liabilities, positive number below indicates
an increase in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen
5% against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances
below would be negative. For derivative financial
instruments, a negative number below indicates an
decrease in post-tax profit where RMB strengthen 5%
against USD. For a 5% weakening of RMB against
the relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit and the balances below
would be positive.

REARTERMBIA S

MERREEARRBE(Z)

mEmE(E)

()

BB (&)

SN - RRRBBEIAET, BT
RUMEEEZHBLR - AEERH
REHBAARBIEREEEER <
REBASZINE R

BURE DM

HRRBTZEREE T §

REFrEREETHIARERAR
B HIETT o TRFIIAEBERT
HARE EFARTB®RE% RARE
SELREERRPER FA KT
B5% 2 BRLE - 5% KR EHEE
HARE ErTERRARE, E
ToiR BIE R 2 S IB ] ge B AL o
BREDMEBIEREHE 2 AINE
ﬂﬁﬁaﬁﬁiﬁﬁlﬂ'iﬁi

WERE E BB 6% EXRE
2R FREBMREEATE

YEW 5% = BAIE R & B) 2 FHE - 5h
E¥EERBEMS  WAREL
ETT 5% - BT EHRRER
g m Mg - MARBHLEHEE
ﬁ‘g_ﬁﬁ%f}% El/\%j/ﬁﬁﬁjﬁi*a—r
iRz #2  BUTEHERBREREE
H o RPTEMBTAMS F AR
B EITT EF5% 0 Bl N B H XK
TRBEETRD - MARBHE
BEBTKSY%  AlgafEE
HERERZZE - BUATESRK
RIEE o
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥XEREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmEE(E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) ()  EEEkEE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (E)

USD impact RMB impact
E P 4 ARBRE
2014 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FEIT FET FEIT
Increase (decrease) F A E F) 3 AN
in profit for the year CR)
(Note) (Hiat)
— monetary assets — EBEER
and liabilities af&E 35,268 44,118 122,357 123,031
— derivative financial — PTEMTE
instruments THA (955) (6,393) - —
Note: This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding Kl EXEERNEREETHKARK

on bank balances, receivables and borrowings
denominated in USD or RMB and derivative financial
instruments as at year end.

FEZRERBITES  BUER
RRAEFARPTEM S T AR
Z g o

The following table details the sensitivity to a 5%
increase and decrease in USD/HK$ against RMB in
respect of the Group’s foreign currency exposure on
intergroup balances. 5% is the sensitivity rate used by
the management in the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated amounts due between subsidiaries of
the Group and adjusts its translation at the year end
for a 5% change in RMB rates. A positive number
below indicates increase in post-tax profit for the year
where RMB strengthens 5% against USD/HKS.

AR B 7 & E R AR T 2 I
EEEmE - TRFHHFETBILR
ARE EFARTERE% 2 RRE »
5% BEEENHERSIER L
BFRA AR R - ERRESNT
EREASENBARZEAAR
METEZAEEREKESEE  TRF
REEMEEL 5% A RIEERE
AT - MARKENIET, BT
EF5% 0 BN T EHERRERNG
i 1% 5m A3 0 o

ST “""W‘M

"’U'A\

i

'&E

“
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. EFXRRETERMBIAE)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERSEEARRBE(Z)
(Continued)
Market risk (Continued) mEmE(E)
() Currency risk (Continued) ) EEEEE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (&)
For a 5% weakening of RMB against USD/HK$, there MARMBEET, BT TH%
would be an equal and opposite impact on the post- H'@‘%’TMT@WI‘?%?&%WEE*E
tax profit for the year below: ERBERCTE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAEiT FAET
Increase in post-tax profit for the year 4 A4 1% ) 1|3 A0 104,114 68,157
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is EBERE  ARERRRY TR
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange MERNZERE @ SBRESTL
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the KRERBGINERD o

exposure during the year.

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIEE R
The Group’s bank loans have exposure to cash AR ITHmS A E B 2% BIRTT
flow interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the {ﬁ,j—))\Zﬁii%ﬂJ‘_'L}\)ﬁ@J C NEBE 2R
prevailing market interest rate on variable-rate bank TEZTEReR=ENXAR -

loans which charge interest at prevailing market rates.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

In addition, the Group has exposure to fair value
interest rate risk through the impact of the rate
changes on pledged bank deposits and borrowings
which are at fixed interest rates. As at 31 December
2014, the loan receivable included in other debtors
exposed to fair value interest rate risk as the loan
receivable bore at fixed interest rate. The Group’s
fair value interest rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate borrowings (see note 32 for details of these
borrowings), loan receivable included in other debtors
(see note 26 for details of loans receivable) and
derivative financial instruments including pay fixed
and receive floating interest rate swaps. The purpose
of the Group to enter interest rate swap is to reduce
the cash flow interest rate risk but does not fulfill the
hedge accounting requirement.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest
rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
London Interbank Offered Rate (“‘LIBOR”) and Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) arising from
the Group’s variable-rate borrowings and partially set
off by the derivative financial instruments including
pay fixed and receive floating interest rate swaps.

REARTERMBIA S

MERREEARRBE(Z)

mEmE(E)

(i)

= E Bz (B

gEAN - FI R E T E BB IRIRTT
GREEZTERTE  AttAsE
EAERAYAFENERRR - R
2014512 A31H AR EWRE
FIREE R RS - MET AR E
U BR 5% 2 FE W B SR ] A B F)
KR - AEBZ AFENERR
FESRTBERGZEE/RZEF
1B A MFE32) « s AE M EIER
RZERER(ERERZFEFR
BHtzE26) MOTAM BT E B3
EB I KFEWEURE - NEM
FINFRBH 2 B ERERSR
SEFRER - B FEE RS

B3R o

AEEZHBRENRRERFEH
RAMERBESRBREE &
AEBZRERENERAREIESE
TRAKEFEEBRELEZRHA
RITAZFE(RBBRTRER
BNEBERTAZFRB(NEE
RITRERE ) Z KB WRITE
MHTA(BRERXMNRFEK
B iR ) #5085
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. EXRRERRMBEIAZ)

Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)

(Continued)

Market risk (Continued) mEmEE(E)

(i) Interest rate risk (Continued) (i) FIEERE(E)
Sensitivity analysis BRRE DT
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined VAT 8RR E 7 4T T i0% B e R &
based on the exposure to interest rates for variable- BB (TR EHEITET S T AR
rate borrowings, excluding the exposure from the EE?ZH&??EWHXEHE)Tfifﬁz
bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial RITEREAR)ETE - T HRE
instruments including pay fixed and received floating REFRARKREEZEBRSTERNE
interest rate swaps. The analysis is prepared FHREEMEL - S0HESZ
assuming the amount of outstanding balances at the ERRKRERBHME 2 5126
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the BEEL 2 5T o

whole year. A 50 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/ i FI R R 50 EE 2 AFrA H
lower and all other variables were held constant, the AR =RFTE  NEEE
Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 E2014F12ANBHIEFE 2R
would decrease/increase by HK$15,914,000 (2013: R 5 5m A 1IN 15,914, OOO%TE
HK$11,123,000). This is mainly attributable to the (2013 : 11,123,000/%8 7T ) °
Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable- %EEEA$‘§IZH'—ufETﬂ%§’KE%
rate bank borrowings, excluding the exposure from MERR(TEEHITETE IR
the bank borrowings offset by the derivative financial (BFEE B RF B EE 5 1K
instruments including pay fixed and received floating $H 2 RITEFRRERR) -

interest rate swaps.
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial BEFRREERMBEIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Credit risk EEmE

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The Group has
significant concentration risk on certain customers and the
loan advance to an entity.

As at 31 December 2014, the top ten largest trade debtors
amounted to approximately HK$2,348,751,000 (2013:
HK$1,845,631,000) and comprised around 78.0% (2013:
85.2%) of the Group’s trade debtors. The following table
shows the analysis of the top ten largest trade debtors by
their business nature and location etc:

MN20145E12 831 H - @‘%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ
EMEAEESIUBBEIZESREE
BB 2R B & B 5 ?éﬁﬁ%ﬂkﬂﬁﬁwuz
ERRAVBEEZREE - NEBEE—
EERA—RERIRHEZER A
BAZERRR -

R20145E12 A31 H » E10A & A JE I
E 5 BR T4 £ 2,348,751,000 7 7T (2013
1,845,631,000%70) * (G AE B EWE
ZEEFA78.0% (2013 : 85.2%) ° NRE
RE 10BN E S ERRA L EEIEE M
& 2 AT -

Customers included in the top ten individual largest trade debtors

SREEETRENRXELEAERCER
Number % of the total trade debtors Location
8E RELREAEREIN HE
2014 2014 2013 2014
Sales of LPG BERIER 5 9 52.9 743 PRC, PRC,
Thailand Thailand
and and
Overseas Overseas
PE RER TE ZER
o A5
Sales of oil products HERR 5 = 25.1 - PRC, HK and =
Overseas
TE - FERES
Sales of electronic products  HEBFER - 1 - 109 - Thailand
R
10 10 78.0 85.2

. " Wﬂ.“nggm

= ,——-A“
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5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Most of the customers of the Group are large wholesales,
trading or shipping companies in the PRC, Hong Kong
or overseas. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group is responsible to implement
credit monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade debtors, other debtors and deposits at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ranking assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Equity price risk on available for sale investment

The Group’s available for sale investment as disclosed
in note 23 are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2014. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period. A 15% (2013: 10%) change is used when
reporting equity price risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in equity price. For the
year ended 31 December 2014, if the market bid prices
of the listed investments had been 15% (2013: 10%)
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s investment valuation reserve for the year
ended 31 December 2014 would increase/decrease by
HK$12,294,000 (2013: HK$11,401,000). This is mainly
attributable to the changes in fair value of the listed equity
investments.

REARTERMBIA S

MERREEARRBE(Z)

ERmRE(E)

AEBAFNELHHE - FE LS
Ttt%’* BHIMBE AR - BHREEER
CAREEEBAEREITEEEER
F AR (R BREUBR #E 17 B 2R U [ 38 HA Ak
Ko BE AKEE2HEKR €205
i A M 5l 2 FEUCE 5 Rk 0~ o e IR
KRB 2 HERER - ARRENR
BEME 2 FRIREH B 5 2 B ERETE

BRRF5EFH BB :f”f?ﬁ&%%%%
Eﬁﬁ{:f)ﬁ;$£&2fﬁ //\L@Jﬁiz
EERBAR o

A (A H B 1 R 2 (R I B

AREBE 2 Al HERE (A 235 )
JiiR 2014512 A31 B Z A FEE -
At AEBEEHERERRR -

HEE DT

TP 2 8RR E o 4T T iR ik 2 3k B
RATEAR 2R FW‘L&A%mow%
(2013 : 10%) 2 EBAR KNI MEE
BEABEBREERERREAR I&HQQE.
HEHERERA Al EE) 2 5T -
REZE2014F12831H IEFE + §
EWREZWHEG LR, TEK15%
(2013 : 10%) K& FT B E fth & S 4 35 1
B BIAKSBERE E2014F12 A 31
BItFEZRESHFEBREN R
12,294,0007% 7£(2013 : 11,401,000 7%
L) WHEEHAR EMESEEATF
BEEBFTH -




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/8EREBARA A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A

B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

5.

Capital Risk Management and Financial
Instruments (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has undrawn short
term borrowing facilities amounting to approximately
HK$11,273,631,000 (2013: HK$9,511,392,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities.
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derive from interest rate carries at the end of the
reporting period.

In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
net cash outflows on derivative instruments that settle on
a net basis. When the amount payable is not fixed, the
amount disclosed has been determined by reference to the
projected interest rates as illustrated by the yield curves
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments
are prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash
flows of derivatives.

REARTERMBIA S

MERREEARRBE(Z)

BB AR

Eﬁf@//wﬁjéiﬂ HTir ’ K%Eﬁ*?g&
REEEEAREHAZRCRERRS
BEHE UAREEZ XKL ERH
B UWRBHESRERD IFE - B
BEAERITERZER BN M EREST
1 KL o

MR20145F12 A31 H » REE 7 KRR
EHAIE (B4 A11,273,631,000 4 7T
(2013 : 9,511,392,000787T) °

TRAVWNAEBIFETEMNBEBEZRT
BB EREAR o TRIVERATEER
AEEVMBABsEFTHBRZRTRE
enEmMmRE - TREEMNERAE 2
Eﬁéﬁ/}\bi A B R =R OZ B FIRGT
& AIRBAIA S A Z MEIR 2 B R 3
o

AN s TREIASETEMBITAZ
MBES DI - ZREBBENFELHE
ZOTHETAERBBAENRES R FER
2o FEMNFIBWIEB TR  FTFEES
HO2ZENERARCWEHEMER
ZTEAEEE  c AEBETEMB TR
ZRBESSMNIERAENEPAR
2 RASEEERAEANI AR
BOTAETE R RECHHEEHE
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. R¥XEREERMBIAZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies BERBEEEERBEZ)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBELmRE(E)

REBE T RFFmBEZ

Liquidity and interest risk table

Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2014
interest rate Within Over 2 years to cash flows R2014%
mEFy 1 year 1 year 5 years HREH 12A31H
ERfE 15/ 15 E 2EE5E ReRE ZEE{E
% HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
% FET FET FET FET FET
2014 2014
Non-derivative financial ~ JEFTABIEE
liabilities
Trade creditors and ERESERR
bills payable S - 1,378,694 - - 1,378,694 1,378,694
Other creditors and HiEMAERR
accrued charges g - 333,721 = = 333,721 333,721
Amount due to a joint EN—%45%
venture ¥R - 509 - - 509 509
Fixed interest rates EBEH
borrowings 1.84 2,982,023 - - 2,982,023 2,955,965
Variable interest rate FEER
borrowings 2.78 3,339,220 426,210 800,361 4,565,791 4,467,456
8,034,167 426,210 800361  9,260738 9,136,345
Derivatives — net fTETR - £8
settlement ik
Cross currency interest XX EEF|E
rate swap/interest 88 /F|%
rate swap outflow =X hoh - 2,018 360 - 2,378 2,378
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial 5. BFRARETERMBIRZ)
Instruments (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies HERSEREERBE(Z)
(Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) RBELRRE(E)
Liquidity and interest risk table (Continued) BB RFIFE R (E)
Carrying
Weighted amount at
average Total 31 December
effective undiscounted 2013
interest rate Within Over 2 years to cash flows 2013
IET 1 year 1 year 5 years BRER 12A31H
ERFI% 18R 1B E 2EREE RehE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% TAT FAT FAT FAL FAT
2013 2013
Q Non-derivative financial ~ JEfTABIBEE
liabilities
Trade creditors and ERESEIR
bills payable EREE = 2,173,145 - - 2,173,145 2,173,145
Other creditors and it e R R
accrued charges fE:TEA - 143,974 - - 143,974 143,974
Amount due to a joint ER-—ZAER
venture $25% = 509 = = 509 509
Fixed interest rates ELEH
borrowings 2.36 2,794,718 7,503 - 2,802,221 2,779,279
Variable interest rate REBR
borrowings 2.21 3,353,405 324,833 236,510 3,914,748 3,855,657
8,465,751 332,336 236,510 9,034,597 8,952,564
Derivatives — net fTETE - #8
settlement et
Cross currency interest X X EHF|&
rate swap/interest 28/ F%

rate swap outflow RAR - 16,376 2,186 427 18,989 18,989
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5. Capital Risk Management and Financial

Instruments (Continued)
Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(excluding derivative instruments) is determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis and dealer quotes for
similar instruments.

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets
are determined with reference to quoted market bid
prices; and

o the fair value of derivative financial instruments
is made of discounted cash flow analysis using
the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.

The details of fair value measurements of financial
instruments are set out in note 45.

REARTERMBIA S

AFE

MBEERMBAB(TEENTETR)
ZRPFEDZEFBREREIN LR
TARRBERELARBEBEAETE -

o EEREGRRGMFLNERRETH
LEBEHBEEZ ATEZER
BHEEEMERE : &

e  ITAMBIARFEIEMREIREA
T ASFRDEDTA TR 2 HIRE
Bz R R - MADETTE
TRAAREEERNGE -

EERR/REEVBHRRTIZEHKA
RV BEERY AR REESR
HRFERE -

BHIAZAFEFEFBEHRANMZE
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EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

6.

Revenue

Revenue represents the fair value of amounts received
and receivable for goods sold by the Group to outside
customers, less discount, related taxes and returns, sales
of properties and rental income of oil vessels and LPG
bottles and subcontracting fee for the year. An analysis of
the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

B A

WA BRAFERAEERIIAREFHE
5 o PTUCER R B W ER 2 & BRORAT
BERARERRE) #HEMEREEH
R BIERBBAREBDER 2 AT
B-REAFE  REBZRADH N
T -

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Sales and distribution of LPG HE RS HBIER 12,617,037 11,013,807
Sales of oil products Fi=k=die: e 5,201,885 2,472,813
Sales of electronic products HEETEM 1,699,397 873,631
Sales of properties SHE Y 54,997 28,500
Rental of LPG bottles HERIELFIR 34,926 39,212
Rental of oil vessels HE M 12,152 3,400
Subcontracting fee ZE-¢z3] 12,643 2,083
19,633,037 14,433,446

Segment Information SHEEBHE

Information reported to the Chairman of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for
the purpose of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance focuses on nature and location of
the goods being sold. These revenue streams and the basis
of the internal reports about components of the Group
are regularly reviewed by the CODM in order to allocate
resources to segments and to assess their performance.
No operating segments identified by the CODM have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments of the
Group.

ERDE RN BRBFEMAAR A
TRAETEBRERRE(ZTERZER
REDEZBZEREPREEERZKE
BRE - TREERKETHNEMZ
FWARKBEREBASEE BN N R
HZEM  UDEERTEDELFE
HEXB - REBAKEZ 2885
YEEFETBLERREMBS 2 &E

Ay o
pa i

R 1) N i T
- £
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EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE
7. Segment Information (Continued)

The Group currently organises into the following major
operating segments, each of which represents an operating
and reportable segment of the Group:

1. Sales and distribution of LPG — This segment derives
its revenue from selling of LPG to various customers
including industrial customers, auto-gas operators,
overseas wholesaler customers, bottled LPG end-
users, auto-gas end-users etc. The operation is
carried out in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau for
both onshore and offshore customers.

2. Qil products business — This segment derives its
revenue from selling of oil products to both wholesaler
and retailer customers and leasing of oil vessels.

3. Sales of electronic products — This segment derives
its revenue from trading of electronic products such
as integrated circuit and mobile phones etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
began to venture into sales and distribution of NG business
but still in preliminary stage, the segment information
reported below includes assets related to the sales and
distribution of NG business.

SEEH(E)

AEBRDEBUTIELCESE  H
BERAEEZEENEZRNE

1. HERSHEBRLR — HOHEHE
ERERTIRAES  BREIXR
B REMREER  BIMLER
B BB R K AP &TEM
REMAPFEEWA - ZEHBR
HTEL  PEBRFIZERMEE

RES -

2. HmE® — WoBAESHST
HERTERF  ULEEHME
HUA e

3. HEBEFEM — HOFHHEEE
FEm  WEAERRETFHRESL
WA o

HE2014F 1231 HILFE - K&EE
RIB ERNEEHERDIHRARER -
BINENZEE - T RERIDEE
EREEERDERARZEBAB 2
BE)
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EZ2014F 1231 HIEFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBHEE)
Segment revenues and results SRR AR EHR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UNTERERIBEREESEIHDZ K
results by reportable and operating segment. EEWAREEDHT -
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HF2014F 12831 HILERF

Sales and (o] Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
HERAH #HeE
. 2[4 R BEFER i=e
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET F#EiT FEIT FET
Segment revenue DEBA 12,664,606 5,214,037 1,699,397 19,578,040
Segment profit pok gl 667,855 154,759 97,015 919,629
Share of profits (losses) DIBEEE D AR
of associates (E#8) 8,953 (23,082) — (14,129)
Share of profit of a joint DE—REELE
venture gl 1,713 - - 1,713
678,521 131,677 97,015 907,213
Other income Henl A 231,229
Profit from property investment — H B 2 %% & K&
and development in the PRC ZRiE A 28,712
Central administration costs HRER KA (50,595)
Directors’ emoluments =2EMe (9,074)
Changes in fair values TTHEEBEIA
of derivative financial (EPAe:
instruments 19,083
Gain on deemed disposal of WE BT ERE
associates RAIZFE 21,860
Finance costs MEKA (226,210)
Profit before taxation B 250 Al A 922,218

| /‘fsﬁ

S
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HZE2014%F 12531 HILFE
7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Segment revenues and results (continued) SRk ARESEZ)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 EHE2013FE12H31 AILEE
Sales and Qil Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Consolidated
HE R HE
DIERIER TS ETEMm BE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue SEEWA 11,055,102 2,476,213 873,631 14,404,946
Segment profit kbl 916,045 7,641 22,575 946,261
Share of profits of Ak a): i
associates A Al A 2,586 9,697 — 12,283
Share of profit of a joint PE—REE
venture 2R A 1,127 — = 1,127
919,758 17,338 22,575 959,671
Other income EH A 140,898
Profit from property Rz YERE
investment and N3 R a Al
development in the PRC 11,100
Central administration costs  FF & 32 AL A (62,690)
Directors’ emoluments EEHSE (8,757)
Changes in fair values PHEMBTA
of derivative financial NE 2z
instruments (26,793)
Changes in fair values of AR ES
convertible bonds NEEZ (4,564)
Finance costs BhE AN (206,640)
Profit before taxation FR 350 Al v ) 812,225
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7. Segment Information (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2013 (continued)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described
in note 3. All of the segment revenue reported above is
from external customers, associates or a joint venture.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of interest income, profit from
property investment and development in the PRC, central
administration costs, directors’ emoluments, changes in fair
values of derivative financial instruments and convertible
bonds, gain on deemed disposal of associates and finance
costs.

The total reportable segment revenue can be reconciled
to the revenue as presented in consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

DEEHE(Z)
PEMARERE(Z)
B F2013F 12531 HILEE(Z)

EWNBPCEABREAERAEENHES
ZAKRBEZ @ BRMER - EXMER
ZIAEDBRADREINGER - BE
NERBERE - DHEFEZTDORE

DEHBWA ~ FEYMERE RBERAN
EEZ®MN  FREBKRAN - EFH
T MTEMBTARAIRKRESAFE
ZHE - WEAHEBMERRZMER

BEBYBWATTRGEREREME
EUW SR 252 WABRRINT

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000

F&IT T

Total reportable segment revenue @2y EUA 19,578,040 14,404,946
Add: Revenue from property investment 7 - REIY)E18E MR

and development in the PRC EEZWA 54,997 28,500
Revenue as presented in the meBmkAMEEKRE

consolidated statement of profit or Fr25 2 A
loss and other comprehensive income 19,633,037 14,433,446

The Group has a subsidiary engages in the property
investment and development in the PRC and the revenue
generate from this business is included as the consolidated
revenue of the Group. The operating result and other
financial information of this subsidiary are not reviewed
by the CODM for the purpose of resources allocation and
performance assessments.

AEEz—FHMBRRANPEEEDE
REMER HAXBEAEENHKRAD
BRAREENGS WA o WHEB AT
LEERXBENEMMBEMYBEER
RERFEERN  WMEERIBERERE
BRE
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7.

Segment Information (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating segment:

Segment assets

SERHE(E)
SERERAR

UTRIZEENREND < AEBEER
BEDHT

DHEE

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000

F&iT FEIT

Sales and distribution of LPG HE R HBRIER 3,997,348 4,538,210
Sales and distribution of NG HERDHERAR 26,550 -
Oil products business JH o T 3,618,852 1,272,686
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM 293,590 698,448
Total segment assets BAOREE 7,936,340 6,509,344
Available for sale investment AEHERE 81,958 136,534
Deferred tax assets TEIETR TS & E 7,312 1,358
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRRITIFR 3,522,442 3,862,030
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 1,738,621 1,747,612
Derivative financial instruments PTHEMBITA 1,222 1,313
Properties under development for sales {F&E3E MY 224,936 208,218
Properties held for sales BEFEWHE 185,035 211,541
Other unallocated assets BEMARDREE 548,250 613,816
Consolidated assets REEE 14,246,116 13,291,766
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. H¥EBEHE)
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEERAR
Segment liabilities SHEEE
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
Sales and distribution of LPG HE KD HEBRIER 1,125,849 2,279,918
Oil products business AR ETS 489,800 4,181
Sales of electronic products HEBTEM 120 7
Total segment liabilities wofafE 1,615,769 2,284,106
Derivative financial instruments PTG T A 3,600 20,302
Tax liabilities MERE 49,369 40,770
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEE 131,147 144,031
Borrowings =B 7,423,421 6,634,936
Other unallocated liabilities EmRnilatE 117,026 50,824
Consolidated liabilities maaRE 9,340,332 9,174,969
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and MEZEHDERRENDERASEERM
allocating resources between segments: B

The

all assets are allocated to reportable segments (other
than available for sale investment, deferred tax assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
derivative financial instruments, and certain deposits
paid, certain other receivables, properties under
development for sales, properties held for sales and
certain property, plant and equipment); and

all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments
(other than current and deferred tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, derivative financial instruments and
certain other payables).

Group has allocated goodwill to the relevant segments

as segment assets.

MBEEDNTEZE2H/OB(AIH
HERE - RERBEE - S
RITHER - RITHEBRERS - T4
MBTARETENRE HTH
KRR  FEERTYE &
BREMERETHE  HELR
BERIN) - R

BREDNAEZ2%mD B(EH
FEREBBEME - RITER - 0714
BT T A KA T EAMERERSN)

AEEEKHBEIEEEROBEERD
BEE -
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBHEE)
Other segment information Htt»BEHE
For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE2014F 12831 AILEE

Sales and Sales and (o]]] Sales of
distribution  distribution products electronic

of LPG of NG business products Unallocated Consolidated
HERNH HERDH #HE
RiLR P33 | mRRE BETER £ He
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

Amounts included in the HEGE R EGE

measure of segment profit BERHAZ

or segment assets: £8:
Addition to goodwill NEEE - - 372,022 - - 372,022
Addition to non-current assets  REFERBAE

(Note) i3 89,009 26,550 243,672 - 84,402 443,633
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREE

plant and equipment e 81,135 - 3,371 - 676 85,182
Amortisation of other intangible BT A i

assets 27,050 - - - - 27,050
Amortisation of land use rights T F g 5 2,380 - 1,092 - 7,151 10,623
Amortisation of prepaid lease  JREMTBRER

payments for coast i 867 - = = = 867

Loss on disposal and written & R E -
off of property, plant and BERGELES
equipment 865 - 10 - - 875
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEBEHEHE)
Other segment information (continued) HthpEEE(E
For the year ended 31 December 2013 B F2013F 12831 HILFE
Sales and Ol Sales of
distribution products electronic
of LPG business products Unallocated  Consolidated
HERDH
RILR ARER HEETEM R e
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FAT
Amounts included in the measure 5228 HM P18
of segment profit or segment BERIAZ
assets: &8
Addition to non-current assets ~ FEIERBEE
(Note) (Hizt) 215,940 113,056 = 50,466 379,462
Depreciation of property, mE - KR
plant and equipment il 71,851 926 — 79 72,856
Amortisation of other intangible  E b T AE#
assets 27,458 - - — 27,458
Amortisation of land use rights 3t 3K 2,204 1,079 = 7,077 10,360
Amortisation of prepaid lease BEBANEETE
payments for coast B 857 - - - 857
Loss on disposal and written HERMEME -
off of property, plant and BERREZER
equipment 7,208 — - — 7,208
Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and Hiat - ERBEETOREMETARELER

deferred tax assets. THEE ©
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7. Segment Information (Continued) 7. SEEHE)
Geographical information HMESH
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong (country AEBEBZREEBMNEB(EELE
of domicile), Macau and the PRC. ) ORFIRAE -
Information about the Group’s revenue from external AEBIIMNBEFRABRURFLEE 2
customers is presented based on customers’ location of MNEZE - REBIERBEEZERIA
the operations. Information about the Group’s non-current BEMBMEZINNT
assets is presented based on the geographical location of
the assets:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
IBERIA FERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET F#ET FHET
Hong Kong BB ﬂ
(country of domicile) (FEEEMR) 3,712,747 2,464,567 612,055 351,698
The PRC =8
(excluding Hong Kong) (TEREEB) 11,509,177 8,327,055 2,601,949 2,481,145
Other Asian countries H b Zm MBI 4,411,113 3,641,824 3,906 —
Total &t 19,633,037 14,433,446 3,217,910 2,832,843
Note: Non-current assets excluded deferred tax assets and Kiat - ERBEETBIEREHREEEKRA

available for sale investment. HEERE -




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited ¥/ REBHER A A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014
EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE

7. Segment Information (Continued)
Information about major customers

Revenues from customers contributing over 10% of the
total sales of the Group in year 2014 and corresponding

7. SWRHEE)
FRERERZEH

R2014F - M TRFEBMASEHESE
HWEE10% A E 2 WA K20134F 2 1

figures in 2013 are as follows: EE T -
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Customer A' ZEA N/AFER® 2,083,015
Customer B? ®FEB? 3,421,478 2,419,559
Customer C' ZFEC' 2,060,439 N/ATE A °

Notes: Hiat -

—

Revenue related to the LPG business.

Revenue related to the oil products business.

The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of
the total sales of the Group.

wW N

m 8. Other gains and losses and other income

2014 2013

1 BRBEREBZWA -

2 AEHMEBIWA -

3 HERALEEAEBEHELTEI0%
PAE -

8. HtMTEREBARAMIEA

HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Gain on deemed disposal of associates 18 & S & A & 15
(note 36(iii)) (32 36(ii)) 21,860 =
Loss on disposal of available for sale HEJHBEREER
investment (2,528) —
Net exchange (loss) gain (Note) b (B8 ) e FRE(HV7E) (22,738) 172,945
Other gains and losses H b pris M EE (3,406) 172,945
Interest income on pledged RMB BRI ARBIRITFR
bank deposits FEHA 168,173 104,356
Interest income F B U A 63,056 36,542
Others Eb 17,305 8,859
Other income H b A 248,534 149,757

Note: The amount included net exchange loss arising from
pledged RMB bank deposits for USD borrowings
amounted to approximately HK$8,583,000 (2013: gain of
HK$101,804,000).

/‘fsﬁ

Wit 2EBERETERZIEERAR
BROTGERAEEZELBRY
8,683,000 7T (2013 : 101,804,000
BILZBE)

REENPEIC ! 25 glf!!*“‘"“mtﬂwm
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9. Finance costs

9. MBEEE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000
FRET FET
Interests on bank trust receipts loans RITEEUIREB R
and other loans EMERZFE 79,237 104,440
Interests on bank trust receipts loans AARESRITFFIER 2
and other bank loans pledged with RITEFEBIRE R &
RMB bank deposits HEMIRITERZFE 98,125 66,795
Interests on bank borrowings wholly HARSFRNEHEE
repayable within five years IRITIEFZ T B 48,848 35,405
226,210 206,640
10. Taxation 10. RMIEZH

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

represents:

RiraBm MEMPE KSR AR
MIRE R

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Other regions in the PRC PR R A 3 [
Current tax BNEARL IE 34,030 35,4083
Deferred tax (note 35) EIERIB (K77 35)
Current year REFHEE (12,718) (6,025)
21,312 29,378

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years. There is no
provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company and
other subsidiaries had no assessable profits arising in Hong
Kong or the assessable profits are wholly absorbed by tax
losses brought forward.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25%.

FENGH 50 M B B 2 AT BRI
LR EA16.6%E - ARARE R
HpERRAERBLERERTGH -
Bk 8 SR i ) 2 1 B ) A5 7% S 1R 2 D
WU - E AR A B % R A B EE R
SRR B -

RPEARKMBERMAEIOE(E
MBI REEMEHIABRME
Bl PEMEARERZHER25% °

D
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10. Taxation (Continued)

10. MWAZH (&)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2014 2013

AREFZRAX A B8 REM
EHRERZBHADENEFRMT

HK$°000 HK$’'000
FET FEIT
Profit before taxation kR BT Vs A 922,218 812,225
Tax at the domestic tax rate 25% AR & 25%%3@2%}?15 230,555 203,056
Tax effect of expenses AR S 2 BB 2
not deductible for tax purpose 23,539 21,853
Tax effect of income BERBRMA Z HISTE
not taxable for tax purpose (39,656) (42,323)
Tax effect of profit which are | Y3 -7
exempted from tax (215,002) (1283,567)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  RIERHFEE 2 MIEFE 22,313 18,459
Tax effect of deductible temporary REERAHURE R =58
differences not recognised 2B (415) (438)
Utilisation of tax losses previously A LRI ARER 2 HIEEE
not recognised (2,385) (46,127)
Effect of different tax rate of group AEBEBEENPBENAIINZ
entities operating in jurisdictions HMBREE 2
other than PRC TRBREZZE 2,363 (1,535)
Taxation for the year REZRIE 21,312 29,378

The domestic tax rate (which is the PRC enterprise income FRACHERAER X EL A E TR
tax rate) in the jurisdiction where the operation of the Group B2 AR (BIP B ERERE
is substantially based is used. K)o

Details of the deferred tax asset and liabilities are set out in BB EE R AEFIEEHNMIFESS -
note 35.

e ﬂiﬁwl‘sﬂ--uq IE1H u* \NJ
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11.

gl

wﬁ"ﬂ\m -

Profit Before Taxation

FRIgRRF

—E-IFEFR

2014 2013

Profit before taxation has been arrived
at after charging (crediting):

Amortisation of land use rights
(included in administrative expenses)

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments for coast
(included in cost of sales)

Amortisation of other intangible assets
(included in selling and distribution
expenses)

Auditor’s remuneration

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Loss on disposal and written off of
property, plant and equipment

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases:
— Premises

Gross rental income from leasing of
oil vessels, office premises and
warehouse

Less: Direct operating expenses

Staff costs

Directors’ fees (note 12)

Directors’ other emoluments
(note 12)

Contributions to retirement benefits
schemes excluding HK$100,000
(2013: HK$90,000) included in
directors’ emoluments

Staff salaries and bonus

BB AT S M 2 HBR (FEA)
THIER ¢

o S {F A A B
(BRETHRXHA)

BETENEE SRS
(BREHEREA)

H b I & B B 5H
(BREHER
DA

2B A &

ME - B RRETE

REZER
REHEHRERES

— ¥

HEWM  BREMWER
BEZEASEA

B BEEREEXH

BB
2w (W712)
EEHMHE
(Hiat 12)
¥ 100,000 78 7T
(2013 : 90,0007 7T )
B AEEMEZ
RRAEFFT B HEFR
BIfe ks

HK$’000 HK$’000
10,623 10,360
867 857
27,050 27,458
3,874 3,657
85,182 72,856
875 7,208 ﬂ
11,520 22 574
(17,304) (4,060)
3,483 896
(13,821) (3,164)
330 330
9,294 8,427
4,230 8,006
68,246 69,896
82,100 86,659

o L] >
§5bdiw

)yfm.g'_; 2l

B
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HZE2014%F 12531 HILFE

12. Directors’ Emoluments 12. EFE&
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2013: 9) Bt ER FOM(2013: 9 ) BEER
directors were as follows: AZMLwT -

Shum Chiu Sing i Chan Yuk

Shum Chun, Cen  Chung, Wai, Xu

SiuHung  Lawrence Ziniu ~ Raymond Benedict ~ Mingshe
g 7 B I}

HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
FéT  fET FET FEr  fET FET  TET  FET  TET FER

Fees s - - - - - - 130 100 100 330
Other emoluments e

Salaries and other benefts SRR 3,000 3% 1,528 1,850 1,53 952 - - - 9,194

Contrbutons o refirement RINRREEER
benefts schemes 17 15 11 11 17 17 - - - 100
m Total emoluments Heus 3017 M0 155 1867 155 969 130 100 100 96

Cheung
Shum Chiu Sing S Kwan  Chan Yuk

Shum Chun, Oen  Chung,  KaFai Wang Hung, Wai, Xu Total

SuHung  Lawrence Ziniu Raymond Brian Jan Anthony  Benedict  Mingshe 2013
L)% S-S S I I 17 B REER KA ait
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  AKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS(000
FET TET TEE FET TeT TEE FET e 7T A

Fees g - - - - - - 130 100 100 30
Other emoluments e
Salaries and other benefits EEREMET 3,000 0100 150 1384 803 - - -8
Contrbutons to retement RIVETEES
benefits schemes 15 1 1 15 15 15 - - - 90
Total emoluments Heag 3015 315 1,315 1,565 1399 818 130 100 100 8757

No director waived any emoluments during both years. RFEARNIL EEEREEAHS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014%F 12531 HILFE

13. Employees’ Emoluments 13. EEE<£
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the KEBSUHERHFALTEEIAM(2013 :
Group, three (2013: four) are directors of the Company A BARRES  HMe BN Ll
whose emoluments are included in the above disclosures. WEERRK - H#2((2013 0 147) (&
The emolument of the remaining two (2013: one) individuals BALTZHEHELNT ¢

are disclosed as follows:

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000
FETT FEIT
Salaries and allowances Hrd MORBh 3,521 1,279
Contributions to retirement benefit RIREAIFT B 5K
schemes 34 15
3,555 1,294
2014 2013
Their emoluments were within the He N FATEHE
following bands
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000
o 1 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 2 2,500,000
BT 1 _
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors REBVERESS FREARA LA
or the above individual as an inducement to join or upon e (EABSHEMARINAKNERE

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. TSR SEALERMN Y @E -




NewOcean Energy Holdings Limited #7/&8E

REEFRAF

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2014

EE2014F 12 31 HILFEE
14. Dividend 14. &R
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FAET
2013 final dividend recognised as FAMER 7% Dk 2 2013 4
distribution during the year REARR B
— HK5.7 cents (2012 final dividend: = %5.7%1ﬂi(2012¢
HK3.8 cents) per share REARE S : 3.8781l) 84,554 56,369

15.

Subsequent to 31 December 2014, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK6.6 cents (2013: HK5.7 cents) per
share amounting to approximately HK$97,706,000 (2013:
HK$84,554,000) to be paid to the shareholders of the
Company whose names appear on the register of members
5 June 2015. This final dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. On 16 March 2015, the number of shares issued
and fully paid is 1,480,398,216.

Earnings Per Share
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

2014 2013

Earnings zH
Earnings for the purposes of basic and

diluted earnings per share (profit for PR 2 2 7
the year attributable to the owners of (ERRHER A
the Company) JEAG F 5 )

AEEBREAREERT

MR2014F12A31H B EEEZF
)5’\2015¢6H5E!%§|JH§$%1EH}2$
NAEIRRIRZERARS @HQ/IEE%GG
5% il(2013 : 5.7 L) * & H IR B 4
97,706,000 7T (2013 : 84,554,000,%
Jo) o WEAREAIR B AR RN EERE
BFERE EHER - FAMEE - 12015
F3A16H  BETAEEZBRMHER
/#1,480,398,216 % °

sRET

ARBZBEANREEREAREER
MR T BURETE

HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET T
900,270 783,308

2014 2013

Number of shares En#AE

Weighted average number of ordinary st E &I E AR EF|
shares for the purpose of basic FrER A < &k
earnings per share DNt E5 L

Effect of dilutive ordinary shares

HESERR  FE

1,482,576,298 1,425,090,095

Share options FEAR i 18,888,180 22,238,462
Weighted average number of ordinary =+ E &A% # 5% 2 7

shares for the purposes of diluted FrER A 2 i@k

earnings per share N5 1,501,464,478  1,447,328,557

2 e

SaRaE N

VY

a ‘mwmf

iii.;, ‘
=
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. % WBREME

Pumps
and Furniture,
Gasandoil  equipment fixtures
Construction Leasehold Plant and plant and for gas and Motor ]

in progress Buildings  improvements  machinery faclities andoil  equipment vehicles vessels
ERRME  ERMEZ kU ME
BRIE BF HRMRKE  ABRGA BB  RRRRE Rl il | L]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FéT 7T 7T AT 7T &L AT AT 7T FET

COST s
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A 18 443,659 34,565 6,570 3,268 T44.263 412,809 16,445 30,021 - 1,696,670
Additions hE 183371 - 1,689 - 13 3434 1,266 5,91 21,090 187,136
Transfer gz (250,143 - 4494 - 245,285 = 3¢ = = =
Disposals and wrte-off HE R - - - - 191 1058 ) (044 - (9
Exchange realignment EHET 11,704 1,082 121 102 0,12 12607 461 o2 - a7
At 31 December 2013 20135
128318 358,501 35,647 13,074 3,360 1,001,887 419,347 17813 41,000 21,000 1,011,809
Avising on acoisiion WEHE
of subsideries i - - - - - 43 196 - - 609
Additions e 53,154 6,114 2407 - 37,831 10,737 3,138 11,235 96,217 220,928
Transfer &2 (402,484) 1,304 - - 387,306 13,784 - - - -
Disposals and write-off HERHH - - (231) - (269) (1,056). (169) (1,374) - (3,09)
Exchange realignment ] (2,010) () 2 U] 2140 (6) 3 16 - 7
At 31 December 2014 Ho01E
124318 1,251 43,150 15,336 3,359 1,428,901 443,159 20,962 50,877 17,307 2,130,322
DEPRECIATION AND TERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1 A1 = 15,365 2,884 623 161,100 125,610 10,778 17,610 - 333,960
Provided for the year FREE - 2946 38 164 2,943 28,336 1971 5212 896 72,85
Eliminated on disposals REER
and wrteof i - - - - 247 11959 ) 96) - [iem
Exchange realignment EHES) = 53 19 P} 3390 4169 329 54 - 8,986
At 31 December 2013 120185
12318 B 1 3281 M0 R R 0W %M 0 038
Provided for the year iR - 2818 1,352 165 43,678 26,850 1,081 6,305 3018 85,162
Eliminated on disposals REER
and writeof s - - ] - ®) (53) w0 - (1867
Exchange reaignment B &5 - 8 - 5 157 ) 2% (29) - 258
At 31 December 2014 pRIES
12318 - um 462 Y X Y7 S 11 39 4T
CARRYING VALUES FEE
At 31 December 2014 20145
128318 7,251 21,431 10,708 2319 1,190,099 266,789 7,660 23,236 113,338 1,642,891
At 31 December 2013 2013

124318 358,501 16,814 9,783 2,550 806,825 29,188 5,446 18,560 20,194 1,507,051
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except
for construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-
line basis at the following rates per annum.

Buildings Over the term of the lease
Leasehold 20% to 33'/,%
improvements

Plant and machinery 4% to 33"/,%
Gas and oil plant and Over the shorter of the lease
facilities term of coast use right and
land use right, or 25 years

Pumps and equipment  10% to 33'/,%
for gas and oil
Furniture, fixtures and 15% to 16%/,%

equipment
Motor vehicles 16%/,% to 33"/,%
Oil vessels 3% to 11%

The buildings are situated outside Hong Kong, in the PRC,
and are held on land under medium term leases.

The gas and oil plant under construction are situated
outside Hong Kong, in the PRC, and are held under
medium term leases.

LPG bottles with carrying values of approximately
HK$2,866,000 (2013: HK$4,657,000) included in gas
pumps and equipment are leased to customers for
short term to generate rental income. The rental income
generated was approximately HK$34,926,000 (2013:
HK$39,212,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2013, oil vessels with carrying value
of approximately HK$20,194,000 were leased to an
associate to generate rental income. The rental income
generated from the leasing of oil vessels to the associate
was approximately HK$3,400,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013. On 29 December 2014, the associate
became a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, the
details of the acquisition are set out in note 36. The rental
income generated from the leasing of oil vessels to the
associate up to 29 December 2014 was approximately
HK$12,152,000.

16.

Y - WA R EROR ()

BREZTERI - LiliE  #ERRE
HAB TR TINFHERABREFE

g AR 4 B
HEYEEE 20% £ 33"/,%
as MR 4% % 33'/,%
RERHER LEEERAER
B3] T Hb{E AL
FHRs 25 FHA
ZREE

FEHRZAR  10%Z=33"/,%
e

R HER 15% &= 16°/:%
B

Y 16°/,% = 33'/,%

ik 3% & 11%

BTN FE(EBREIN) - LIATH
BT EHA -

ERRERHBENARTBEEER
SN - AR BBAORA -

T AR R & &5 R T E 492,866,000
7 7C(2013 : 4,657,000/ 7T ) Z RIL R
BANEBEABRTFTERS  UEELHS
WA > REZ2014F 12 A31 B ILEE
FrEA 2 e WAL A 34,926,000 7T
(2013 : 39,212,000 7T) °

HE2013F12A31BILFEE BE
E#920,194,0008 L 2 A EHE T
—REBEERARNEEHRS KA - HE
2013F 12 A1 HILFEEAZHE W
A %) 53,400,0007%8 JT ° 2014 F 12
A29B  ZBMEARKARNRRZE
EHmAENBAR - WHEFIBE T NH
F36° B E2014%12H29B8  H &
FHE QAR ZMBATE S ZHES WAL
12,152,000 T °
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17. Land Use Rights

2014 2013

17. LTiEAE

—E-IFEFR

18.

HK$’000 HK$’000
F&iT FET
The Group’s land use rights comprise:  AEE 2 + i F AR
Land use rights outside Hong Kong, AP (BRI -
in the PRC under medium term WA HARR A5 H 2
leases b A 279,739 257,080
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BE2ERENDNT:
Non-current asset IEREEE 268,426 246,759
Current asset MEVEE 11,313 10,321
279,739 257,080

The Group acquired a leasehold land in Zhuhai (the “Land”)
in year 2011. The size of the Land is 15,750 square meters.
The Group is developing half of the Land to construct a
property for owner-occupied purpose and the remaining
half for properties for sales. The detail of the properties
under development for sales is disclosed in note 28.

Prepaid Lease Payments for Coast

18.

AEBPR 2011 FRE—BLURKEZ
MELM([ZLH]) ZLHWEES
15,750 F 5K - REBEEERZ L2
—¥UEE-HETARAWE BT —
FRBRIEAFEDE - SFEBETYD
¥ HBERKI 28 HE -

BERAMBEAREA

o

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#&IT FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments AEB 2 SFBEMNEERE
for coast comprise: BiE:
Coast outside Hong Kong, in the PRC R E (FHEESN) « WA
under medium term leases RHIRAEE 2 8E 9,399 10,275
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BE2WRENDIT:
Non-current asset EREEE 8,527 9,403
Current asset MEVEE 872 872
9,399 10,275

The prepaid lease payments for coast represent the rights
to use coast in Zhuhai ranging from 20 years to 28 years,
starting from 1 January 1999.

BEENBEREIERKEZ §EFE -
FI¥E - F1909% 1 A1 BRI - TEE ,
[

NMF20FE28%F °
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B E2014F 12 431 ALEFE
19. Goodwill 19. W&
HK$’000
TFET
COST 5% 3
At 1 January 2013 MK2013F1 A1 H 289,608
Exchange realignment b H &5 6,452
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31 H 296,060
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) W hE —RMTEB R B FTEE £ (A2 36) 372,022
Exchange realignment EH &7 57
At 31 December 2014 K2014F 12 A31 H 668,139
CARRYING VALUES IR (E
At 31 December 2014 R2014F 12 A31H 668,139
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 431 H 296,060

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
acquired new subsidiaries (“Ego Time Group” as defined
in note 21) and the goodwill arising on the acquisition
amounted to approximately HK$372,022,000. The details
are set out in note 36. This goodwill is assigned to a
separate CGU.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out
above has been allocated to eleven (2013: ten) individual
CGUs in the sales and distribution of LPG and oil products
segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGUs
and their major underlying assumptions are summarised
below:

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering 5-year period,
and discount rate at 9% (2013: 10%) for LPG segment
and 20% (2013: Nil) for oil products business segment.
The cash flows for the financial budgets are using a steady
growth rate ranging from 0% to 5% (2013: 0% to 6%) for a
5 year period. The cash flows beyond this 5-year period are
extrapolated using a zero percent growth rate. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations related to the
estimation of cash inflows/outflows which included budget
sales and gross margin, such estimation is based on the
unit’s past performance and management’s expectations

for the market development.

HZE2014F12A31BIEFEE &
B U BB 37 B B A R (P 3£ 21 & Al Ego
Time&®E ) MEBEMEEZHEOA
372,022,0008 7T ° ~FIBEHAMIFES6 -
EESEEERREEEEN -

HEEAANS  EXEZBEE D
BEZE11{8(2013 : 1018) $HE KD #HK
{ER X mmOBEERRESEESENM -

NEReELBN 2P DR HE
REFZHEABEMLNT

EIR & EA B 2 o] W E €58 TR IE
FREEFELIETE %8 EKRA
EEEEMAEZSFHRYKEERP 2
HeR=BA BRI EITIREI%
(2013 : 10%) ~ H M EE D BB X
20% (2013 : E)FTE - B HRERZ
REeREASFHZBEEEERNT 0%
5% (2013 : 0% £ 6%) H# 7 - L5654
HrezReRe AT EEREN - 54
Bt RERA S/ REEABEFEELZ
HFZREABCFEEEHEERENE
ZhtRBEEN v BEEENERE
e mBEREmMEL -
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20. Other Intangible Assets

20. HftEERE

Distribution Business Leasing Customer
network license  agreements relationships
AHRE EXuE HEhR EFRRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FAT FAET
COST %3
At 1 January 2013 20131 A1H 359,031 28,965 14,991 = 402,987
Exchange adjustments R 11,242 798 470 - 12,510
At 31 December 2013 R2013%F12A31H 370,273 29,763 15,461 = 415,497
Arising on acquisition of Y — R B AR AT
subsidiaries (note 36) EE(H1336) = = = 102,722 102,722
Exchange adjustments [ ji R (127) 9) (5) - (141)
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 370,146 29,754 15,456 102,722 518,078
AMORTISATION AND HREE
IMPAIRMENT ﬂ
At 1 January 2013 20131510 23,037 6,301 14,613 — 43,951
Charge for the year FRFTH 24,355 2,720 383 - 27,458
Exchange adjustments Rk 1,146 162 465 - 1,773
At 31 December 2013 201312 8318 48,538 9,183 15,461 — 73,182
Charge for the year FRFTH 24,633 2417 = = 27,050
Exchange adjustments B AR 122 9 () — 126
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31H 73,293 11,609 15,456 - 100,358
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12 A31H 296,853 18,145 - 102,722 417,720
At 31 December 2013 M2013%12 4318 321,735 20,580 — — 342,315
The distribution network, the leasing agreements, the DIHMEE - HEWZE  EXAREERP

business license and customer relationship were acquired
from third parties in business combinations.

REDEXBEHPRE=ZTBA -
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B E2014F 12 431 ALEFE
20. Other Intangible Assets (continued)

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Distribution network
Business license 5to 15 years
Leasing agreements 5 to 10 years
Customer relationships 6 years

10 to 15 years

During the year ended of 31 December 2014, the other
intangible assets acquired on the acquisition of new
subsidiaries amounted to approximately HK$102,722,000.
The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are disclosed in
note 36.

For the purposes of impairment testing, other intangible
assets set out above have been allocated to five (2013:
four) individual CGUs in the sales and distribution of LPG
and oil products business segment. The recoverable
amounts of these CGUs have been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering 5-year period, and discount rate at
9% (2013: 10%) for LPG segment and 20% (2013: Nil) for
oil products business segments. The cash flows for the
financial budgets are using a steady growth rate ranging
from 0% to 5% (2013: 1% to 4%) for a 5 year period. The
cash flows beyond this 5-year period are extrapolated
using a zero percent growth rate. Other key assumptions
for the value in use calculations related to the estimation
of cash inflows/outflows which included budget sales
and gross margin, such estimation is based on the unit’s
past performance and management’s expectations for the
market development.

Htt\pRE(2)

tdBpEEEABRAIERFY -
BIVEENBEREAT IR E#E

;&I:
i

7 EH AR 4K 10E 154
LR 5F 154
HE W= 5Z 104
EFREE 64

REZE2014F 12 A31HILEFE @ Wi
B AR MEScEMBEREELN A
102,722,000 8 ¢ - WEEKHI B A R 2 &
BRI EIHWE -

URERARTmE - EXATE M ER
BEDHDEESME2013 : 4 @) $HE K
DHERCR R MREESBENRESE
EB - hEFREEABUZAIKE S
BHIRIBFEREBEFTEAMET © &t
BARAEEEEH EZSFHYEE
BB ZBEREBBIRBERDE
I/ RI9% (2013 : 10%) ~ M mEK D
T R20% (2013 # )5 E - B 55
BERZESRENS FHyBFER
RN F0%E5% (2013 : 1% £ 4%) HE
B o o FHEZEESREASTHEREE
HE - BRGETRERA S RELERAE
EfEEZHEMEERABIEREHE
REFE  ZETRBEEMZBERE
BEREEEE ZMGERMEL -
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21. Interests in Associates 21. BFELFHES
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FEIT
Cost of interests in unlisted associates  3F_- B & A Al s Ak AN
At 1 January w1A1H 306,327 231,722
New associate incorporated RS 2 Bt A ) - 62,322
Share of (losses) profits and other DIEFEANBRERE
comprehensive income, net of (E18) =7
dividend for the year N E A2 T s (16,225) 12,283
Deemed disposal upon acquisition U B — KB 8 B RO BB S
of additional equity interest in an PR AL E
associate (note 36(ii) (12 36(ii)) (218,336) —
At 31 December ®12 A31H 71,766 306,327
As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had MR20144%F K2013F 12318 + A&
interests in the following significant associates: ERUATEZHE AR ER ﬂ

Country of  Principal Proportion of nominal value
Name of Form of incorporation/ place of Class of of issued capital held Principal
entity entity registration  operation shares held by the Group activity

s FRAMBERT
K2zl EREs BEEX FREENE FRRAER REmELH ERED
2014 2013

Ego Time Limited Incorporated ~ BVI Hong Kong  Ordinary - 49 Investment holding
(“Ego Time") (Note a)

(TEgo Timel)(Hita) BEMKY  KBRXS BE Rk REER

Sinopec NewOcean Energy  Incorporated ~ PRC PRC Registered 49 49 Sales and distribution
Company Limited capital of energy
(“Sinopec NewQcean”) products
(Note b)

REHBRERERAR By RE Gkl &R HERDHRERER

(TrAfLsrs ) (Hitb)
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21. Interests in Associates (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

NewOcean Oil Products Company Limited and NewOcean
Petroleum Company Limited are wholly-owned subsidiaries
of Ego Time (Ego Time and its subsidiaries together are
referred as “Ego Time Group”). On 19 December 2014,
Maxx Investments Limited (“Maxx Investments”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in BVI
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“the Sale and
Purchase Agreement”) pursuant to which an independent
third party agreed to sell, and Maxx Investments agreed to
purchase, the entire equity interest in Success Pillar Limited
(“Success Pillar”), a company incorporated in BVI. The
principal business of Success Pillar is the holding of a 51%
equity interest in the Ego Time Group, with the remaining
49% being held by the Group through Maxx Investments.
The acquisition was completed on 29 December 2014, Ego
Time and its subsidiaries became wholly owned subsidiaries
to the Group. There is a deemed disposal upon acquisition
of additional equity interest in the associate and the deemed
disposal gain is amounted to approximately HK$21,860,000.
The details of the acquisition and the deemed disposal gain
are set out in note 36(iii).

On 10 April 2013, NewOcean Baifuyang Investment
Company Limited (“NBIC”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company incorporated in the PRC, entered into an
agreement with China Petroleum & Chemical Corporation
(“Sinopec”) to establish a joint venture company. On 1
September 2013, the joint venture company, Sinopec
NewOcean was established. Sinopec NewOcean had a
registered capital of RMB100,000,000, of which 51% is
owned by Sinopec and 49% is owned by NBIC. The principal
business of Sinopec NewOcean includes: (i) motor vehicle
refueling in Guangzhou for LPG vehicles; (iij motor vehicle
refueling in Guangzhou for liquefied natural gas (“LNG”)
vehicles, which will be added in stages to the business;
(iii) sales of non-petrol chemical consumer item with sales
support from Sinopec’s chain of petrol filling stations; (iv)
sales and distribution of bonded oil products for marine
bunkering; and (v) sales and distribution of bottled LPG.

On 17 October 2013, Sinopec NewOcean entered into
a subcontracting agreement with NBIC (“Subcontracting
Agreement”) to subcontract from NBIC all the 17 LPG
refuelling stations in Guangzhou currently owned and
operated by the subsidiary of NBIC, Lianxin Energy
Development Company Limited (“Lianxin Energy”). Under the
terms of the Subcontracting Agreement, the subcontracting
period of Lianxin Energy’s business will be 10 years
commenced from 1 November 2013 (“Subcontracting
Period”) during which Sinopec NewOcean will pay a
subcontracting fee of RMB10,000,000 to NBIC each
year and the Group is allowed to charge Lianxin Energy
information and technical services fee up to RMB48,300,000
each year. In addition, as set out in the Subcontracting
Agreement, the Group will be the sole supplier of LPG for
Sinopec NewOcean.

HEKMBERRAR R MER
AalAEgo Time([Ego Time REM
BAT] > #T[Ego Tme&E@])z2
LK B AR > R2014F 128198 -
ARRZE2EMBARIYRABREL
B X 3 2 Maxx Investments Limited
([Maxx Investments]) #2 — ¥ 37 &
=HIVEEHRZ(EEHZE] - &
e BYE=FRELE - MMaxx
Investments A & & AR H B R 2 & K
37 7 Success Pillar Limited ([ Success
Pillar]) Z % & B% 17 # % ° Success
Pillar 2 & Z ¥ 7 /1 B Ego Time&
B 51%HEx » HEp40% AAREEE B
Maxx Investments#§ 45 o %18 U &R
2014412 A29 H5EA * Ego Time &
EWBRARKALAEE 2 2EHEMH
BAR) o W — K& R RMEEIMNE
HmRERALE  MERALERM
15#921,860,000 78 7T o W EE #F 1B Rt
R4 H & B ATIS B 3051 AR 5 36(iii) ©

M20134% 4 108 » 7£ th B8 5 il B
VZARREEMBARTNBEE B F
KEBRAR([EEFIRE ) EFEH
BRIETERHAERAR(H AL
Vg AR A E QA - R20134F
9RA1H &2 2RFALFTEEK
Yo mAFEBZAMEAAARE
100,000,0007T * E#F51%H R A1k
HE - MA% B BB FIREHES -
BEFEBZ EZEBBE  (\REMNA
WAL RIRE LT RE NG ¢ (i) B E M
BRIERARBKTBRIERAR]) REE
TRENR  ZEBBOBEEMAZE
TR s (i) fE P A (b 2 EEEE DN vk 2 3
EXHET  HEFAHLELIEER
(iv)$HE o8 EIRRBAR &
(V) SHE RO HEIRERIER -

MR2013E10 8178 F A 1L ¥ &
HEEFRETLABRHHE( AW
FD URMEEFREABRBEEFER
BErHMBARBIEEREEFR AR
([BehaelR DR REHES REENNE
Mz Z2EA7 @B RIMNTA o AR IEFEA
BiE 2 IER B RER A
HARS 4% 201311 A1 H £ 5t A H
10 F([EBHM]) R 41
FEBRAEEFREEEINARE
10,000,000 7T Z & B & » A& E A
BB A K B AR 75 5 A R B T A TR UK
&% AR % 48,300,000 7T © Lthoh
BAAB B - AEBAEK A
A BFRERZ M —HER o
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21. Interests in Associates (Continued) 21. BELARRER (&)
Summarised financial information of associates WELACHEESHEE
Summarised financial information in respect of each of AEBEZHERNT 2B ERBEZEHRN
the Group’s associates is set out below. The summarised TX o Nt EREE BRI A BE
financial information below represents amounts shown in R EYERRE 2 B2 N R B RS SRR AT
the associate’s financial statements prepared in accordance TIRZ &% - A LEEEAREHA
with HKFRSs. All of these associates are accounted for ERENRSEGEEUMERERALR -
using the equity method in these consolidated financial
statements.
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$°000
FETT FET
Ego Time Ego Time
Current assets MENEE - 477,786
Non-current assets ERBEE - 157,133 ﬂ
Current liabilities nBaE — (433,9395)
Revenue LON 4,144,565 2,633,194

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive AEE(BE) RN REHE
(expense) income for the year ()= sasE (47,153) 19,790
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HZE2014%F 12531 HILFE
21. Interests in Associates (Continued) 21. BiBLAFESRK (&)
Summarised financial information of associates WELEICHEESEHEE(Z)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ERBE BN A S IRE T
information to the carrying amount of the interest in RAZBE AR ERERMEZZHEN
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial ™
statements:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Net assets of Ego Time Ego Time 2 BEF{E - 200,984
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREEFATH Ego Time 2
interest in Ego Time WA R L - 98,482
Goodwill B — 142,936
Carrying amount of the Group’s AREEREgo Time Z
interest in Ego Time R IREE - 241,418
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Sinopec NewOcean AL EE
Current assets MENVEE 514,906 180,242
Non-current assets JEMENE E 742 75
Current liabilities nBEE (369,178) (47,850)
Non-current liabilities EmEIaE (9) -
Revenue WA 2,194,601 424,000
}%rofit and total comprehensive income ~ ARNEEHM L2 HE
for the year W e 458 18,375 5,277
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HE2014F 12 31 HIFF/E
21. Interests in Associates (Continued) 21. BiBLAFESRK (&)
Summarised financial information of associates WELEICHEESEHEE(Z)
(Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LB ERBE BN A S IRE T
information to the carrying amount of the interest in RAZBE AR ERERMEZZHEN
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial ™
statements:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Net assets of Sinopec NewOcean FEFNEZ BEFE 146,461 132,467
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AREBFEFR ARG Z
interest in Sinopec NewOcean e 7B T 2 L 1B 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s AEBRFAEIEZ
interest in Sinopec NewOcean HEREEE 71,766 64,909
22. Interests in Joint Ventures 20 SBLHEEA
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint EEMEEhHE
ventures B KA
At 1 January ®n1A1H8 11,893 10,420
Share of profits and other 4k G g ) K H Ath
comprehensive income for the year 2R 1,719 1,473
New joint venture incorporated MRz BEE 6,357 =

At 31 December m12 A31H 19,969 11,893
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22. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had
interests in the following joint ventures:

22. AELRER(E)

MR20144F K 20131283810 A&
ERUATAEEhESEEER

Proportion of

Form of Principal Fully paid nominal value of
business Country of  place of up registered registered capital held Nature of
Name of entity structure incorporation operation capital by the Group business
RERE 3 A0 FEEE BREER FREFAFEROTRF
RE&E ECE] BX B -t HEe REME
2014 2013
EMNTEHRREELA  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB2,250,000 49% 49%  Sales and distribution
(“B#F") (Note) of LPG
ENTEFRRERAR  Eafify i i 2,250,000 AR % HERDBERIR
(I 1))
ENEREFERARAA  Incorporated  PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 30% —  Sales and distribution
("B of LPG
EMEERTERERAT Eafify R i 10,000,000 AR 1 HEAHRIR
(Tek))

Note: The Group’s entitlement to share in the profits of its joint
venture is in proportion to its ownership interest after the
subcontracting period mentioned in the following paragraph.

Pursuant to an agreement entered into between Qing Yuan
Shi Qingxin District Bai Fu Yang Petrol Chemical Company
Limited (“BFY”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
and the joint venture partner of %7 on 3 November 2006,
the operation of & #1 has been subcontracted to BFY with
a subcontracting period of 8 years until 2014. Both parties
are currently under negotiation to extend the subcontracting
period for another 3 years to 2017, the directors of
the Company considered that a formal subcontracting
agreements will be extended in coming months.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s interests in joint ventures which is accounted for
using the equity method is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown
in the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

Bat AREBE SRR EREZ SN TR
TEE AR IR K 2 AR AR 18 H T (R 5%
B HERRESLOFE -

BEARBZE2EWBARERME
FREEEFAMLEIARARIES
FDREH ZEE B HER2006F 11
A3BGIMZ W BHZEBBEINA
FEEF INHEE2014F - BHS8
F o EFHFRAEIINIBERIFR
2017F » ARAIEETEZEHNEAR
B~ IEXNRIHELD -

AEBUERSHEAARZE SR EE
S BERBREHINWT - TRMKE
HMERRETEVBHREENRR
BEREUBMEMINRZEE -
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22. Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued) 22, SELERERZ)
B =kl
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEIT FET
Current assets MENEE 5,480 4,162
Non-current assets IEMENE B 4,631 5,073
Current liabilities mENEfE (4) (30)
Revenue WA 32,346 39,342
Profit for the year F A A 1,713 1,127
Other comprehensive income FREMEE U ﬂ
for the year 6 346
Total comprehensive income FREEK B
for the year 1,719 1,473
R R
#EfE was newly incorporated in year 2014 and not yet BE 70 2014 4 3 B 2 30 K B 4R & A ©
commenced its business operation. As at 31 December 2014, RBE2014F12 431 AL BRZE
the assets of #EE was mainly deposits paid, construction EXRREMNTE ERIRERRITA
in progress and bank balances and cash, and there was no BmERE  RIWEERRRE

significant liability.
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23. Available for Sale Investment 23.

2014 2013

Available for sale investment comprise:  AI L HEREBIE

— Equity securities listed in Korea — BEEWMZE
(Note) (Hfat)

AL R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
81,958 136,534

Note: The Group holds 27.33% (2013: 32.45%) interest in
Integrated Energy Limited (“IE”). The Group disposed 5.12%
interest in |E during the year ended 31 December 2014.
Although the Group holds more than 20% of the voting
power in |IE, the directors of the Company consider the
Group has no significant influence to govern the financial
and operating policies of IE. As such, the equity securities
of |E is not accounted for as an associate and the amount
is accounted for as available for sale investment as at 31
December 2014 and 2013. The equity market in Korea
was remained unstable in past year and the directors of
the Company expected the IE shares would not be realised

m within twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
Therefore, the amount is classified as non-current asset as
at 31 December 2014 and 2013. The fair value of IE shares
is determined based on quoted market bid price of shares
of IE traded on KOSDAQ and amounted to approximately
HK$81,598,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013:
HK$136,534,000).

24. Deposits Paid 24.

The amount represents the deposits paid for purchase of
property, plant and equipment.

25. Inventories 25.

Kiat - REBEHE A Integrated Energy Limited
(MEJ) Z227.33% (2013 : 32.45%) #&
o REEREZE2014F12 A31H
IFEEREEIE 5.12%#25 - BEA
%I%EIH ZREZ20%LA F K

RAEERABAEBITESEATES
LAREIE 2 15 R & @R - At -
IEJZ £ A BR %Il EBSE & Q& o 12014
F K2013F 12 A31H © IEJ3 ABEFI
ERIEH &I E - BEIBRMREFD
RATE ARAESBTERREH
KE12E B RZIRIER D - H Lt
R 20144 K2013412A831H » %
SENDBEARIERDEE - IERMHZ
NFE T E R KOSDAQE & 7 IERX
MMIBEAREETE © R2014F12
A 31H %) /481,598,000% 7t (2013 :
136,534,000 8 7T) °

EftEs

SERRBAYME HERRBZOH
BE o

R

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$°000

F#EiT FET

LPG BIER 81,780 256,757
Oil products JH 0B 68,712 12,753
Electronic products BFEMm 293,590 463,200
444,082 732,710

The cost of inventories charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year amounted to approximately

FREFGREREMEm KRR
ZFE EZ$£\’]7%18255810000}%7_E

e

t

“u‘&wg

_ FK$18,255 Suiitel 1 3: HK$18,217,938,000). = = __ 7!3

25 Bs & i
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,
Deposits and Prepayments

26. R HIRMR - EIRE - HfthFE
WRER - BaRAMRE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEIT FET

Trade debtors U E S BR K 3,009,943 2,164,625
Bills receivable eI =R 43,150 211,621
3,053,093 2,376,246

The Group allows an average credit period of 90 days. The
bills receivable are matured within the range of 30 days
to 180 days for the years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013. The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors
and bills receivable at the end of the reporting period
presented based on the invoice date, which approximated
the respective revenue recognition dates:

AEBZIFHEEHAEOKX H=E
20144 K 2013512 A31 B I FE E fE
WEEZEBAHNFI0KREI80K °
RERERZENE SRR R ERER
BRERDIMIZEZAHGEIRAERB
27T -

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FET

0 to 30 days 0E 30K 1,089,026 1,155,625
31 to 60 days 31 & 60K 563,023 467,009
61 to 90 days 61 E 90K 111,832 238,606
91 to 180 days 91 E 180 K 957,868 509,110
Over 180 days i@ 180K 331,344 5,896
3,053,093 2,376,246

Included in the Group’s trade debtors, debtors of
approximately HK$6,000 (2013: HK$2,142,000) are
denominated in USD/HKD, which is not the functional
currency of the relevant group entities.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
assesses the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customers. Recoverability
of the existing customers is reviewed by the Group
regularly. Included in the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable balance are receivables with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,587,465,000
(2013: HK$2,273,529,000), which are neither past due nor
impaired. m— it |

AEEZEWE S RKF 46,0008 7T
(20183 : 2,142,000 7T) BETT,/ BT
TE Ex/ArlEEEEEREE

AEEREMTRNTITEAT G LT
HEERFPZ2EEE R UHEH
EEBE - ASETHEMAESRERPZ
BRREN  c BREAEEZE S EUEE
KA EU Z=E A - 492,587,465,00078
76 (2013 : 2,273,529,000 % 7T ) fE Uz &
SRR LAEES D2 BERE
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,

Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$465,628,000 (2013: HK$102,717,000) which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group does not
hold any collateral over the balances. The trade debtors
past due but not provided for were either subsequently
settled as at the date of this report or no historical default
of payments by the respective customers. The average age
of these receivables is 206 days (2013: 129 days). Up to
the date of this announcement, the subsequent settlement
from the trade debtors past due amounted to approximately
HK$371,295,000. As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the
Group has no provision for allowance for doubtful debts.

Aging of trade debtors based on the invoice date
which are past due but not impaired

26. EWRAHIRRR - EURE - HfhiE
BIRR - RERAFMKRERE)

REE 2 BWE 5 RFKGREF - BREEE
#9465,628,000/8 7t(2013 : 102,717,000
B 2 BUWERR RN REAEHE B -
BASEWRERBEBERE -  ASEIL
EREEMEANZEHRECERAR - 28
HEREREEB EKESERDEER
AHERBE  HEEFBENELS
RFRTE o s FRIERK 2 I BRiEk 5206
X(2013:120K) - EEAREH &
371,295,000 7T B B HAM FE UL E 5 BR K
ERERILE - PR 2014FE K 2013412 A
318 - ANEEW BB RERIEL B -

CBMEXRREZEREARRIZRER
H Rz iRE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

61 to 90 days 61 & 90K 93,410 29,830
91 to 180 days 91 £180K 74,407 67,005
Over 180 days BB 180K 297,811 5,882
Total =1 465,628 102,717

Included in other debtors, there are trade deposits paid
to suppliers of approximately HK$956,833,000 (2013:
HK$278,639,000) in relation to the purchase of LPG
and oil products which will be delivered within one year
commencing from the date of the signed purchase
contract.

Also, approximately HK$72,627,000 (2013:
HK$51,692,000) included in other debtors are interest
receivables from pledged bank deposits and bank deposits,
those amounts will be received monthly or when the
pledged bank deposits are released.

Hp B ER BRI HERESIEEH
956,833,000 7L(2013 : 278,639,000
L) » W REBERICR K R R
BeMst —FAxRft -

A N N S ) N T )
72,627,000 7£(2013 : 51,692,000 &
TL)ZBERRITERRIRITERZE
WHEB - %FEERIEA KR R
B KR ERTT 77 B R ER
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26. Trade Debtors, Bills Receivable, Other Debtors,

27.

Deposits and Prepayments (Continued)

Included in other debtors, there were loans receivable
which a subsidiary of the Company entered into loan
agreements with an independent third party to provide short
term loans of RMB216,000,000 (2013: RMB216,000,000)
equivalent to approximately HK$274,729,000 (2013:
HK$274,729,000). The loans borrowed by the independent
third party are used for developing a potential property
project in Zhuhai in the PRC. Based on the loan
agreements, the loans are entrusted by equity share of
an unlisted company owned by the independent third
party in the PRC and bear fixed interest 5% per annum
and are matured in December 2014. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, the independent third party
repaid approximately RMB133,681,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$170,065,000). In December 2014, a
supplemental agreement was entered by both parties in
which the maturity date of the remaining amount of the
loan of approximately RMB82,319,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$104,664,000) would be extended to
December 2015 and carried at fixed interest rate of 5% per
annum.

Amounts Due from Associates

The amounts due from associates are in trade nature aged
within 90 days based on invoice date. A credit period of 30
days to 90 days is granted to associates. All balances are
neither past due nor impaired at the end of the reporting
period.

26.

27.

BRRHER - ElRE - HfhE
iR - e RBEMARERE)

H R B ERKER - TIRAQE
WMEBAREBIE = EX =
LA$Z i 52 BB B 3 A R % 216,000,000 7T
(2013 : A R #216,000,000 7T ) (#H % 1
49274,729,0007%8 JT(2013 : 274,729,000
BIL)) e BAE=ZFHFE2ERTVA
EBERPBEKEM OBEYWHEIEE - 1B
BER WS ERVUBYE=%4E
ZHBEIEEM AR 2 R IERR
W% B F FFEK5%ET S - B R2014
F12H 2 B - H £2014F 12 A31 H
FEFEE BUF=ZHBEEHARE
133,681,000 7T (6 & 1 £ 170,065,000
HBIT) o M20144F 128 EHE
Tk - B - AR S2,319,000 7T
(FZR#1104,664,00078 70 ) B 848
ZRHEHTEHE2015F 12 A - WIAE
EFMEE5%ETE -

B BE A TR

EU & NRRA B S M ERERR
HiEH H 2 BRER B 90 RIAA o 7K &= [ [m Bt
ERAETIOREQRZEEHR - T
BEHRRERRGRARIRE -

o
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28. Properties Under Development for Sales 28. FEBRRAYE
HK$’000
FET
COST BE
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1A1H 188,060
Additions =T 14,024
Exchange adjustments ME 5, e B 6,134
At 31 December 2013 2013412 A31H 208,218
Additions NE 16,695
Exchange adjustments & 5 A 23
At 31 December 2014 Mm2014%12 A31 R 224,936

29.

The Group is developing half of the Land into properties for
sales. The details of the Land are set out in note 17. All the
properties under development for sales are not expected
to be realised within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of properties under
development for sales is situated on land in the PRC under
medium term leases.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks to
secure banking facilities granted to the Group. The
deposits have been pledged to secure short-term bank
loans, and are therefore classified as current assets. The
pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$2,273,000
(2013: HK$1,666,000) carry at floating interest rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 0.25% (2013: 0.01% to 0.83%) per
annum and will be released upon settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings. The pledged bank deposits included
an amount of approximately HK$3,520,169,000 (2013:
HK$3,860,364,000) carried at fixed interest rates which
ranged from 0.35% to 4.73% (2013: 0.35% to 4.70%) per
annum and will be released upon settlement of the relevant
bank borrowings.

The bank balances carried interest at market rates which
ranged from 0.01% to 3.88% (2013: 0.01% to 4.50%) per
annum.

29.

AEBIERZITHZ —FABFED
¥ o Rt HIBENME7 - ERF
ERRTOEFEPHTIEERSHRE
12 ARNER - FEEXRPYEZIIRE
ERFEZ LI AR BRBLNRES -

EEARTER  BITEREEA®

ZHEEERTRITEANEERKR
TRECERIGER - ZEFREER
ERRHRITERZER  WOBAR
FEE - BIIFRITE L 2,273,000
7 7£(2013 : 1,666,000 7T ) 3% ¥ B)
F F KN F0.01%20.25% (2013 :
0.01% £ 0.83%) s B WK E IR
TEREERER EEBRETERE
¥E 5 8 #93,520,169,000/% 7T (2013 :
3,860,364,0007% 7T ) + 1% & 7 F F &
N F0.35% & 4.73% (2013 : 0.35% &
4.70%)5T B - WS BRERITIEREE
BFARRR o

R AT & 8B RN F001%%E3.88%
(2013 : 0.01% £ 4.50% ) Z T % & FI| &
AR

A
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29.

30.

Pledged Bank Deposits, Bank Balances and
Cash (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the RMB pledged bank
deposits of approximately HK$3,494,770,000 (2013:
HK$3,859,479,000) were pledged for the bank trust
receipts loans.

As at 31 December 2014, the pledged bank deposits
and bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$4,946,577,000 (2013: HK$5,175,982,000) were
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible
into other currencies. Included in the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances, are approximately
HK$11,846,000 (2013: HK$27,028,000) denominated in
USD/HKD and approximately HK$2,682,202,000 (2013:
HK$2,788,452,000) denominated in RMB, which are not
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities.

In December 2014, a wholly owned subsidiary and a bank
entered into an offsetting arrangement for certain amount
of pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings. The
disclosures are set out in note 44.

Trade Creditors and Bills Payable

29. EEHRTER BITRBERAS

(%)

R 2014412 831 H » 493,494,770,000
7#70(2013 : 3,859,479,00078 ) 2 AR
EEEBRITERERBITETREE
B -

PR2014F12 A31 8 » EHEMEITER
N ARTT 458 K 3R € #94,946,577,0007%5 7T
(2013 : 5,175,982,0007% 7T ) LA A R ¥ F
B WA ERERAEMEE - K&
B ERFRTERARBITESRT O
11,846,0007% 71.(2013 : 27,028,000/ 7T)
IAZETT, EITTEE © #92,682,202,000 7%
75(2013 : 2,788,452,00078 7T ) B A A B
BEE  Fn BT ARBIIEEES
EEEZINEEEE -

R2014F 128 —H2EWNBARK
—RRTRESCENEERIBTTERE
IRITIE KT ML HZHE - BRI
44 PR

30. EMESHBRRREMRE

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade creditors JENE SRR 1,209,525 1,789,966
Bills payable FERT R 169,169 383,179
1,378,694 2,173,145

o
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30. Trade Creditors and Bills Payable (Continued) 30. EFEARRRECMTE &)
The aged analysis of trade creditors and bills payable is as JERE SRR NEMNERE ZRE DR
follows presented based on invoice date: BEABHEYWT :
HK$°000 HK$’'000
F#ET FHETT
0 to 30 days 0ZE30K 815,956 881,477
31 to 60 days 31 260K 107,080 796,791
61 to 90 days 61 290K 143,285 154,561
91 to 180 days 91 180K 312,174 180,928
Over 180 days i@ 180K 199 159,388
1,378,694 2,173,145
31. Amount due to a Joint Venture 31. EFRSELERER

demand.

m The amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable on CRARKR RERARENREE -
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32. Borrowings 32. &
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Bank trust receipts loans RITE W AR 1,433,194 1,147,367
Bank trust receipts loans and other RITIEFTHUER B R R E MR
bank loans (pledged with RMB bank ITERAARBRITER
deposits) (SERY 3,947,573 4,432,760
Bank trust receipts loans and other RITEFBEER R E AR
bank loans (pledged with HKD/USD TfER (CAE T E T iRIT
bank deposits or other assets) TR EME EEER) 206,680 105,424
Other bank loans H A RITIE R 1,835,974 949,385
7,423,421 6,634,936
Repayable within one year shown under RENBEE FFRBR —F
current liabilities NEE
Borrowings fully secured by pledged BRI IRITIF K 2 BUE R
bank deposits RIS X 2,469,373 2,876,760 ﬂ
Borrowings partially secured by B IRIRI TR E D AR
pledged bank deposits EOR=EN 1,632,022 1,661,424
Borrowings secured by other assets E B EEREER 11,227 192,166
Borrowings unsecured ERERER 2,126,914 1,352,309
6,239,536 6,082,659
Repayable over one year shown under 3ERBIEEIE NATRER —
non-current liabilities FiRER
Borrowings secured — more than one EREROER - BB —F
year, but not exceeding two years BANZIRmE 11,226 =
Borrowings unsecured — more than ERERER - BR—FAE
one year, but not exceeding two DE2NGES
years 387,594 318,727
Borrowings secured — more than two EEROER - BBRF
years, but not exceeding five years BAZRAF 30,405 =
Borrowing unsecured — more than ERERER - BRMEE
two years, but not exceeding five TNERESF
years 754,660 233,550
1,183,885 552,277
7,423,421 6,634,936
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32. fEM(#E)

32. Borrowings (Continued)

Bank borrowings include approximately HK$2,955,965,000
(2013: HK$2,779,279,000) fixed-rate borrowings which are
due within one year. They carry average interest at 1.84%
(2013: 2.36%) per annum. The remaining bank borrowings
are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest at 1 month
LIBOR plus certain basis points and HIBOR plus certain
basis points per annum ranging from 0.9% to 3.62% (2013:
0.92% to 3.64%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, other bank loans of
approximately HK$52,858,000 (2013: nil) are secured
by two oil vessels of the Group with carrying value of
approximately HK$94,110,000 and guaranteed by the
Company. As at 31 December 2013, other bank loans
of approximately HK$192,166,000 were secured by the
Group’s bills receivable and guaranteed by the Company
and its subsidiary. Included in total borrowings of the
Group, approximately HK$3,719,020,000 (31 December
2013: HK$3,430,058,000) is guaranteed by the Company
and/or its subsidiaries.

The Group’s borrowings that are denominated in currencies
which are not the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities are set out below:

USD/HKD
Xn #n

iR 17 & X #92,955,965,000 %8 7E
(2013 1 2,779,279,0008 7T ) A T &
B R—FRNEH FHEFXE
1.84% (2013 : 2.36%) ° & T 4R 77 &
REZBEET  EMERE—EABBR
TREFRENETESREBRTRAZE
FEMETESR  NTF09%E3.62%
(2013 : 0.92% = 3.64%) °

R2014F12 831 8 - HEMIRITERLY
52,858,000 7T (2013 : £ ) A KN £ &
BRE{E %) 94,110,000 78 7T K R A2 S i 1
W A AREEER - R2013F 12
A381H  HMiR1TE % 192,166,000
BITHRASEREKNEIEERR - WER
RRIRENBARIER - ANEB ZER
48 %8 493,719,020,000 7 7T (2013 4 12
A 31H :3,430,058,000% 7T ) B % &
DAV, S B A RIER o

AEBEZEFRAFEREEERDER
WeEHERE  HIWT

HK$’000
FET
As at 31 December 2014 M2014412 A31 H 856,150
As at 31 December 2013 M20134F 12 A31 H 985,122
“w!*'““"‘"*mﬂWM
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33. Share Capital 33. B=x
Number of
shares Amount
EHnEAE &8
HK$’000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEOC1BITZ LR
(2013: HK$0.1 each) (2013 : k0.1 8T)
Authorised share capital: ETERA ¢
At 1 January 2013, 31 December #2013 1H18 2013
2013 and 2014 FK2014F12 A31H 20,000,000,000 2,000,000
Issued and fully paid share capital: BEITRBERE
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1H1H 1,305,853,374 130,586
Issued of shares pursuant to a RIER S BT D
placement (Note a) (Biita) 166,500,000 16,650
Issued of shares pursuant to exercise 1R {517 {E B A ZTTA (D
of share options (Note b) (Kiatb) 11,044,842 1,104
At 31 December 2013 and MR2013F12 831 X
1 January 2014 201451 A1 H 1,483,398,216 148,340
Repurchase of shares (Note ¢) &t BE (Hatc) (3,000,000) (300)
At 31 December 2014 Mm2014512 431 H 1,480,398,216 148,040
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33. Share Capital (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

On 22 April 2013, arrangements were made in accordance
with a placing and subscription agreement dated 17 April
2013 (the “Placing and Subscription Agreement”) for a
private placement to independent placees of 166,500,000
shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company held by Uniocean,
at a price of HK$4.68 per share representing a discount of
approximately 13.49% to the closing market price of the
Company’s shares on 17 April 2013.

Pursuant to the Placing and Subscription Agreement,
Uniocean subscribed for 166,500,000 new shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price of HK$4.68 per
share on 29 April 2013. The net proceeds of approximately
HK$748,648,000 would be used as follows: () to upgrade
and expand the handling capacity of LPG facilities at the
Group’s LPG terminal in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, the
PRC; (i) for funding of the set up of Sinopec NewOcean
Energy Company Limited (“Sinopec NewOcean”) as set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 10 April 2013;
(iii) for the installation of LPG or liquefied natural gas (“LNG”)
facilities in certain gas stations owned by China Petroleum
and Chemical Corporation (“Sinopec”); (iv) to build two
propylene tanks in Zhuhai Terminal to support the upgraded
sea terminal in Zhuhai, Guangdong Province, the PRC; (v) to
acquire LPG bottles in relation to the Company’s business in
Hong Kong and (vi) for general capital purposes. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to
the directors at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 21 May 2013 and rank pari passu with other shares
in issue in all respects.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
issued and allotted a total of 11,044,842 shares of HK$0.1
each in the Company at exercise price of HK$0.625 each
to certain share options holders who exercised their share
options. These shares issued rank pari passu with other
shares issue in all respects.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
repurchased its own shares through the Stock Exchange as
follows:

No. of
ordinary share

of HK$0.1
0.1#8TZ
HiEkAE

Month of
repurchase

mis A 13

September 2014 201449 B 3,000,000

33. B&F(&E)

wizt
@

MR2013F4A22H EREBHA
2013F4A17TH 2 L E KRB W&
(e ErARBEREDIELZTHE - K
)98 M AR AR SR 4.6878 (B A
DA D R2013E4 178 2
BIMELN18.49%) 2 BRFALARLE
166,500,000 % H /88 FE SR EAE
0.10B L Z AR AR ©

RIRELE KRB RE - BEHER2013
FAA20B % T K468 T 2 B 18
2 f 166,500,000 i & B @ E0.1078
TLZARRBIFRG © RS RIEFREL
748,648,000 T AIEA T HE ()
FHERBERAEERTEERE KRS
MR R IEE 2 R R & e 2 BRI B
7 (i) AR R R R 2013F 4 B10H
Tz NEE - BRI FALHE
BERERAR(TPALTERESE
2 ()RR BEAHEIRODAERRA A
(THRAEENDEEZETNRBZER
LR BRI RARZHE : (V) RS
EEHERERAGRE  AZETEE
RAKBMZEARBE : VAR
AIRBEBZ EBARE R RIA K (vi) 1E
—REESZH - WEFBRMHIIBEAR
ARAE2013F5 A21 B LT 2 KK
BFASERTFESZ —MITRME
17 WA HEELMEETRGD
ZHREHAL -

HZE2013F12A31HIEFE » AR
AIRITEEER0.6258 T © MBITHE
HEREETHEREZREABITR
fit 3 & ££ 11,044,842 1% & A% @ 15 0.1
BILZARARRRMG - WEEBEITRGD
ERAEFEEEMERTRNDEZSR

FHAT o

REBZE2014F12AS1BLEFER -
ARREBY S ABELEY - B
W

Aggregate
consideration
paid (excluding
transaction

cost)

Bf#RE

Price per share (FEEXS

SRES BRE)
highest
e

HK$ HK$ HK$’000

BT BT FET

3.85 3.85 11,5650

The above share

-

s were cancelled upon repurchase.

—= ==
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions 34. DRI EERZZHZS
Equity-settled share option scheme R MERETS

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the Special
General Meeting of the Company held on 18 June
2003, the Company adopted an option scheme (“Option
Scheme”). The Option Scheme was expired on 17 June
2013. Pursuant to the terms of the Option Scheme, the
options granted prior to the expiration of the Option
Scheme are continued to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the Option Scheme.

The purpose of the Option Scheme was to provide
incentives or rewards to participants including directors,
employees, suppliers and customers etc. Under the Option
Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company, may at
their discretion grant options to participants to subscribe
for shares in the Company in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme. The subscription price be a price
determined by the directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of
offer for grant of options, which must be a trading day; (ii)
the average closing price of shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer for grant of
options; and (iiij the nominal value of a share. The total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options might be granted to a participant, when aggregated
with shares issued and issuable (including exercised and
outstanding options and the options cancelled) under any
option granted to the same participant under the Option
Scheme or any other share option scheme within any 12
month period, must not exceed 1% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

BIEARDRN2003FE6 A18H BT
BREFNASBHAZEBRZER
DRI —EE R B ([ IR
B 1) BB ER2013F6 417
HEm - BIEBEIRE B 2 &K - RIE
RRiEF S E MR L 2 RSB ES
R WA RIS AR AE AT BITTE o

BhREFSZENAMES - &8 - H#
ERkEFPE2EERMHBH DM -
RIZEREE - ARREFERBE
) 2 B2 25 4% 1 AT AR IR P A At 81 IR AR
BARBIRMD ZERE RBEAHE
SETE EMABERO)RELRTRBRE
ZHWEARRZH)  BONEBIME
ARERMBIWHE () BERELER
TREEZENAERXSA - RODED
RFfBAMERABZFHURTE &
(RO EEARESERE) - RIEHE
PR Rt B B AN S [ 4 fr] EL 4t R B i T &
ROz 28 BREETERA TEITL
Bhas EEATHRBBERTERNZ
10% °

2 RIR BB R B SRR E (B A
ArEERT2EEZEMERE(ERED
TTERRITEZBERERD FH B
B)P R 2BBITRATETZRNDA
BaftatER - REM12EAREE2
HERR 2 BIREMS R &Rm B #
BTSEBTREHTRMN 1% °

o
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

There was no requirement for a grantee to hold the option
for a certain period before exercising the option save as
determined by the board of directors of the Company and
provided in the offer of grant of option.

The exercise period should be any period fixed by the
board of directors of the Company upon grant of the option
but in any event the option period should not go beyond 10
years from the date of offer for grant.

The acceptance of an option, if accepted, must be made
within 28 days from the date of grant with a non-refundable
payment of HK$1.00 from the grantee to the Company.

34.

IR BBRZIMRR (&)
HoREMEEE(E)

BRARREFTGRE RNRER TFER
RZEZTRREN  UEREARAR
RITEBREMES FHEBERE KRB
f] °

FEMEARARNEF RN R B RE
BRI 2 E A EREFERT -
BB AR T B e R R T 2 A 2
5107 -

AR AR ZABRE - BARE LA H
FEET 28 KAA AR BB AN AT R E 3R
1.00%& 7T °
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34. Share-Based Payment Transactions (Continued) 34. LR AERZIHEZS(E)
Option Scheme g g ]
The following tables disclose details of the Company’s TREENHZ2014F K 2013F 12 A
share options granted under the Option Scheme held by S1THLEMEFERE(BEEER)FEL
employees (including directors) and movements in such NRARBERES SR EBRERE
holdings during the two years ended 31 December 2014 BB EAC BEFE -
and 2013:
Number of Number of
share options share options
outstanding at Exercised outstanding at
Exercise 1 January during 31 December
Optiontype  Date of grant  Vesting period Exercisable period price 2013 the year 2013 and 2014
R2013ER
20135 20145
1A1A 12A318
AFRITEZ RETHEZ
RERERR RHAM REH fREENA f RERENA
HK$
AT
2006A 15 May 2006 16 May 2006 to 17 June 2006 to 0.625 14,910,537 - 14,910,637 ﬂ
16 June 2006 31 December 2015
200665A158 200665A16H%E 20066 H17AZE
200668168 20159123318
20068 16 June 2006  — 17 June 2006 to 0.625 17,671,747 (11,044,842) 6,626,905
31 December 2015
2006567168 — 200656 A17HZE
2015512 4318
32,582,284 (11,044,842) 21,537,442
Details of the share options held by the directors included RS HESHE2EREFRBN
in the above table are as follows: T
Outstanding at Outstanding at
1 January 2013 Exercised during the year 31 December 2013 and 2014
#2013%1A1H #2013 K 20145
HRITE FRETE 12 A 31 HRA K {T{#H
22,641,926 (11,044,842) 11,597,084
There was no share option granted for the year ended 31 H £2014F K 2013512 A31 H It &

December 2014 and 2013. EA R DA RE o
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35. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during
the current and prior year:

35.

BIER B

FARBAZWREE  AEEEHRZ
BARLEHBAGBEE) RBBEZE 0
T

Accelerated Other
tax Tax intangible
depreciation losses assets
mERRERE REER R\ EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET BT BT FET
At 1 January 2013 ®2013%1 A1R 55,704 (1,304) 89,957 144,357
Charge (credit) to profit/loss RERBEMR
for the year (AE) 1,168 (7) (7,186) (6,025)
Exchange adjustments [E 5% 1,746 (47) 2,642 4,341
At 31 December 2013 R2013€12 318 58,618 (1,358) 85,413 142,673
Arising on acquisition of WEEMBAREE
subsidiaries — (6,000) - (6,000)
(Credit) charge to profit/loss RERER(AR)
for the year ez (6,041) 46 (6,729) (12,718)
Exchange adjustments ERTIEEE (54) - (66) (120)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12 A 31 A 52,523 (7,312) 78,624 123,835

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
for financial reporting purposes:

AT BIEM 5 2 A% 2 mE RIS A R
DT

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Deferred tax assets BT EE 7,312 1,358
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE (131,147) (144,031)
(123,835) (142,673)
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35. Deferred Taxation (Continued) 35. BERK(Z)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has estimated
unutilised tax losses of approximately HK$327,897,000
(2013: HK$248,185,000) available for offset against future
profits. Deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect
of approximately HK$29,248,000 (2013: HK$5,432,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to
remaining balances of approximately HK$298,649,000
(2013: HK$242,753,000) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses of
approximately HK$6,014,000 (2013: HK$2,876,000) will be
expired before year 2017 (2013: year 2016). Other losses
may be carried forward indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$79,436,000 (2013: HK$81,096,000) in respect of
accelerated accounting depreciation. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary differences as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to HK$558,499,000 (31 December 2013:
HK$465,517,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.

RERBAR REBE G HEHE
RARREM 2 RBRAMBEBBEED A
327,897,000 7t (2013 : 248,185,000
B T ) B Bt #£929,248,0007% It
(20183 : 5,432,000 7 Jr ) HE 7R3 IE £ 755
BE - AR B & 2% 5 SRR 2 ATE R -
HT 4 Th BR T 45 #4249 298,649,000 78 T
(20183 : 242,753,000 JT ) i R IE T
IS E E o #6,014,0007 7T (2013 :
2,876,000/ 70) 2 RHERT B E B R
2017 F (2013 : 20164 ) AT 8 o E b
518 Bl mT M PR HA A o

REFREK - BEMESHINEF &
£ BB R E R ZRE4Y 79,436,000 78
7£(2013 : 81,096,000 7T ) » M1 A &K
AT A M AR T =K AR
L3R 2 ERRFRE R 2 AR K+ i E
ERZ SR T =B RELRHG

BIEFRRMERE - B2008F1H1H
#E - AR BB B A B BT B ER 2 0m A T B R
2B EBMTENR o AEBIWESLIE
TAREMBARZ Rt AN 2 B E
#558,499,000% (2013 12 A 31 A -
465,517,000 8 70 ) N bR & B 75 3R = N ET
IRIEEREEE - WA AEE
Bl O TR EE R AT ER
AR AT B R & D -
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36.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries

On 19 December 2014, Maxx Investments entered into
the Sales and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which
an independent third party agreed to sell, and Maxx
Investments agreed to purchase, the entire equity interest
in Success Pillar (the “Acquisition”). The principal business
of Success Pillar is the holding of 51% equity interest in
Ego Time Group, with the remaining 49% being held by
the Group through Maxx Investments. The acquisition was
completed on 29 December 2014. After completion the
Acquisition, Ego Time Group was changed from associates
to wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The
Directors considered that the Acquisition will bring about
a further synergy effect in merging the two oil products
customer networks developed by the Group and Ego Time
Group in the past. The Acquisition also allows the Group
to gain full control of the operation of Ego Time Group,
to unit its business targets with that of the Group, and
to strengthen the operational chain for the oil products
business resulting in higher profitability and the overall
shareholder value of the Group. The consideration for the
Acquisition was HKD250,000,000.

36.

I SRR B A F)
B2014F 12 A19H » Maxx
Investmentsz] 37 — 10 B & & © &
- BYE=FREHE  MMaxx
Investments [F & #& A Success Pillar 2
2 E s ([ Wk ]) © Success Pillar
ZEEXEKAFEBEG Time&EB51%
i H#49% A K & E B iBMaxx
Investments#§ & - % 10 W & 12014
F12 298 5T - W iE T X & - Ego
TimeEBEXAAEB 2 EHEHRB A
Al-BEEZRE WESEETRE—F
W EME - BARER K Ego Time £E A
FHREzMEHRZF LG O - WEE
EENMEEAEBEES Ego TmeEE 2
EHEEELETIE UEAEF ZEKE
B WhRHmERCEERE - BAR
RIERE SR N R EEREEE -
Z AW AE 2 X {8 /& 250,000,000 7T °
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued) 36. WREMIEAR (&)
The Acquisition of Ego Time Group had the following effect WS Ego Time S EH RSB EE R
on the Group’s assets and liabilities: BEZFENT
HK$’000
FAET
Net assets acquired: S &EFE:
Non-current assets FEmEEE
Property, plant and equipment L E T Y 609
Other intangible assets HEmEpEE 102,722
Other assets HMEE 17
Deferred tax assets BB ERE 6,000
109,348
Current assets BB E
Inventories FE 67,161
Trade debtors (Note i) FEWE SRR (a7 ) 825,969
Other debtors, deposits and prepayment HE IR « e MBI FIE 52,827
Bank balances and cash RITERNIR S 24,214
Amounts due from the Group NEEE R U FIA 5,577
975,748
Current liabilities BB E
Trade creditors FEE SRR 212,844
Other creditors and accrued charges EMEMERKRETER 8,652
Amounts due to the Group NEBER 2 FIA 745,426
966,922
Net assets at Acquisition Date WHEHFEE 118,174
Goodwill on Acquisition (Note i) WibE 2 BB (KTt i) 372,022
Fair value of previously held 49% equity interest in B Ego Time 2 [E 49% #E25
Ego Time Group (Note iii) ZANYE(H i) (240,196)
250,000
Satisfied by: ATFIERZ A
Cash consideration ReENRE 250,000
Consideration payable (Note iv) FER B (it iv) (100,000)
Cash consideration paid in year 2014 R2014FEN2BHERE 150,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEERERHESERIER (24,214)

Net outflow cash and cash equivalents in respect of Ui Ego Tme &£ B 2R & &
the Acquisition of Ego Time Group REFERIEE R FEE 125,786
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36. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes:

(i) The receivables acquired (which principally comprised trade
debtors) with a fair value of approximately HK$825,969,000
at the date of acquisition had gross contractual amounts
of approximately HK$884,574,000. The best estimate at
Acquisition Date of the contractual cash flows not expected
to be collected amount to approximately HK$58,605,000.

(if) None of the goodwill is expected to be deductible for tax
purpose.
(i) ~ The gain on deemed disposal of previously held 49% equity

interest in Ego Time Group of approximately HK$21,860,000
was measured as the excess of the fair value of the
49% equity interest in Ego Time Group of approximately
HK$240,196,000 at 29 December 2014 over the carrying
amount of 49% equity interest previously held in Ego Time
Group of approximately HK$218,336,000 at 29 December
2014 in accordance with HKFRS 3 (Revised), Business
Combination.

(iv)  The total consideration of HK$250,000,000 was paid by
two instalments and the first payment of HK$150,000,000
was settled on 24 December 2014. The second payment of
HK$100,000,000 was settled on 5 January 2015 and the
amount was recorded as other payable in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014.

(v)  The acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$100,000 incurred in the year ended 31 December 2014
were recognised directly as an administrative expense in that
year.

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

The goodwill arose on the acquisition was attributable
to the benefits of expected synergies of two oil products
customer networks developed by the Group and Ego Time
Group, revenue growth and future market development of
Ego Time Group etc. These benefits are not recognised
separately from goodwill because they do not meet the
recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

36.

() RNEBEBEMSZEEER(EEREK
B ZRR) 2 #825,969,000/8 L2 A
FEZ BRH S 5 A 73884,574,000
AL M EBH BHTEKE
ZRNBEREBZREGT AN
58,605,000 7T °

(i)  WEEHEARBIEHRTIAS HBE

(i) WAREL BT AEG Time&k
49% # 2% W IR 25 #921,860,0007% TT
ERBER BB @S EREIREE
R ¥EA0sTE - ZWE AEgo
Time&E E R 2014F 12 A29 8 A ¥ &
M 28 2 49% #9240,196,0008 7T * &,
= A B4 B Ego Time £ @ 49% /&
%5 M2014F12 4298 2 REEL
218,336,000 & TTAT1S °

(v) #  {8250,000,0007% 7T 2 M 8 =X
- % — Hi#9 150,000,000 7% 7T & R
2014612248 X - & —# K
100,000,000/ 7t B M 201541 A5
At B8R 20149F 12 A 31
AZGRAMBRABRERP LA M
JERTFRIE o

v) REIE2014F 12831 BItFEERE
A %9100,000 7% 7T 2 4 f& 4R 8 Bk AR
RZFEANBEERRATRSH -

BRHERERAZEE

WEmMEAZEEBARAEE R
Ego Time B EH MR FREA 8
Was ~ WA R K Ego Time & B #5 5k HY
MBERESE - BRZEF R R EDRE
RETHPEREEZIEME BB
REER D BIER -
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36.

37.

Acquisition of Subsidiaries (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
(Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no
significant contribution in revenue and profit by Ego
Time Group to the Group because the Acquisition was
completed by end of the year 2014. Had these business
combinations been effected at 1 January 2014, the
revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$20,343,972,000 and the profit for the year would
have been approximately HK$844,030,000. Before the
completion of the Acquisition, Ego Time Group made an
impairment losses of approximately HK$58,605,000 for
pending trade receivables related to bunkering contracts
made with O.W. Bunker China Limited (“OW Bunker
China”) which commenced winding up proceed on 21
November 2014. The directors consider the allowance for
doubtful debt was one-off impairment loss which would not
materially affect the value of Ego Time Group as a whole.
The details of the impairment loss related to OW Bunker
China are disclosed in the announcement issued by the
Company on 19 December 2014. The directors consider
these ‘proforma’ number to represent an approximate
measure of the performance of the combined group on
an annualised basis and to provide a reference point for
comparison in future periods.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2014 and 2013.

36. WMMELR (&)

37.

BN EREREIRE(E)

HE2014F12A31B EFE AR
W =R MK 2014 F K5 * Ego Time
EETARAEAEBRMEREAHKAR
FEER - MEZZEXEBE HR2014
F1RAIBER AEEMNKADN A
20,343,972,0008 7T + RERN &N A
844,030,000 % 7T ° Wi HIE TR AT
Ego Time % B A 12 8 0.W. Bunker
China Limited ([OW Bunker Chinal)
EENBEENZERESERMA
#4758,605,000 7 JT B & 1B & 18 - OW
Bunker China 2014 £ 11 A 21 HifT
BB EERAREREAIXERR
H - W Are%HEgo Tme EERBETE
HFAFE - 5 OW Bunker China &
BEZFBENAAT2014F 12 419
BREMNAETRHEE EZRAZEE
EHTARRAHEEUNFEAER 2K
WRA LTS - WABKRERREER
ZhOATELLER ©

BRAR

R20144 K2013%F 128318 A&
B ESE RHKAEE -
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38. Lease Commitments 38.

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases for office, oil vessels and
LPG gas stations which fall due as follows:

2014 2013

HEXE
FREEBEEA
MR IRER  AE ER R AT R

PWAE MR REANEL 2
B LHEe W - BISEWOT -

HK$°000 HK$’000
F#ET FET
Within one year —F R 39,560 27,154
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERAFN(BEEEMRT) 47,895 35,001
Over five years BiERF 22,928 19,572
110,383 81,727
As at 31 December 2014, rentals are fixed for an average R2014412A31H - M & BT & F
5 B6F (2013 : 64F ) o R2014F 12

of 6 years (2013: 6 years). Operating lease payments
mainly represent rentals payable by the Group for LPG
gas stations owned by Lianxin Energy amounting to
approximately HK$74,143,000 (2013: HK$67,041,000)
as at 31 December 2014. Since 1 November 2013, the
business of Lianxin Energy has been subcontracted to
Sinopec NewOcean and details of the subcontracting
arrangement are set out in note 21(b).

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with an associate for the following future
minimum lease payments for the oil vessels and office
premises:

A31H KEMERBEDNEEELSE
E AR RESR 2R/ R R U E
2 % 4974,143,0007% 7T (2013 :
67, 041 ooo;‘%fz) B2013F 11 A18
fL BER < E M52 B AL
ﬁﬁ7¥< ZHE 2 SR EMTEE 21 () ©

FREMERHEA
REEHR - AEBEC HA T M R

NEZ BE&IEE BB SR FET
#

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

F&IT F&ET

Within one year —FR - 2,038
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ERFRN(BEEREME) - 1,803
- 3,841

a
4 P

SRR

t

& ‘mwmf

o
=
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38. Lease Commitments (Continued) 38. HE&IE~Z)
The Group as lessor (Continued) FEEESHBAE)
From 29 December 2014 onward, the associate became a 20149 12 529 B » B & R RE K
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group. AAEENEZEWBAR -
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RIEHR - XEEERUTRAEBAER
contracted with an associate and independent third party SRS N R B E = AL

for the following future subcontracting payments:

2014 2013

HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET FAET
Within one year —FR 14,884 12,691
In the second to fifth year inclusive E_ZhFERN(RREEMTE) 53,695 50,904
Over five years BRRE 48,739 61,503
117,318 125,098

The details of the subcontracting arrangement are set out AR R BRI 21(0) ° ‘

in note 21(b).
39. Other Commitments 39. Hfthakim

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFAET FET

Capital expenditure contracted for but  #RIATEBHE L

not provided in the consolidated BRNEGRE B ImE
financial statements in respect of: BB ERRE
Purchase of property, plant and BAME KRR

equipment BRG] 431,387 532,497
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40. Retirement Benefits Plans

40. EfFmEFIEHE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of
the schemes are held separately from those of the Group,
in funds under the control of trustees. The Group and each
employee employed in Hong Kong are required to make
a contribution of 5% on the employees’ monthly relevant
income with a maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,250
per person from January 2014 to May 2014 and HK$1,500

per person from June 2014 onward.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute fixed percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Related Party Transactions

41.

Saved as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group entered into the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

2014 2013

Sales to a joint venture

Rental expenses paid to Shum Ho, Neo
(Note 1)

Sales to associates

Rental income received from associates
(i) Qil vessels
(i) Office premises

Rental income for warehouse received
from Lianxin Energy (Note 2)

Subcontracting fee received from an
associate

Information and technical fees received
from Lianxin Energy (Note 2)

Bunkering services charge paid to an
associate

A—aEhEHE

MRz HERX
(HizE1)

MR A RIHE

B & A AIUCER 2 & A
(i) Jaf
(i) PNEYHE

B RT AR IER R E 2 &
WA (HiE2)

) — KBk A RIUE
e

B ET BE IR UKER 2 & &L K%
B & (Hit2)

m—REE AR Z
g ENERGEE

KEBAERBEA L EBEERREER
Rt NELE - ZFTEcEER
AEBEESRIFEE  BIETTANRES
RS - AEERRESRERBZEM
BEEBRIEEEBBKAZ5%EH
- BH20145F1 A E2014F58 &
B2014F6 A  FARKERDF A
FA1,25087T K% 1,500 87T °

AEERTENRBARZEEZ2MNTR
BT EE 2 RIKEHE S - ZFHBA
AIREBRAERRBHAFTENTERAZ
B T Lo B R o AN SR B SR R AR A AT 81
ZHE—BERERIEEHRR -

FREALZ S

Brir & MR A 7 PRI ER & S
AEERFARBEEATETIIR
2

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
3,995 2,446
4,919 960
5,481,918 2,803,660
12,152 3,400
1,200 660
3,952 —
12,643 2,083
3,793 3,125
1,931 —
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41.

Related Party Transactions (Continued)

Notes:

1. Shum Ho, Neo is the employee of the group and also the
son of Shum Siu Hung and Tong Shiu Ming. Shum Siu Hung
is the executive director of the Company.

2. The operation of Lianxin Energy is subcontracted to Sinopec
NewOcean. The details of the subcontracting agreement are
set out in note 21(b).

On 16 May 2013, Sound Management Services Limited
(“Sound Management”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company entered into an office tenancy agreement with
Shum Ho, Neo for the use of office premises provided
by Shum Ho, Neo located on 20th Floor, Times Tower,
393 Jaffe Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong at HK$80,000 per
calendar month for a period of one year commencing on
16 May 2013. On 18 December 2013, Sound Management
entered into an office tenancy agreement with Ever Lucky
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly
owned by Shum Ho, Neo, for the use of office premises
owned by Ever Lucky Limited located on 23rd Floor, The
Sun’s Group Centre, No. 200 Gloucester Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong at HK$380,000 per calendar month for a period
of one year commencing on 1 January 2014. The details of
the transaction were set out in the announcement issued
by the Company dated on 18 December 2013.

Save as disclosed above and note 27, there were no
other significant transactions with related parties during
the year or significant balances with them at the end of
the reporting period. The rental expenses paid to Shum
Ho, Neo are subjected to reporting and announcement
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rule, the remaining
transactions disclosed in this note and note 31 are
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, but are exempted from reporting,
announcement, and shareholders approval requirements
under Listing Rules.

41.

1. AEBEZEEZENZVERE NS
ZF ZOMBRNRBZHTES -

B ae R 2 & EE P AL B R
B ABRREEZFHBRIRMHEE21(0)

MR2013F5H168 » AR Az & &M
BRARNEBEERESERAR(FNEE
B HEBETURAERL UAME
80, OOO/%E%E}EH = /D LLEAE/%/“'"T¥|:§T
LEIWRHEFFRAL20EZHAE
W HEIR2013F5 A 16 H £ AH
— 4 o R2013F 128188 #BEE
BEEEPEHEESTNEBR L ZEE
ERARR—MHAZRMAL - LA
380,000 B L AERER AGMNNE
BT E 200 F R EE S 023
BZRAEYE ﬁ%m2m4¢1ﬂ1
HEAH—F  XZFBEEEHNRED

2013412 B18 AT 2 n&Eh -

BrbA £ R KisE27 Frig &SN - SRR
BATTEEMEARS  RHEHE
BB ENMEEREH - I F2E2HE
X IRE EMRAFE14ATE 2 HIR

RRtE - BB EMRAE14AF - A
ﬁ&WE&%&%Zx%%$QﬂZ%

B HERRETEHARAET
B - NERBERAERTE

o
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41. Related Party Transactions (Continued) 41. MEBEAXZH(E)
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEARZERM
The directors of the Company consider that the directors ARRAEEFRRESRAEBZEEE
are the key management of the Group, whose emoluments BAS HMESERMF12RHKE -

have been disclosed in note 12.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEERFETRABZHFMNETFMHES
determined by the remuneration committee having regard SRIE[MARBETSBEET -
to the performance of individuals and market trends.

42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 42, ELAFZEERBLATFHE
Company
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 KRB R2014F % 2013F 12 531 H
December 2014 and 2013 are as follows: ZEEMBARFBAT
Issued and
Place of fully paid up  Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued/
registration/ Class of registered  registered capital held
Name of subsidiary operation share held capital by the Company Principal activities
EMa/ BRTRER  SLFKKERG/
MELATER /e FERORN R&/EMEs  ERESEELA IERE
2014 2013
Baifuyang Macao Commercial Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG, oil and
Offshore Limited 7 Lk 100,000 electronic products
B RTRFARREARAA R HERAHRLR HoRETER
Fruto International Macao Commercial ~ Macao Ordinary Macao dollar 100,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
Offshore Limited A EER 100,000 27 HERDERILR

ESARRMERARREARLA

Lianxin Energy PRC* Registered capital RMB486,500,000 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG

BeeR e iftax AR 486,500,000 BERDERLR

NewOcean Petroleum Company Limited ~ BVI Ordinary USD1 100 49 Sales and distribution of oil products

HERBERAT ABRRS Lk %7 HERD Wb

Sound Agents Limited (“Sound Agents’) ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG and
(Note) B Lk 28T seling of il products

r' HEREABRAR(FEREA) HERD BRI R RHERR

N7




Annual Report 2014 =& —MFF 3§

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

= AL =g o
RE ISR MR
For the year ended 31 December 2014
HE2014F 12 31 HIFF/E

42. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the 42. FRFZEEWMBLFHEE &)

Company (Continued)

Issued and
Place of fully paid up  Proportion of nominal
incorporation/ share capital/ value of issued/
registration/ Class of registered  registered capital held

Name of subsidiary operation share held capital by the Company Principal activities

e/ BRfTRER  FLUFMREES/

HELFER i/ EENE  FRRAED B/ EREs

FBEE(HS)ERAR PRC’ Registered capital USD89,150,000
HE Y AR 89,150,000 %
AR (HE)ERAA PRC’ Registered capital USD107,670,000
hE iheEx
* Domestic — invested enterprises

# Wholly-owned foreign enterprises

Note:

Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company through the
declarations of trust executed by Shum Chun, Lawrence who held
the interest in Sound Agents of 50%. The remaining interest in
Sound Agents is indirectly held by the Company.

The above principal subsidiaries are owned indirectly by the
Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group has no material
non-controlling interests and the summarised financial
information about these subsidiaries is not disclosed.

107,670,000 %0

ERAFEELR  IERE
2014 2013

100 100 Sales and distribution of LPG
HERAHRILE

100 100 Sales and distroution of LPG
HERDHRIR

NERE
! 2EINEDRE

Ak

MEBREANBBRS BRIV ZEEERES
AABHERE - ZERANEBREAZ
50% tEa - MEREAZB T EEZHAAA
BERA °

PR EFEMNBRAREBARR R HEE
Ao

& B2 R G RS 4 PO S R A
FERERERES -

RV EERR/ETEFEAEEXRA
KEEZARFMBEBAR - EFRRI
HEMMERR ZEHNEBRITE

EERA/ AKEXEE AT HE
@ BYEBMFMERRZHBER
BMEELRE -

/4
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43. Derivative Financial Instruments 43. FTEMBEIR

Derivatives financial

instruments
TEBBIR
Assets Liabilities
=E &R
HK$°000 HK$°000
FAET FETT
2014 2014
Current TED
Cross currency interest rate swaps RYEBFIRBHEL
contracts - 1,479
Interest rate swaps contracts MEBHE L 1,222 2,121
1,222 3,600
2013 2013
Current MED
% Cross currency interest rate swaps RN EENEIZHEH
contracts — 10,345
Interest rate swaps contracts I EE X 1,313 9,957

1,313 20,302
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43. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 43. TEMBIR(Z)
Major terms of the derivative financial instruments are PTHEMB I A 2 E ZERBMmT

summarised as follows:

Cross currency interest rate swaps contracts/interest TRERTEHBEH FEHESW
rate swaps contracts — net settlement — BEHEPH
Notional amount Exchange rates/interest rates
ZBEH B/ FlE
2014
USD84,281,563 (approximately 28 January 2015 to Floating rate ranging from one month LIBOR +
to RMB515,718,885) 12 August 2016 0.75% to 3 months LIBOR + 4% per annum to
fixed rate ranging from 1.15% to 3.79%
84,281,663 XL (X AR 201551 A28 AE  FRFNENF1EAARBREFS + FHI=X
515,718,885 7T.) 201648 A12H 0.75% Z 3 A fmBRITRAEF B + FHZX 4%
ZEEFFENF1.15% E3.79%
RMB/USD6.55
6.55 AR# E7T
2013
USD153,149,670 (approximately 19 February 2014 to  Floating rate ranging from one month LIBOR to
to RMB926,555,507) 12 August 2016 six months LIBOR + 3.5% per annum to fixed
rate ranging from 1.15% to 3.79%
153,149,670 & T (K AR 20142 R19B8Z  EFHEFEMNENF1EABBRITAEREZ61EA
926,555,507 JT.) 20168 A12H fRBERIT R B + F 5% 3.6% = & F F 7| X
NF1.15% E3.79%
RMB/USD®6.55 to RMB/USD6.82
6.55 A\R# "ETE6.82 ARKE ETT
Netting arrangements on derivative financial EMBEIRZETEEERE
instruments
The Group has entered certain derivative transactions REEEE TRITE A TEEEAR
that are covered by the International Swaps and METEHecEFEHE(BEEE
Derivatives Association Master Netting Agreements (“ISDA HERITETABEHZE])RE ZITE
Agreements”) signed with various banks. These derivative R5 o WETETEREGRE BB E
instruments are not offset in the consolidated statement NI EAVEHR S - AR RITET
of financial position as the ISDA Agreements are in place EainsalB - RERREY - EHE
with a right of set off only in the event of default, insolvency BRBERAZARRAT - T HEERE - K
or bankruptcy so that the Group currently has no legally REBBRY /A ERE LA THIT B
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts. Other Mo KO RS - By XXt 2
than derivatives transactions mentioned above and the TER S RM 44 FTEEIN - RNEEW
disclosure in note 44, the Group has no other financial EHMNAEB LGRS SRR R
assets and financial liabilities which are offset in the REUSFEEECHIR U BEER
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position or are iEBaLE -

subject to similar netting arrangements.
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43. Derivative Financial Instruments (Continued) 43. FTEMBIRE)
Netting arrangements on derivative financial TEMBIAZSAREREE)

instruments (Continued)

ERGHZABHMITEFREEE L
RELUmGZMR IV BEERTBAR
R

Net financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements by counterparty.

Carrying

Carrying amounts
of financial assets
presented in the
consolidated

statement of

amounts of
financial liabilities
presented in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position financial position Net amount
RiZEHH RiFAME
RARPETZ RARRETZ
MEEEREE MERRIREE pg |
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
188
As at 31 December 2014 M2014512 A31 H
Counterparty A RE5FA 1,222 (295) 927
Counterparty B R$HB - (2,700) (2,700)
Counterparty C R57C - (605) (605)
Total st 1,222 (3,600) (2,378)
As at 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 31 H
Counterparty A RHHA 1,313 (863) 450
Counterparty B R5HHB — (5,105) (5,105)
Counterparty C R5F7C - (14,231) (14,231)
Counterparty D R57AD - (1083) (1083)
Total BET 1,313 (20,302) (18,989)
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44. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Subject 44. MBEBERMBARZIEHREE

to Offsetting Agreements

Except for the disclosure in note 43, the disclosures set out
in the tables below include financial assets that are offset in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off certain amount of pledged bank deposits and bank
borrowings and the Group intends to settle these balances
on a net basis.

Financial assets subject to offsetting arrangement

As at 31 December 2014

Gross amounts

of recognised
financial assets

BFiRE43 2 BEBSN - FRERBEER
AREZBARBRRETEHZ B
47 -

AEEREEEERLATHITZRE
Ao REEX RN ERRITERR
RITER > AKBEYFSFEEEER
BREEER

MEREZIERRH

#2014F 125 31H

Gross amounts

DRz
MEEERTA
HK$°000
FET
Description ik
Pledged bank deposits and ~ BiEFRITHER K
bank borrowings RITIER 1,929,698

of recognised Net amounts of

financial liabilities financial assets

set off in the presented in the

consolidated consolidated

statement of statement

financial position financial position
RiGEME

KR FPERL RizaM%

CHRME HKARDETH

AREE MBEERR

HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FET

(1,873,381) 56,317

There was no offsetting arrangement as at 31 December
20183.

MR20134 12 A 31 B EE L HE
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45. Fair Value Measurements of Financial 45. MBI AZCAFEHEE
Instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and BREEHBEEDATFEMAEZETEEAM
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on EEERMBARZLAFE

a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities RBEER BETAEEZHBEER
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting HMEABTIARAFETE - TRHFHE
period. The following table gives information about how the AN ETHSENKEERMERE Y
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities A EGFRZMEA 2 GERN &
are determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and AZBIE)  UMRAFEFEZAFESR
inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy BRI AR A A28 A SIS 28]
into which the fair value measurements are categorised BREESB(E—REE=H) -

(levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements is observable.

e |evel 1 fair value measurements are those derived s F—RAVEFENEHREEK
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for BERNERMIGF MR EBERCR
identical assets or liabilities; LA TS

e  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived s ZFIRAFEFENEEEXAE
from inputs other than quoted prices included within ZEEBMER) SBEETEAE
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, M)A E R ABIEREE - et
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived AFB— R FTRMERERIN + &

from prices); and

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived . FEZRAVEFTETEBIELIER
from valuation techniques that include inputs for the BRI B RS8R (EAERE A
asset or liability that are not based on observable B CEEXABBEHASE G

market data (unobservable inputs). BRMATEL
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45. MBETRAZCLAFEE(Z)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis (Continued)

Financial assets/
financial liabilities

BERE/ MBAR

Equity securities classified as
available for sale investment in
the consolidated statement of
financial position

RERYBRARIE BT HLE
RE 2 RAES

Cross currency interest rate
swaps contracts classified as
derivative financial instruments
in the consolidated statement of
financial position

REFRMIENRE D BAIT LN
TAZRREBMEEHAH

Interest rate swaps contracts
classified as derivative financial
instruments in the consolidated
statement of financial position

REFRMINRE D BAPT LN
TRZNEEHAH

Fair value as at

OF(E

31 December 2014
12014512 318

Listed equity securities
in Korea —
HK$81,958,000

GE FERE s -
81,958,000/ 70

Liabilities —
HK$1,479,000

B — 1,479,000 7T

Assets HK$1,222,000 and
liabilities HK$2,121,000

BE — 1,222,00087T R
B8 — 2,121,0005%7T

31 December 2013
®2013%12A31A

Listed equity securities
in Korea —
HK$136,534,000

BE L HERES —
136,534,000 7T

Liabilities —
HK$10,345,000

Bf& — 10,345,000/ T

Assets HK$1,313,000 and
liabilities HK$9,957,000

BE — 1,313,000 BT R
B — 9,957,000
T

There was no transfer between Level 1 and 2 in both years.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

BREFHEEEUATFEABZFREM

BRERMBARZLTFTE(E)

Fair value
hierarchy

AFERH

Level 1

E

Level 2

Level 2

|
|
!

MEFRNE—BRE Rz EWEEE -

ARBEERBR/NEGEE P EHRE T HER
ZHBEERMBABREEEEQF

B85 -

Valuation techniques and key inputs
FEARRIEBABE

Quoted bid price in an active market

ARmE 2 EARE

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward interest

rates (from observable yield curves at
the end of the reporting period) and

contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various

counterparties

BRARRE - AR RENREEHNE
(BREHA BN GXMEEH) A
WHEREE - YRRBRSER AT EER

B FIRMR

Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
are estimated based on forward interest

rates (from observable yield curves at
the end of the reporting period) and

contracted interest rates, discounted at a
rate that reflects the credit risk of various

counterparties

H¥ERLRE - ARAERENRBESNE
(BREHAIBRRREXMEEH) G
R YTRRRSER ST EER

R FIRMR

—E-IFEFR

o
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H#E1231 HLEERE
2011 2012 2013
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FET FET
Revenue LN 8,477,715 10,116,643 13462296 14,433,446 19,633,037
Profit before taxation BR A3 A1 % 155,451 332,944 832,966 812,225 922,218
Taxation BIE (18,067) (29,915) (20,425) (29,378) (21,312)
Profit for the year FRHEH 137,384 303,029 812,541 782,847 900,906
Attributable to: JE1
Owners of the Company AREEBA 136,647 306,159 810,934 783,308 900,270
Non-controlling interests JEE SR 737 (3,130) 1,607 (461) 636
m 137,384 303,029 812,541 782,847 900,906
Earnings per share SREF
Basic (in HK dollars) ER(ET) 0.12 0.23 0.62 0.55 0.61
Diluted (in HK dollars) BE(ET) 0.12 0.23 0.61 0.54 0.60
Assets And Liabilities EERER
At 31 December
®12A 318
2012
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$7000
FAET FET FHET FET F#T
Total assets BEE 5,799,599 10,622,135 12,353,147 13,291,766 14,246,116
Total liabilities BafE (4,321,008)  (8,774,600)  (9,768,171)  (9,174,969)  (9,340,332)

1,478,591 1,847,535 2,584,976 4,116,797 4,905,784

Equity attributable to owners of AAR ZHEEA
the Company FEfhHERS 1,468,708 1,823,754 2,568,404 4,095,536 4,874,600
r. Non-controlling interests e 9,883 23,781 16,572 21,261 31,184

1,478,591 1,847,535 2,584,976 4,116,797 4,905,784
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